MEETING OF THE GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
November 22, 2021, 6:00 p.m.
AGENDA
1. Call GWRC Meeting to Order – Chair Jeff Black
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum – Chip Boyles, Executive Director
4. Approval of the GWRC Agenda (ACTION ITEM)
5. Approval of Minutes of the October 25, 2021 GWRC Meeting (ACTION ITEM)
6. Public Involvement – Comments and questions from members of the public are welcome at this time.
a. Written Comments Received
7. Financial Report
a. GWRC FY21 Audit Report – Michael D. Aukamp, CPA, Dunham, Aukamp & Rhodes, PLC
i. Resolution 22-08: Accepting GWRC FY21 Audit Report (ACTION ITEM)
b. Monthly Financial Report (October 2021) – Michele Dooling, Director of Finance & Personnel
8. Presentations
a. Draft GWRC Strategic Plan – Kimball Payne and Jack Tuttle, Executive Managers, The Berkley Group
9. Old Business
a. Resolution 22-06: Adopting the George Washington Region Resilience Plan (ACTION ITEM) – Kate
Gibson, Deputy Director
i. George Washington Region Resilience Plan
b. AmeriCorps VISTA Opportunity – Sam Shoukas, Continuum of Care Program Director
10. New Business
a. Resolution 22-09: Signers for Carter Bank & Trust Accounts (ACTION ITEM) – Chip Boyles
b. Executive Director’s Report – Chip Boyles
i. Office Space Update
ii. Staffing Updates
iii. Program Updates
11. Correspondence
12. Adjourn GWRC Meeting
Next GWRC Meeting: January 24, 2022
George Washington Regional Commission meetings are open to the public. Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color,
national origin, age, sex, religion, disability or family status. Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with
Disabilities Act or persons who require translation services (free of charge) should contact the GWRC at (540) 642-1579 or
gibson@gwregion.org at least two days prior to the meeting. If hearing impaired, telephone 1-800-273-7545 (TDD). La participación
pública es solicitada sin distinción de raza, color, origen nacional, edad, sexo, religión, discapacidad o su estado familiar. Las personas
que requieren alojamiento especial de acuerdo con el Americans with Disabilities Act, o personas que requieren servicios de traducción
(libre de cargo) deben comunicarse con la GWRC al (540) 642-1579 o gibson@gwregion.org al menos dos días antes de la reunión.
Personas con problemas auditivos, llama 1-800-273-7545 (TDD).

5. Approval of Minutes of the October 25, 2021 GWRC Meeting

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
October 25, 2021
GWRC Conference Room
MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair, Jeff Black (In-Person), Caroline County; Jason Graham & Matt
Kelly (In-Person), City of Fredericksburg; Jeff Sili (In-Person), Caroline County; Cathy Binder &
Annie Cupka (In-Person), King George County; Tim McLaughlin & Chris Yakabouski (In-Person),
Spotsylvania County; & Meg Bohmke, Stafford County
MEMBERS ABSENT: Tom Coen, Stafford County
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE: (Attending In-Person): Meghann Cotter, Micah Ecumenical
Ministries; Cassie Kimberlin, Greater Fredericksburg Habitat for Humanity; & Jason Tickle,
Caroline Habitat for Humanity; (Attending Virtually): Paul Agnello, Spotsylvania County; Brandon
Brown, Stafford County; Eric Gregory, Hefty, Wiley, & Gore; Christine Hoeffner, Virginia Railway
Express; Jamie Jackson, FRED; Jim Lynch, Bike & Pedestrian Advisory Committee, Potomac
Heritage Trail Association (PHTA), & Friends of the Dahlgren Railroad Heritage Trail (DRHT); &
Kim Payne, Luke Peters & Michael Zehner, Berkley Group
STAFF: (Attending In-Person): Kari Barber, Chip Boyles, Michele Dooling, Kate Gibson, Anne
Marie Kluempen, Kim Mitchell, Ian Ollis & Sam Shoukas; (Attending Virtually): Matthew Lehane,
Jennifer Morgan, & Todd Rump
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Black called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. with a quorum present;
which was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.
APPROVAL OF GWRC MEETING AGENDA – Meeting October 25, 2021
Upon motion made by Mr. Kelly & seconded by Ms. Bohmke, with all concurring, the October 25th
GWRC meeting agenda was approved as submitted.
There was an additional motion made by Ms. Binder and seconded by Ms. Bohmke, with all
concurring, to add item 10g for Approval of Executive Director’s Employment Agreement to the
October 25th GWRC meeting agenda. The additional motion was endorsed with unanimous
approval.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
a.) September 27, 2021 GWRC Meeting (Action Item)
Upon motion by Mr. Kelly and seconded by Ms. Binder, with Ms. Bohmke abstaining and all other
members concurring, the minutes of the September 27th meeting were approved as submitted.
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT: None
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FINANCIAL REPORT:
a.) Banking Services Update – Kate Gibson & Michele Dooling
Ms. Gibson advised the line of credit account has been opened with Carter Bank & Trust. Ms.
Gibson stated this line of credit is established for supplementing emergency financial obligations
only.
b.) Monthly Financial Report (August, 2021; September, 2021; and Quarterly Reports
from July to September, 2021) – Michele Dooling
Ms. Dooling advised all financial reports to include: Balance Sheet, Agency-wide Income Statement,
Dashboard & Cash Flow statement for the months of August and September, 2021, are included in
tonight’s agenda packet. Ms. Dooling relayed the Quarterly financial reports for July-September,
2021, are also included in tonight’s agenda packet. There were no questions asked of Ms. Dooling
from the GWRC committee members.
PRESENTATIONS: None
OLD BUSINESS:
a.) Resolution 22-03: Adopting the GWRC Greenway Feasibility Study & Plan
(Action Item) – Kari Barber
i.

GWRC Greenway Feasibility Study & Plan

Ms. Barber advised the Greenway Feasibility Study has been previously presented to GWRC for
review. The plan included in today’s agenda packet includes two revisions which are a route change
map from King George County and a new route included from Caroline County. Ms. Barber
relayed there are no additional changes/amendments to the plan previously submitted for member
review.
Upon motion by Mr. Kelly and seconded by Ms. Binder, with all concurring, Resolution 22-03 was
adopted by GWRC at the October 25th meeting.
b.) Resolution 22-04: Allocating Vanpool Alliance CARES Act Section 5307 Funding
(Action Item) – Kate Gibson
Ms. Gibson advised that on September 27th, GWRC voted to allocate CARES Act Section 5307
funding in the amounts of $2.2m to FRED and $269,000 to OmniRide to offset FY23 jurisdictional
subsidies. Ms. Gibson stated Resolution 22-04 affirms the action from the September 27th meeting.
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Upon motion by Mr. McLaughlin and seconded by Mr. Kelly, with all concurring, Resolution 22-04
was adopted by GWRC at the October 25th meeting.
c.) Resolution 22-05: Approving the GWRC FY23 Annual Dues Structure (Action
Item) – Kate Gibson
Ms. Gibson advised the FY23 GWRC Annual Dues Structure was presented to GWRC at the
September meeting for review and discussion. Ms. Gibson stated the dues structure is comprised of
three components which are; Per Capita Dues rate; Fund Locality Fund Balance Contributions; &
Legislative Services.
Ms. Gibson advised the per capita rate of $0.6433 is requested for FY23 and this includes an
additional $20,000 increase proportionately to the five jurisdictions. Lastly, a $5,000 funding
structure for legislative services per locality was approved in previous budgets; however, was
removed from consideration in the FY2022 budget. Ms. Gibson stated it is included again for
FY2023 so both the new GWRC Executive Director and/or the individual localities can discuss
further and fund if it is the desire of the Commission. Ms. Gibson advised Resolution 22-05 is
requesting adoption by GWRC at tonight’s GWRC meeting.
Mr. McLaughlin stated that Spotsylvania County will not be paying any additional fees and he felt
each of the three components noted above should be voted on as separate items. Mr. McLaughlin
made a motion to deny Resolution 22-05. There was no second to the motion so the original
motion failed.
Upon motion by Mr. Kelly and seconded by Ms. Binder, a motion to accept Resolution 22-05 was
made. A substitute motion by Mr. McLaughlin and seconded by Ms. Cupka to vote on the three
components noted above as individual items was brought to the Commission. Mr. Black, Mr. Sili,
Mr. Kelly, Mr. Graham, Mr. Yakabouski, and Ms. Bohmke voted no, and Ms. Binder, Ms. Cupka,
and Mr. McLaughlin voted yes, so the motion to vote for the FY2023 dues structure to be endorsed
individually was denied. A final motion was made by Ms. Bohmke and seconded by Mr. Graham,
specifying that should the $5,000 legislative services not be utilized that these funds be transferred
back to each respective locality. With Mr. McLaughlin voting no, and all other members concurring,
Resolution 22-05 was adopted by GWRC at the October 25th meeting.
d.) Planning District Commission Housing Development Program – Kate Gibson
Ms. Gibson advised the newly approved Virginia Housing grant has been discussed at several past
GWRC meetings. Ms. Gibson relayed there were questions presented from GWRC members that
staff has now received answers too that are included in tonight’s agenda packet. Ms. Gibson advised
examples of projects the grant money could be utilized for are also included in tonight’s agenda
packet per member request. Ms. Gibson advised more information will continue to be received and
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presented and the next steps would be to work with entities and non-profit agencies to establish a
call for projects. There was no vote requested from GWRC at the October meeting. However,
there was a request for endorsement for staff to continue to move forward in finalizing the process
so that GWRC can be more prepared for a vote whether to accept the available grant at a later
GWRC meeting. Mr. Black received verbal acknowledgement for staff to continue moving forward
on the application process, viable projects, etc.
i.
ii.
iii.

Clarification on Grant Guidance
Affordable Housing Examples/Potential Project Ideas
Recommended Next Steps

NEW BUSINESS:
a.) Resolution 22-06: Adopting the George Washington Region Resilience Plan
(Action Item) – Kate Gibson
Ms. Gibson advised the George Washington Regional Resilience Plan has been brought to the
Commission for review at previous meetings and it is requested tonight that Resolution 22-06 be
adopted.
Mr. Sili advised the DEQ models do not adequately address the direct impacts of solar panels and
the direct run-off water impacts this will present to the region. Mr. Sili stated the region needed
more information before consideration of endorsing Resolution 22-06.
i. George Washington Resilience Plan
Upon motion by Mr. Sili and seconded by Mr. McLaughlin, with all members concurring,
consideration of endorsement of the George Washington Resiliency Plan will be brought back for
further review at the upcoming January, 2022 GWRC meeting.
b.) Resolution 22-07: Authorizing the GWRC Executive Director to Execute the
Sub-Recipient Agreement and Related Documents for Federal Transit
Administration Section 5307 Grant Funds (Action Item) –Ian Ollis and Kate
Gibson
i. Draft GWRC-PRTC Subrecipient Agreement
Mr. Ollis advised Resolution 22-07 funding of $40,000 from PRTC has been endorsed by GWRC
and the resolution is to complete the required housekeeping paperwork for MOU between both the
GWRC and PRTC entities.
Upon motion by Mr. Graham and seconded by Mr. McLaughlin, with all other members concurring,
Resolution 22-07 was adopted by the Commission at the October 25th GWRC meeting.
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c.) Vanpool Alliance Section 5307 Funding Discussion – Kate Gibson
Ms. Gibson advised the Vanpool Alliance Section 5307 Funding allocations are the normal 5307
funding allocations and are not the special CARES Act funding source. Ms. Gibson advised more
information has been requested from PRTC on whether the CARES Act funding can be re-allocated
to other projects thereby providing more revenue for the region from the regular Vanpool Alliance
Section 5307 category. Ms. Gibson advised this item would be an action item at the upcoming
November, 2021 GWRC meeting.
d.) Review of GWRC HUD Applications – Sam Shoukas
i. Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) Application
Continuum of Care Planning Application
Ms. Shoukas advised GWRC has submitted two HUD planning grants. The CoC Planning grant
is for $15,078 and will be utilized for staff time, grant completion process, point in time contacts and
annual data reporting. The second HMIS grant is a $55,125 grant and will also be utilized for staff
time, maintenance and updates by staff to the homeless data base processes and input and
maintenance of homelessness logs and reports.
e.) AmeriCorps VISTA Opportunity – Sam Shoukas
Ms. Shoukas advised GWRC has had six AmericCorps Vista projects in the past and these positions
have resulted in policies/procedures being developed at local levels and Virginia Housing allowance
counter-part liaisons for the homeless and the region’s affordable housing plan. Ms. Shoukas stated
after this year, GWRC will not have access to continuing with a AmeriCorp Vista employee. Ms.
Shoukas advised the Vista program has afforded GWRC to hire college graduates who work from
this office on the development and maintenance of the housing allowance plans. Ms. Shoukas
stated should GWRC be awarded additional Vista positions this would require a $6,500 annual
match from the localities to cover the expenses of the salary for the Vista employee. Ms. Shoukas
stated the position offers GWRC an opportunity to receive college graduates, master students, and
even a PHD student to become an employee at a relatively lower salary range. Ms. Shoukas advised
this is for informational purposes only tonight and will be brought before the Commission at the
upcoming November for meeting for endorsement.
f.) Executive Director’s Report – Kate Gibson
i. Staffing Updates
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Ms. Gibson advised the new GWRideConnect employee who began work on October 4th is Kim
Mitchell and she is in attendance tonight so that the Commission can be introduced to the newest
GWRC employee. Ms. Gibson relayed FAMPO has also hired a part-time intern.
ii.Program Updates
Ms. Gibson advised both the CoC and Environmental departments in the office have already been
discussed previously at tonight’s meeting by Ms. Shoukas and Ms. Barber. For Go Virginia, the
University of Mary Washington cyber security program trained 30 students for the first quarter. Ms.
Gibson stated the Germanna Community College’s pipeline and first dual cyber-search program is
fully operational and is currently the only one in the State that is offering this program to students.
Ms. Gibson relayed the Resiliency Plan has been approved by the Virginia Department of
Conservation and Round Two is now open for project input. Ms. Gibson stated staff will be
working with locality representatives for upcoming project submissions.
Ms. Gibson stated the state is holding meetings in Aquia and Dahlgren in regard to flood planning.
For GWRideConnect, a vanpool session at the recent ACT conference in Chesapeake was
conducted by staff. For FAMPO, the Ladysmith Bike/Ped plan will be presented to the Board of
Supervisors in Caroline County at the upcoming Tuesday board meeting. Ms. Gibson stated
FAMPO is also underway with update efforts to the Air Quality Conformity Plan, the
CMAQ/RSTP project update lists and the pre-application process for Smart Scale projects for
VDOT review. Ms. Gibson stated FAMPO is overseeing the East/West corridor study and this
study will cover the entire region.
g.) Executive Director Contract
Enter Closed Session (Action Item)
Upon motion by Ms. Binder and seconded by Mr. Graham, with all concurring, the George
Washington Regional Commission convened to Closed Meeting for the purpose of discussion on
the following two items:
1. Discussion or consideration of the potential acquisition of real property for a public
purpose, or of the potential disposition of publicly held real property, where discussion
in an open meeting would adversely affect GWRC’s bargaining position or negotiating
strategy; and
2. Discussion and consideration of a personnel matter concerning the Executive Director’s
position
CLOSED SESSION
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION
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Upon motion by Mr. Kelly and seconded by Ms. Binder, with all concurring, the George
Washington Regional Commission returned to open session and certified by roll call vote that only
public business matters identified in the motion were discussed in Closed Session.
Upon motion by Mr. Kelly and seconded by Ms. Binder, with Mr. McLaughlin voting no and all
other members concurring, motion to amend the GWRC budget to maintain Kate Gibson’s salary at
its current level was approved.
In regard to Executive Director’s Contract, approval of the employment agreement for Chip Boyles
as Executive Director to GWRC as presented for authorization as Executive Committee Chair to
execute the agreement and authorized by the Board. Upon motion by Ms. Binder and seconded by
Mr. Kelly, with Mr. McLaughlin voting no, and all other board members concurring Executive
Director’s contract was approved.
CORRESPONDENCE: Included in tonight’s agenda packet for board member information and
review.
ADJOURN GWRC MEETING – The October 25th George Washington Regional Commission
meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m. The next scheduled GWRC meeting will be held on November 22,
2021 at 6:00 p.m.
Respectfully Submitted, Chip Boyles, Executive Director
(Draft Minutes prepared by JoAnna Roberson)
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6a. Written Comments Received

November 1, 2021
FAMPO Policy Committee
Public Comment: Jane Leeds, CTAC Committee Member
Subject: Validated Mission Statement
I recently read the mission statement for FAMPO and GWRC. As an advocate for
the disabled community, I focused on the portion about the groups’
commitment to giving equal opportunity to all citizens in this region including the
aged, disabled and poor. The intent and words I do not doubt, but given the
lack of safe and equal access to public transit in this area, I have to question
how big of a commitment the organizations have to getting that goal met.
There is some question of whether the planning organizations know how or what
needs to be done. My perspective in both these areas is that they do not.
There are two large obstacles in our infrastructure at present that need to be
addressed immediately. The seemingly random placement of sidewalks at
public venues and businesses are a good thing, but to put it bluntly it is quite
simply not enough to correct a much bigger problem--safety. Having ADAapproved sidewalk at the afore-mentioned places is desirable but if transit riders
are not able to get there safely then the effort and resources used to
accomplish it is virtually wasted. The need for safe access throughout the area is
needed—places where people whom are physically or financially challenged
live and work. There are very few contiguous sidewalks in this area. Pedestrians,
many whom are walking with the aid of a service dog, walkers, and riding
wheelchairs simply do not have safe egress to access public transit.
[On public transit] the process of using diversions with FRED buses requires
making arrangements ahead of time to be sure the right equipment (lifts,
leaning buses, etc.) are available to riders. Unfortunately, that method depends
on the driver’s ability to remember to do the diversion to designated pick-up
points from home and the return trip. It can result in having to suffer long delays
in bad weather (cold, wet, storms, etc.) in order to get home if the driver forgets.
I know that from first-hand experience, I’m sorry to report. The only option I was
offered to fix the problem was having to travel in the wrong direction of the
route’s loop to arrive back home. For me that was not an option as it would
have placed me in front of my community after dark. From that point it was a
quarter mile walk from my drop-off point to home with my hungry service dog—
it was not my best day with FRED.
The shared-ride-service (SRS), Mobility Options, that is part of the Healthy
Generations program is available—some times. One has to call a month in

advance most of the time to be sure you can get space. COVID has negatively
impacted this service’s availability as rides (as of this writing) can no longer be
shared. The SRS serves the aged and/or disabled community in getting them to
health care and medical appointments. Many also need access for routine
shopping (not everyone can shop on-line), picking up prescriptions, getting
immunized, and attending to needed legal and banking services. That doesn’t
even begin to cover all the things we do in our lives to maintain our quality of
life. Many aged and disabled people live below the poverty line prohibiting the
costs of private transport such as Lyft and Uber. We don’t always have smart
phones at our disposal either due to the cost making the process even more
complicated.
Not having sidewalks to public transit because you can’t get to the bus stop is
only half the problem. Getting back on the bus to go home is the other half. If
one is unable to see well or at all to cross an intersection that makes it impossible
for one to use public transit from the get-go. Having sidewalks and safe passage
using an audible crosswalk signal for people at public venues (train stations,
libraries, public services, etc.) does absolutely no good if you can’t get there
safely. The City of Fredericksburg has sidewalks but few people can afford the
housing costs there. Plus, people with disabilities require special
accommodations in their living space and their choices are limited by their
availability and the costs associated with them.
These are not the only challenges that exist but the easiest to fix. As an
independent-living person who has hearing and visual limitations, a large service
dog to provide adequate living space and a place to pee and poo anytime of
the day or night, it is important that we can live somewhere we can go out any
time without fear of being confronted with violence. My service dog is not
trained for my protection, only to guide me.
Many of us are prisoners in our communities unable to walk about freely or
access businesses, services, transit and all the things that make our lives
comfortable. The current systems are either poorly implemented, badly
designed or not available such as audible crosswalk signals at busy intersections.
There are none in Spotsylvania County.
People with disabilities are invisible in our society, not just in Virginia, as I have
lived and visited many places in this country. It is time, past time, for our country
and here in this region to step up and do more, much more. The next time I read
the mission statement for this area’s regional planning organization, I hope there
will be more evidence of that pledge other than a few token attempts to pacify
those like me. The reality is that most of the funding will be applied to the neverending pouring of concrete, asphalt, building bridges, interchanges, ramps, and
other short-sighted, unproductive attempts to prevent traffic congestion. The

sad piece of all of this is that people with disabilities could be tax payers instead
of tax burdens if the planners would create safe access to public transit so they
can get and keep a job. The latter would allow for those whom are financially
challenged to have the housing they can afford, attend education facilities,
receive healthcare services, find and keep a job but only if they have
transportation that is safe, reliable, affordable and, most of all, accessible
without barriers or obstacles.
I apologize that this is so long but since there is not adequate time given to me
at the meetings to speak about the complexity of our issues, I am taking this
format. I want to work with the planning organization and help provide solutions
and add to its effectiveness. However, I am prepared to embark on the legal
process of a class action suit to rectify the situation. Like my pastor says, “The Ten
Commandments are not the Ten Suggestions.” That is true for the Americans
with Disabilities Act (ADA) and other laws that exist to protect the rights of those
whom are disenfranchised by systemic discrimination. We are not going to
tolerate being placated by tokenism anymore. Another reminder—there is a
new Veterans Administration (VA) site being built here to serve our physically
challenged service men and women in 2024. They sacrificed their health, fitness
and futures for us. They deserve better than what we currently have to offer in
the way of public transit.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Commissioners
George Washington Regional Commission

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the aggregate

remaining fund information of the George Washington Regional Commission as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Commission's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Managentent's Responsibility for the Financial Statentents
Managements is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material isstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on
tal statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standar
enerally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and
Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made be management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the George
Washington Regional Commission as of June 30, 2021 and the respective changes in financial position
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Inforntation
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 5 through 9 and page 30 be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
ted States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of
ation and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to
basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information
tted procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any

Otller Inforntation

'·

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the George Washington Regional Commission's financial statements. The schedule of expenditures
of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards, and is not a required part of the financial statements.
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required By Governnrent Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November XX,
2021, on our consideration of the George Washington Regional Commission's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
'ng, and not to provide an opinion
ort is an integral part of an audit
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
'ng George Washington Regional
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Stand
Commission's internal control over financial reporting

Certified Public Accountants
Chantilly, Virginia
November XX, 2021
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
In this section of the annual financial report of the George Washington Regional Commission (“GWRC”
or the “Commission”), the Commission’s management provides a narrative discussion and an analysis of
its financial activities for the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2021. Responsibility for the accuracy of the
data as well as the completeness and fairness of this presentation (including all disclosures) rests with
management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data contained herein is accurate in all material
respects and is reported in a manner designed to fairly represent the Commission’s financial position and
the result of operations of its various funds. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
accurate understanding of the Commission’s financial activities have been included. The Commission’s
financial performance is discussed and analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial
statements and disclosures following this section.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The financial statements presented herein included all of the activities of the Commission using the
integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) is intended to introduce the Commission’s financial statements. In addition to this MD&A, this
annual report consists of the basic financial statements (including government-wide financial statements
as well as fund financial statements) and notes to the financial statements. The Commission also includes
in this report additional information to supplement the basic financial statements.
Both government-wide financial statements distinguish the governmental activities of the Commission –
which are principally supported by locality contributions and governmental revenues such as grants –
from business-type activities which are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges.

Basic Financial Statements
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the Commission’s assets, liabilities and net
Position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the Commission is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Activities shows the actual revenues and expenditures of the Commission for Fiscal
Year 2021 and the resulting change in net position.
In June of each year the Commission adopts an annual operating budget for the upcoming fiscal year
beginning on July 1st. A budgetary comparison has been provided to demonstrate compliance with the
budget by comparing actual revenues and expenditures to those budgeted for the fiscal year, and the
resulting variance is calculated.
Finally, the resulting excess of revenues over expenditures is added (or subtracted if expenditures
exceeded revenues) from the fund balance at the beginning of the fiscal year. This determines the net
asset balance for the new fiscal year.
This MD&A is intended to explain changes in the Commission’s financial position as well as differences
in operation between the current and prior fiscal years. Significant changes from the prior year are
explained in the following paragraphs.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the statement of financial position and the statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balance statements.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Summary Statements of Net Position
June 30,

Current Assets
Capital Assets (net)
Total Assets

2021
$834,973
17,173
852,146

2020
$670,804
32,065
702,869

Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

327,552
327,552

342,838
342,838

17,173
507,421
$524,594

32,065
39,167
288,799
$360,031

Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Current assets are comprised of cash and investments and grants receivable.
available to the Commission for ongoing operations. In FY 2021:

These resources are

•

The Commission’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $524,594 (net position). This compares to the
previous year, when assets exceeded liabilities by $360,031. This represents an increase of $164,563.
This is a reflection of/due to continued efforts to increase fund balance through prudent spending.

•

The Commission’s governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $559,200 in FY 2021.
This compares to the prior year ending fund balance of $374,120 indicating an increase of $185,080
in the fund balance during FY 2021.

Capital assets consist solely of furniture, office equipment, leasehold improvements and other durable
goods used for the operation of the Commission. It should be noted that assets purchased with funds from
a grantor may revert to said grantor in the event the program for which the assets were purchased is
discontinued. However, this option has not been exercised by any agency providing funding to the
Commission.
Current liabilities are the obligations of the Commission. This category includes accounts payable,
accrued expenses, compensated absences and deferred revenue.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Summary Statements of Activities
For the Years Ended
June 30,

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Local assessments
Total Revenues
Expenses
Planning and community development
Interest on long-term debt
Total Expenses
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year
Net position at end of year

2021

2020

$2,847,125
180,899
3,028,225

$2,994,668
272,227
3,266,895

2,863,662
2,863,662

3,116,420
70
3,116,490

164,563
360,031
$ 524,594

150,405
209,626
$ 360,031

As indicated in the preceding statement there was an increase in net position of $164,563 from FY 2020
to FY 2021. This is a reflection of/due to continued efforts to increase fund balance through prudent
spending.

GWRC Activities
The Commission’s local contribution structure has been in place for decades. The principal purpose of
the local contributions is to provide the required “match” for the sundry federal and state grants that fund
the Commission’s annual work program, predominately in the areas of economic development,
environmental services, human services, transportation demand management, transportation planning.
Section 110.1 of the “Amended and Restated Charter Agreement of the George Washington Regional
Commission” establishes that the rate of contribution of the member localities be based on a per capita
rate using a population estimate of each of its localities from either the U.S. Census Bureau or the Weldon
Cooper Center for Public Service, whichever is most current.
In November 2008, the Commission established a per capita local contribution rate of $0.6433 for FY
2010 based on the anticipated amount of required matching funds. Beginning in FY 2020, the per capita
rate was erroneously transposed to $0.6344; this will be corrected in FY 2023. In FY 2021 the
Commission received $256,870 from member governments. Additionally, support from the Virginia
Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) in FY 2021 was at $75,971.
In late winter/early spring of every year the executive director begins developing the budget for the
upcoming fiscal year. This is done in close consultation with the Commission’s other senior staff
members. Revenue and expense projections are based largely on available guidance from current funders
as well as historical funding trends. In all cases, initial draft budgets are developed using conservative
income and expense projections.
Projected income included the anticipated total of local contributions; state Planning Assistance Grant
funding; reimbursement-based federal grant funding (including Federal Highway Administration Public
Law (PL), Federal Transit Administration 5303, HUD and CZM funds.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
The term “reimbursement-based” refers to funding that is received only after the Commission submits
invoices to the grantor or their administrator (such as VDOT, in the case of the FHWA PL funding) for
expenditures which have already been made and which are eligible for reimbursement under the terms of
the grant. Invoicing is normally done either monthly or quarterly, but in all cases always in accordance
with the requirements of the grant.
The Commission’s primary projected expenses and other liabilities include personnel costs, occupancy
expenses, equipment rental and purchases, project consultants and miscellaneous expenses such as office
supplies, dues, etc.
The Commission maintains insurance to protect itself from a loss of assets resulting from negligence,
accident, theft or fire. Additionally, the Commission carries “errors and omissions” and “directors and
officers’ liability” policies through the Virginia Association of Counties’ Risk Management Programs.
Coverage levels are reviewed periodically and adjusted as circumstances necessitate.
Because the Commission is dedicated to the continuing development of its staff, each staff member may
join and maintain membership in one or more professional organizations, paid for by the Commission
with the approval of the executive director. Additionally, the Commission itself maintains memberships
in a variety of professional and regional organizations, which are deemed to be appropriate and beneficial
to carrying out its mission.

Economic Factors and Development of the Fiscal Year 2021 Budget
Planning District 16 – which is served by the George Washington Regional Commission – is the fourthlargest and fastest-growing of Virginia’s 21 planning districts, behind the Northern Virginia Regional
Commission, the Hampton Roads Planning District Commission and the Richmond Regional Planning
District Commission. Since the adoption of the “Amended and Restated Charter Agreement of the
George Washington Regional Commission” in 2006 – which itself was largely a response to the rapid
growth of the region – the Commission’s programs have expanded significantly to more proactively
address the myriad issues facing Planning District 16 and to assist its member localities as they address
many of the same issues in their own jurisdictions. It is anticipated that this level of effort will be
maintained into the foreseeable future.
Every effort is made on the part of the Commission’s administration to accurately predict revenues and
expenses for the upcoming year so that staff can provide the Board with the most reliable estimates
possible for the purpose of budgeting. To this end, factors such as regional and state economic indicators,
historical spending and revenue levels, and projected population growth are considered during the budget
development process. The budget is routinely monitored and adjusted for changes in revised or new
program funds.
Presently, management of the Commission is not aware of any significant changes in conditions that
would have a significant effect on the financial position or results of activity of the Commission in the
near future.

Capital Assets
At the end of fiscal year 2021, the Commission had invested $280,733 in capital assets which consisted of
office furniture and equipment and leasehold improvements. This amount has been depreciated by
$265,841, for a carrying amount of $17,173.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Future Budgetary Planning
Management had become extremely concerned with the loss of Agency Fund Balance around FY 2007.
Under direct consultation with the GWRC Board as well the agency’s auditor, management developed a
plan to increase the financial viability of the organization.
To that end management will continue to make recommendations to explore areas of budgetary saving by
studying true staff needs and ability to fund positions and provide adequate fringe benefits for those
positions.
The GWRC anticipates either relocation to a new office or renovations at the current leased office space.
The current lease expires June 30, 2022. With optimization of workspace and use of remote work
technology, it is the goal of the staff to obtain an improved and conveniently located office space at the
current or less occupancy expense budget.
As the GWRC enters FY22 post pandemic and subject to the national employment “Great Resignation” of
increased numbers of workers resigning for new and improved opportunities, the Administration is
developing a Class and Compensation Plan to meet the demands of the new workforce better competing
with the Washington and Northern Virginia employment opportunities. The Class and Compensation Plan
will address, salaries, benefits, job descriptions/requirements and job duties.
Finally, management will continue to explore new revenue options to expand our regional presence by
providing enhanced services to our members. New programs and efforts will be aligned with the updated
GWRC Strategic Plan expected to be adopted in early 2022.

Contacting the Commission’s Financial Management
This financial report was prepared to provide a general overview of the Commission’s finances, to
comply with finance-related laws and regulations, and to demonstrate the Commission’s commitment to
public accountability. If you have questions about this report or would like to request additional
information, please direct your inquiry to the following address:
Chip Boyles, Executive Director
George Washington Regional Commission
406 Princess Anne Street
Fredericksburg, VA 22401
(540) 373-2890
boyles@gwregion.org
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Grants receivable
Due from other funds
Capital assets, net

$

509,653
314,364
10,956
17,173
852,146

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
\f:""'· .. ,~
Accounts payable and accrut.\1 exp¢
N'f~
Deferred revenue
RRBC funds
Accrued leave

47,695
86,209
141,869
51,779
327,552

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

17,173
507,421

$

524,594

See accompanying notes.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Program Activities

Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Expenses

Charges for
Services

$ 2,863,662

$2,771,154

$

256,870

$ 2,863,662

$2,771,154

$

256,870

Net (Expenses)
Revenue and
Changes in
Net Position

Governmental Activities
Planning and community development
Total Governmental Activities

$

164,362
164,362

General Revenues
Interest income

201
164,563
360,031

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes.

$

524,594
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
BALANCESHEETGOVERNMENTALFUNDS
JUNE 30,2021
General
Fund

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Grants receivable
Due from other funds

$509,653
314,364
10,956

Total Assets

$834,973

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
RRBCfunds

$ 47,695
86,209
141,869

Total Liabilities

275,773

FUND BALANCE
Unreserved
Undesignated

559,200

Total Fund Balance

559,200

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$834,973

Reconciliation of fund balances on the ba
governmental activities on the statement

vernmental funds to net position of

Fund balances - total governmental funds

$559,200

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds
Net Position of Governmental Activities

17,173

(51, 779)
$524,594

See accompanying notes.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND FUND BALANCEGOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Local assessments
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES

$2,847,125
180,899
201
3,028,225

EXPENDITURES:
Current
Consultant and professional fees
Personnel
Occupancy
Equipment and maintenance
Transportation subsidies
Membership dues
Supplies
Public relations
Telephone
Insurance
Conference, training and travel
Postage
Meetings
Miscellaneous
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1,528,515
1,100,660
90,654
51,764
19,575
11,515
10,592
10,121
8,217
4,331
3,663
1,947
850
741
2,843,145

EXCESSOFREVENUESO

185,080

Fund Balance- Beginning ofY r

374,120

Fund Balance - End of Year

$ 559,200

See accompanying notes.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

Net Changes in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds
Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. However, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense in the statement of activities. In the cu
eriod these amounts are:
Depreciation expense
Some expenses reported on the statement of
financial resources and therefore are not rep
Increase in compensated absence liability

$ 185,080

(14,892)

require the use of current
expenditures in the governmental funds.

Change in net position reported on the Statement of Activity

See accompanying notes.

(5,625)

$ 164,563

14

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

Go
Virginia
Regional
Counci16
ASSETS
Accounts receivable
Total Assets

$

10,956
10,956

10,956
10,956

$

NET POSITION

See accompanying notes.

15

GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies
The Rappahannock Area Development Commission, Planning District 16, (RADCO or the Commission)
was established on January 1, 1970 under the Virginia Area Development Act (Title 15 .I, Chapter 34,
Sections 15.1 - 1400, et. seq., Code of Virginia (1950) as amended). The Commission promotes,
encourages and assists the counties of Caroline, King George, Spotsylvania, Stafford and the City of
Fredericksburg in planning for the orderly and efficient development for the future and such other activities
as determined by the Commission. RADCO was renamed George Washington Regional Commission
(GWRC or Commission) on October 1, 2006.
The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) (prior to the adoption ofGASB 34) as applied to government units. The Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government's accounting policies are
described below.
A. Reporting Entity
The Commission's financial reporting entity
m accordance with GASB Statement No. 14
"The Reporting Entity/' The financial statem
e all departments and operations for which the
Commission is financially accountable. Financi
countability exists if a primary government/component
unit appoints a majority of a Commission's governing board and is able to impose its will on that
organization. Financial accountability may also be deemed to exist if there is a potential for the organization
to provide financial benefits to, or impose financial burdens on, the primary government/component unit.
On this basis, no governmental organizations other than the Commission itself are included in the financial
reporting entity.
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
In June 1999, GASB issued Statement No. 34, "Basic Financial Statements - and Management's
Discussion and Analysis- for State and Local Governments." This statement, known as the "Reporting
Model" statement, affects the way the Commission prepares and presents financial information. State and
local governments traditionally have used a financial reporting model substantially different from the one
use to prepare private-sector financial reports.
GASB Statement No. 34 establishes new requirements and a new reporting model for the annual financial
reports of state and local governments. The Statement was developed to make annual financial reports easier
to understand and more useful to the people who use governmental financial information to make decisions
and includes:
Management's Discussion and Analysis - GASB Statement No. 34 requires that financial statements be
accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the government's financial activities in
the form of a "Management's Discussion and Analysis" (MD&A). This analysis is similar to the analysis
that private-sector companies provide in their annual reports.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government-Wide Financial Statements - The reporting model includes financial statements prepared
using full accrual accounting for all of the government's activities. This approach includes not just assets
and liabilities (such as cash and accounts payable) but also capital assets and long-term liabilities (such as
buildings and general obligation debt). Accrual accounting also reports all of the revenues and costs of
providing services each year, not just those received or paid in the current year or soon thereafter.
The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the statement of change in net
assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part,
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statemen Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, a
ed separately from business-type
ort. The Commission only has
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and char.
governmental activities.

Statement of Net Position - The Statement of Net
esigned to display the financial position of
the primary government. Governments report all cap
assets in the government-wide Statement of Net
Position and report depreciation expense - the cost of "using up" capital assets - in the Statement of
Activities. The net position of a government will be broken down into three categories: 1) invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted.
Statement of Activities - The government-wide Statement of Activities reports expenses and revenues in a
format that focuses on the cost of each of the government's functions. The expense of individual functions is
compared to the revenues generated directly by the function (for instance, through use charges or
intergovernmental grants).
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provide by a given function or segment,
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Demonstrating compliance with the adopted budget is an important
component of a government's accountability to the public. The Commission and many governments revise
their original budget over the course of the year for a variety of reasons. Under the reporting model,
governments will continue to provide budgetary comparison information in their annual reports. An
important change, however, is a requirement to add the government's original budget to the current
comparison of final budget and actual results.
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the find financial statements.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies (Continued)
The Commission reports the following major governmental fund:
The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The Commission reports the following fiduciary fund:
Go Virginia Agency Fund - This fund accounts for the increases and decreases of the funds held for
the GO Virginia Regional Council.
As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminate
statements.

om the government-wide financial

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Fi
The government-wide financial statements are re
the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis ofaccounting. Under the accr
ethod, revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the
transaction that can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period, not to exceed sixty days. The
Commission considers grant revenues to be available when the grant expenditure is made since the
expenditure is the prime factor for determining eligibility. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred.
When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balances are available for expenditures incurred, it
is the Commission's policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as they are
needed.

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all
funds.
All budgets are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, the Budgetary
Comparison Schedule presents actual expenditures in accordance with the accounting principles generaJly
accepted in the United States of America on a basis consistent with the adopted budgets as amended.

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The State statute authorizes the Commission to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and
instrumentalities, repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit or time deposits insured by the FDIC, and
the local government investment pool. Deposits are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
F. Capital Assets
Capital assets are stated at historical cost or estimated historical costs and include expenditures which
substantially increase the useful lives of existing assets. The Commission has no infrastructure assets. The
Commission's policy is to capitalize assets with a cost of $2,000 or more for furniture and equipment.
Routine maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation of furniture and equipment is
computed under the straight-line method at various rates considered adequate to allocate the cost over the
lives of such assets. The estimated lives by classification are as follows:
Computer equipment
Furniture
Leasehold improvements

5
10
15

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30,2021 was $14,892.
G. Accounts Receivable
underlying exchange transaction
Accounts receivable are reported at their gross value wh~P:occurs. Receivables related to non-exchange transactions:,~re ·~
zed when their eligibility requirements
ton that is expected to be uncollectible. This
have been met. Receivables are reduced by the estimated
estimate is made based on collection history and current in ormation regarding the credit worthiness of the
debtors. When continued collection activity results in receipts of amounts previously written off, revenue is
recognized for the amount collected. Management considers all of the accounts receivable to be collectible
at June 30, 2021, and no allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided. Bad debt expense was $-0- for
the year ended June 30, 2021.
H. Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

I. Compensated Absences
It is the Commission's policy to permit its employees to accumulate annual leave. Accumulated annual
leave up to 30 days is paid upon termination, while accrued sick leave is paid at a rate of25%.
The following is a summary of changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2021:
Beginning
$46.154

Additions

Deductions

Ending

$5.625

$i1112
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Concluded)

J. Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, long-tenn debt and other long-tenn obligations are reported as
liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.
In the fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.

K. Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expense as incurred.

NOTE 2 - Deposits and Investments
Deposits- Custodial risk is the risk that in the event
ure, the government deposits might not
be returned to it. There is no custodial credit risk
accounts, as the entire bank balance was
in accordance with the Virginia Security for
covered by federal depository insurance or collateral
Public Deposits Act (Act). Under the Act, banks holding public deposits in excess of the amounts insured
by the FDIC must pledge collateral in the amount of 50% of excess deposits to a collateral pool in the
name of the State Treasury Board. Savings and loan institutions are required to collateralize 100% of
deposits in excess ofFSLIC limits. The State Treasury Board is responsible for monitoring compliance by
banks and savings and loans.

NOTE 3 .. Property and Equipment
A summary of changes in property and equipment follows:
Balance
Julx I~ 2020
Capital assets being depreciated
Office furniture and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Office furniture and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Total accumulated depreciation
Capital Assets, net

$ 85,459
195,274
280,733

Additions

DisQosals

$

$

- --

$ 85,459
195,274
280,733

- --

84,676
178,884
263,560

- --

82,803
165,865
248,668

1,873
13,019
14,892

$ 32!065

$(14,892)

Balance
June 30, 2021

- --

$

-

$ 11,113
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(Continued)

NOTE 4 - Receivables
Receivables at June 30, 2021 consist of the following:
$314,364
$314.364

Intergovernmental
Total

NOTE 5- Payroll
The Commission participates in the County of Stafford's payroll and fringe benefits program. This
participation began in Fiscal Year 2007 through an agreement between the Stafford County Board of
Supervisors and the Commission. Per the agreement, the County includes employees of the Commission in
the County's payroll plan, benefits package and funding of the GASB 45 liability costs. The Commission
retains all control over the employees and reimburses the County monthly for the costs incurred.

NOTE 6 - Operating Leases
The Commission entered into a five-year lease
tee space expiring fiscal year 2022. The
~P ally based on the Consumer Price Index, but no
lease includes a base rent of $5,968 with an esca
spaces in several parking lots for commuters. These
more than 5% per annum. The Commission also 1
one-year leases expired on June 30, 2020, but were subsequently extended for an additional one-year period.
The Commission's rent expense for all leases noted above for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $71,616.

s

Future minimum lease payments for the operating leases are as follows:
Years ending June 30,
2022
Total minimum lease payments

NOTE 7 -Risk Management
The Commission is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Commission has obtained
coverage from commercial insurance companies to cover all significant losses. For insured programs, there
have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage.
Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year of the three prior years.
The Commission's worker's compensation coverage is under a retrospectively rated policy where the initial
premium may be adjusted based upon actual experience during the period of coverage. The Commission's
management believes the risk of material claims is unlikely.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 8 - Commitments
The Commission participates in a number of programs that are fully or partially funded by grants received
from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the appropriate
grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations,
the Commission may be required to reimburse. As of June 30, 2021, the Commission believes that
disallowed expenditures, if any, based on subsequent audits will not have a material effect on the overall
financial position of the Commission.

NOTE 9 - Fringe Benefit Allocation
Fringe benefit expense is allocated using the p
benefit rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021
Fringe benefit expense
Total direct salaries

benefits to total direct salaries. The fringe
a culated as follows:
$400.326
$708,008

= 56.54%

Components of fringe benefit expense for the year ended June 30,2021, are shown below:
Fringe benefits
Employee leave
Health Insurance
Pension
Social Security taxes
Life and disability insurance
Total Fringe Benefits

$124,479
115,967
83,879
62,256
13,745
$400.326

NOTE 10- Indirect Costs
Indirect costs, which support all projects, are allocated based on the ratio of the individual project's direct
salaries, leave, and fringe benefits to total direct salaries, leave, and fringe benefits (excluding temporary
help). The indirect cost rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 was calculated as follows:
Indirect costs
Total direct salaries
and fringe benefits

$425,220
$884,487 = 48.08%
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(Continued)

NOTE 10- Indirect Costs (Concluded)
The following are included in indirect costs allocated to projects:
Salaries
Occupancy
Fringe benefits
Consulting/contractual servic
Equipment and mainte
Depreciation
Conference,
Office suppli
Telephone
Membership dues
Insurance
Postage
Public relations
Miscellaneous
Meetings
Total

$142,985
90,654
80,844
57,900
12,495

14,892
1,350
934
8,217
6,699
4,331
1,768
838
737
576
$425.220

NOTE 11- Evaluation of Subsequent Events
The Commission has evaluated subsequent events through November XX, 2021 the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

CFDA #

Expenditures

20.205

$494,800

20.505

168,381

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Supportive Housing Program
VA0082L3F 141508
Continuum of Care
VA0273L3F141500

14.235
14.235

55,125
12,109

U.S. Department of Commerce
Pass-through Payments
Virginia Department of Environmental Quality
Coastal Zone Management
NA20NOS4190207
Coastal Zone Management
NA 19NOS4190 152
Chesapeake Bay WIP
16805
Chesapeake Bay Template
17035

11.419
11.419
66.466
66.466

44,179
2,058
50,846
5,000

PASS-THROUGH ID
FEDERAL AGENCY AND PROJECT
Major Program
U.S. Department of Transportation
Pass-through Payments
Virginia Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction
Other Federal Awards
U.S. Department of Transportation
Pass-through Payments
Virginia Department of Rail an
Metropolitan Planning Funds

lilt '*ansportation
VA20 1602600

Total Federal Awards

$832.498

NOTE 1- Basis ofPresentation
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the
George Washington Regional Commission. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts in, or used in, the preparation of the basic financial
statements.
NOTE 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
NOTE 3 -Indirect Cost Rate
· The Commission has elected not to use the 10% de minimus indirect cost rate.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES- AGENCY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Balance
Beginning
of Year

Additions

Balance
End
of Year

Deletions

GO VIRGINIA REGIONAL COUNCIL 6
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

$ 568,636

$

568,636

$

568,636

$

568,636

$

LIABILITIES
Amount held for others

$

$

See accompanying notes.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Commissioners
George Washington Regional Commission
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of governmental activities,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the George Washington Regional Commission as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise George Washington Regional Commission's basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated November XX, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the fin
, we considered George Washington
Regional Commission's internal control over fina
"
g (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in circumstances
tfie purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of George
Washington Regional Commission's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of George Washington Regional Commission's internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether George Washington Regional Commission's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported u er Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe
and the results of that testing, and not to pr

ur testing of internal control and compliance
·_an ~ nion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal

control or on compliance. This report is an

e{rat part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Certified Public Accountants
Chantilly, Virginia
November XX, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Commissioners
George Washington Regional Commission

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited George Washington Regional Commission's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on George Washington Regional Commission's major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2021. George Washington Regional Commission's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Managentent's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal program .

Auditor's Responsibility
~l?fi,~';:,

Our responsibility is to express an opinion :::compHs
for each of George Washington Regional
Commission's major federal programs bas on our~"'audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit f compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about George Washington
Regional Commission's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of George Washington
Regional Commission's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, George Washington Regional Commission complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of George Washington Regional Commission is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered George
Washington Regional Commission's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for th
rpose of expressing an opinion on the
y, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Ac
internal control over compliance.
effectiveness of the George Washington Region
A deficiency in internal control over c
;!ian~ ists when the design or operation of a control
cr~ employees, in the normal course of performing their
over compliance does not allow manage
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Certified Public Accountants
Chantilly, Virginia
November XX, 2021
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30,2021

Section I- Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued on whether the financial statements
Audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting
- Material weakness(es) identified

Yes

_K_No

-Significant deficiency(ies) identified

Yes

_K_None
Reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Yes

_K_No

- Material weakness(es) identified

Yes

_K_No

-Significant deficiency(ies) identified

Yes

_K_None
Reported

Yes

_K_No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

Type of auditor's report issued on complianc6J~t maj
\

~

Any audit findings disclosed that are required t~~~ r~ported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?
Identification of major federal program
CFDANumber

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.205

Highway Planning and Construction

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$750,000

_x_ Yes

No

Section ll- Financial Statement Findings

No matters were reported.

Section ill- Federal Award Findings

No matters were reported.
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GEORGE WASHINGTON REGIONAL COMMISSION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

PRELIMINARY
BUDGET
REVENUES
Local assessments
Intergovernmental

$
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Consultant and professional fees
Personnel
Occupancy
Equipment and maintenance
Transportation subsidies
Membership dues
Supplies
Public relations
Telephone
·Insurance
Conference, training and travel
Postage
Meetings
Miscellaneous

. .·.tl~
NET

ffVDGET ARY BASIS $

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

260,608
3,632,736
3,893,344

$ 260,608
3,632,736
3,893,344

$ 180,899
2,847,125
3,028,225

1,758,710
1,369,101
100,027
55,089
39,610
14,195
12,804
16,524
8,040
4,338
35,570
1,784
19,585
5,487
3,440,864

1,758,710
1,369,101
100,027
55,089
39,610
14,195
12,804
16,524
8,040
4,338
35,570
1,784
19,585
5,487
3,440,864

1,528,515
1,106,285
90,654
51,764
19,575
11,515
10.592
10,121
8,217
4,331
3,663
1,947
850
741
2,848,770

452,480

$ 452,480

$ 179,455

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
!UNFAVORABLE)
$

(79,709)
(785,611)
(865, 119)

230,195
262,816
9,373
3,325
20,035
2,680
2,212
6,403
(177)
7
31,907
(163)
18,735
4,746
592,094
$

(273,025)

Reconciliation of financial statements prepared under
generally accepted accounting principles

Net gain - budgetary basis

$ 179,455

Effect of depreciation expense not budgeted

(14,892)

Net income under generally accepted accounting principles

See accompanying notes.

$ 164,563
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7ai. Resolution 22-08: Accepting GWRC FY21 Audit Report

George Washington Regional Commission
406 Princess Anne Street
Fredericksburg, Virginia 22401
(540) 373-2890
Fax (540) 899-4808
www.gwregion.org

RESOLUTION NO. 22-08
ACCEPTING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING
JUNE 30, 2021
WHEREAS, the George Washington Regional Commission (“the Commission”) is the Planning
District Commission serving the City of Fredericksburg and Caroline, King George, Spotsylvania and
Stafford counties, known together as Planning District 16; and
WHEREAS, on an annual basis, the Commission engages an independent auditor to complete an
annual single audit and financial statements audit of the Commission’s finances in accordance with
applicable auditing and accounting standards; and
WHEREAS, Dunham, Aukamp & Rhodes, PLC was engaged as the independent auditor to
complete an audit of the Commission’s financial statements for FY21 and render an opinion as to the
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance with relevant laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements (FY21 Audit Report); and
WHEREAS, representatives from Dunham, Aukamp & Rhodes, PLC presented the results of FY21
Audit Report to the Commission on November 22, 2021; and
WHEREAS, Dunham, Aukamp & Rhodes, PLC advised that FY21 Audit Report concluded that the
Commission’s FY21 financial statements fairly present the Commission’s financial position as of June
30, 2021 and that the Commission has adequate controls in place to ensure accurate financial reporting
and compliance with relevant laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements; and
WHEREAS, based upon the Dunham, Aukamp & Rhodes, PLC presentation and a review of FY21
Audit Report, the Commission finds FY21 Audit Report to be acceptable.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the George Washington Regional Commission
that it hereby accepts FY21 Audit Report and authorizes the Executive Director to take all such actions
necessary and proper to carry out the purpose and intent of this resolution.
Adopted by the George Washington Regional Commission at its duly called meeting on November
22, 2021 in the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia, a quorum being present.
___________________________________________
Jeffrey Black, Chairman

CAROLINE COUNTY

CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG

KING GEORGE COUNTY

November 22, 2021

SPOTSYLVANIA COUNTY

STAFFORD COUNTY

7b. Monthly Financial Report (October 2021)

7:42 AM
11/17/21
Accrual Basis

George Washington Regional Commission

Balance Sheet
October 31, 2021
Oct 31, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
10000 · Cash - Business Checking
Total Checking/Savings

557,859.80
557,859.80

Accounts Receivable
11000 · A/R Accounts Receivable
Total Accounts Receivable
Total Current Assets

426,436.82
426,436.82
984,296.62

Fixed Assets
15000 · Furniture & Equipment
Total Fixed Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

32,064.77
32,064.77
1,016,361.39

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

67,197.01

Other Current Liabilities
24000 · Payroll Liabilities

57,601.43

25000 · Deferred Revenue
25100 · Deferred Locality Revenue Dues

103,500.67

25115 · Deferred Unsheltered Homelessne

11,147.77

25125 · Deferred Legislative Revenue

25,393.35

25127 · Deferred Rapp. River Basin Comm

31,888.95

25130 · Deferred LEPC Revenue

59,132.40

25146 · DRPT AdVANtage FY22

13,010.66

25150 · Fund Contribution
25155 · Caroline County Leased Parking
25160 · Deferred Grant Expenses/Revenue
Total 25000 · Deferred Revenue
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

5,745.00
435.00
-41,498.64
208,755.16
266,356.59
333,553.60
333,553.60
682,807.79
1,016,361.39
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7:34 AM
11/17/21
Accrual Basis

George Washington Regional Commission

Agencywide Income Statement Budget vs. Actual
October 2021

Oct 21

Budget

$ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
43400 · REVENUE
43410 · REV - Federal Contracts

61,344.31

101,181.43

-39,837.12

43420 · REV - State Contracts

66,913.07

572,761.98

-505,848.91

43430 · REV- Local Government Contracts

12,941.16

24,803.78

-11,862.62

43440 · REV - Miscellaneous Revenue

47,289.06

61,050.91

-13,761.85

0.00

0.00

0.00

188,487.60

759,798.10

-571,310.50

188,496.76

759,798.10

-571,301.34

188,496.76

759,798.10

-571,301.34

46,931.19

62,458.97

-15,527.78

106.01

-4,365.75

4,471.76

-292.85

29,727.14

-30,019.99

60900 · Direct Business Expenses

2,486.24

10,781.68

-8,295.44

62110 · Direct Consultant Services

32,845.63

64,629.59

-31,783.96

43450 · REV -State Technical Assistance
Total 43400 · REVENUE
44840 · Investments
Total Income
Gross Profit

9.16

Expense
60000 · Direct Expense
60100 · Salaries
60250 · Fringe Benefits
60300 · Indirect Expense Allocation

62800 · Facilities and Equipment

212.39

2,166.50

-1,954.11

62840 · Equip Rental and Maintenance

0.00

85.00

-85.00

65000 · Direct Operations

0.00

1,010.61

-1,010.61

45,308.66

518,272.38

-472,963.72

0.00

0.00

0.00

449.05

916.68

-467.63

2,851.89

2,008.34

843.55

88.53

316.67

-228.14

130,986.74

688,007.81

-557,021.07

65100 · Other Business Expenses
65200 · Contingency/Carry Over Funds
68300 · Travel and Meetings
68301 · Conferences & Conventions
68320 · Travel
Total 60000 · Direct Expense
66000 · Payroll Expenses

0.00

70000 · Overhead Expense
70025 · Salaries
70100 · Occupancy Expense

9,637.74
10,476.69

7,362.00

3,114.69

70225 · Telephone and Communications

693.83

679.00

14.83

70250 · Equipment Rental & Maintenance

861.74

2,758.00

-1,896.26

70275 · Furniture/Fixture Replacement

0.00

0.00

0.00

70290 · Equipment Purchase

0.00

0.00

0.00

70300 · Office Supplies
70325 · Postage, Shipping & Delivery
70330 · Books and Subscriptions
70340 · Membership

21.54

650.00

-628.46

171.15

171.15

0.00

0.00

16.00

-16.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1,500.00

1,500.00

0.00

70355 · Moving Expense

0.00

0.00

0.00

70360 · Meeting Expense

321.76

125.00

196.76

70350 · Professional Services
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11/17/21
Accrual Basis

George Washington Regional Commission

Agencywide Income Statement Budget vs. Actual
October 2021

Oct 21
70370 · Conferences

$ Over Budget

0.00

1,500.00

-1,500.00

196.66

125.00

71.66

70390 · Other Business Expense

0.00

0.00

0.00

70400 · Insurance Expense

0.00

0.00

0.00

840.34

163.33

677.01

70460 · Public Relations

0.00

200.00

-200.00

70470 · Consultants

0.00

0.00

0.00

70490 · Contingency

0.00

0.00

0.00

Total 70000 · Overhead Expense

24,721.45

15,249.48

9,471.97

75030 · Fringe Benefits

32,788.57

42,390.73

-9,602.16

188,496.76

745,648.02

-557,151.26

0.00

14,150.08

-14,150.08

0.00

14,150.08

-14,150.08

70380 · Travel

70450 · Bank Fees

Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income
Net Income

Budget
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Monthly Financial Report : George Washinton Regional Commission

Summary Statement of Financial Position

Oct-21

Days Covered by Net Liquid Assets

Actual
100

Current Assets

984,297

Current Liabilities

494,307

Working Capital

489,989

80

Days Cover

60
40

32,065

Fixed and Long Term Assets

Target Days

20

522,054

Term Liabilities

0
Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22

-

Equity

Receivables Aging Profile
100%

Ratios and Analysis
Working Capital Ratio

Overdue Receivables

Target

1.82

1.20

$

%

162,303

38.06%

-

Overdue Payables

Actual

0.00%

Variance
0.62

80%

Three months or
more overdue

60%

Two months overdue

40%

50.00%
25.00%

11.94%
25.00%

One month overdue

20%
0%
Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22

Current

Cashflow Budget, Actual and Forecast

Qtrly Dues & Other Localities RRBC

$600,000

Payables Aging Profile

$500,000

100%

$400,000

80%

Three months or more
overdue

Budget

60%

Two months overdue

Actual

40%

Latest Forecast

20%

$300,000
$200,000
$100,000

One month overdue

0%
Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22

$-

Current

Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22

-$100,000

Variance Explanations and Commentary
Accounts Receivable: 90+ days: $108K ( $ 36.6K CZM; $20.4K Rideshare; $ 17.5K MPO; $ 15.4K DOF; $ 7.6K SPR; $6.3K VHSP; $ 1.8K Strategic Plan & $2.4K Misc. ) 60+ days: $0.00; 30+days: 54.2K ($16.3K Rideshare;
$ 13.4K 5303 FY21; $ 8K CZM; $ 4K VHSP; $3.5K WIP III; $3.1K DOF; $2.3K TA Grant; $ 1.8K SPR & 1.7K Misc.)
Current: $ 264.1K
Accounts Payable: Current: $67.1K.
The amounts includes 1 outstanding Stafford County Payroll.

Monthly Financial Report : George Washinton Regional Commission

Current Month

Divisional Results

Year to Date

Economic & Environmental DevelopmentActual

Budget

Variance

Actual

Budget

Variance

Income
Expenses
Surplus (Deficit)

519,759
513,926
5,833

(480,517)
(474,684)
(5,833)

322,867
322,867
0

2,053,915
2,030,582
23,333

(1,731,048)
(1,707,715)
(23,333)

Actual

Budget

Variance

Actual

Budget

Variance

23,565
23,565
(0)

53,586
53,559
27

(30,022)
(29,994)
(28)

130,761
130,762
-1

254,113
256,196
(2,083)

(123,352)
(125,434)
2,082

Actual

Budget

Variance

Actual

Budget

Variance

Income
Expenses
Surplus (Deficit)

50,713
50,713
(0)

71,711
71,753
(42)

(20,998)
(21,040)
42

198,483
198,483
0

286,844
286,719
125

(88,361)
(88,236)
(125)

Human Services

Actual

Budget

Variance

Actual

Budget

Variance

21,119
20,286
833

866
1,700
(833)

87,117
87,117
0

95,159
101,825
(6,667)

(8,042)
(14,708)
6,667

Budget

Variance

Actual

Budget

Variance

6,042
6,042
(0)

(3,410)
(3,410)
0

18,252
18,252
0

24,167
24,167
(0)

(5,915)
(5,915)
0

GW RideConnect
Income
Expenses
Surplus (Deficit)
MPO/PL

Income
Expenses
Surplus (Deficit)

39,242
39,242
0

21,985
21,985
-

SP Rural Transportation

Actual

Income
Expenses
Surplus (Deficit)

2,632
2,632
0

Completed 15.71% of work budgeted through October 2021.

Completed 51.45% of work budgeted through October 2021.

Completed 69.19% of work budgeted through October 2021.

Completed 91.54% of work through October 2021.

Completed 75.52% of work through October 2021.

George Washington Regional Commission - Cash Flow 10/31/21
Beginning Cash on Hand

Cash In

Cash Out

Profit / Loss

Ending Cash on Hand

392,407.61

311,759.57

146,307.38

165,452.19

557,859.80

Cash Flow
600,000
500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000

100,000
0
JUL

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

Cash In

Cash Out

JAN

FEB

MAR

APR

MAI

Ending Cash on Hand

Profit / Loss

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Payable

200,000

305,496.24

67,197.01

150,000

100,000
50,000

51%
received

0
-50,000

-100,000
JUL

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

JAN

FEB

MAR

APR

MAI

JUN

67,197.01

69%
paid

JUN

8a. Draft GWRC Strategic Plan

MEMORANDUM
TO:
FROM:
DATE:
RE:

George Washington Regional Commission

Kimball Payne & Jack Tuttle, Berkley Group Executive Managers
November 17, 2021

GWRC Draft Regional Strategic Plan

We are submitting for the Commission’s consideration a draft of the GWRC Regional Strategic Plan,
2022-2027. The draft plan has been prepared with input from GWRC staff, Commission members,
regional chief administrative officers, partner agencies, and other regional stakeholders.
With the Commission’s permission, the draft regional strategic plan is ready for submission to the
Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) and to the localities, as required by
The Regional Cooperation Act.
The Code of Virginia, §15.2-4209, Paragraph C, states:

“Before the strategic plan is adopted, it shall be submitted to the Department of
Housing and Community Development and to the governing body of each locality
within the district for a period of not less than thirty days prior to a hearing to be held
by the planning district commission thereon, after notice as provided in § 15.2-2204.
Each such local governing body shall make recommendations to the planning district
commission on or before the date of the hearing with respect to the effect of the plan
within its locality. The Department of Housing and Community Development shall
notify the planning district commission prior to the hearing as to whether the
proposed strategic plan conflicts with plans of adjacent planning districts.”

We ask that the Commission authorize the submission of the draft regional strategic plan to
DHCD and the localities and the scheduling of a public hearing on the plan for January 24,
2022. Concurrently, the draft plan will be placed on the GWRC website for review and
comment by interested parties.

Comments or suggestions received from DHCD, the localities, or other interested parties can
be considered for inclusion in or amendment of the draft plan prior to its adoption in
January 2022.

We will be available during your meeting on November 22nd to answer any questions.

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
P.O. BOX 181 BRIDGEWATER, VIRGINIA 22812
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I.

Introduction
A.

Organizational Background

Tracing its origins to 1961 and officially chartered in 1970, the George Washington Regional
Commission (GWRC) is the planning district commission (PDC) established by the General
Assembly for the region comprising the City of Fredericksburg and the counties of Caroline, King
George, Spotsylvania, and Stafford, known collectively as Planning District 16 (PD-16).
GWRC is responsible for encouraging and facilitating local government cooperation in
addressing, on a regional basis, problems of greater than local significance, and provides a
broad array of planning and support services for the benefit of the nearly 400,000 residents of
PD-16. Current areas of focus include regional economic development, environmental services,
human services, transportation demand management, rural and urban transportation planning,
and special project coordination. GWRC is either solely responsible for or provides staff
support to sister agencies in fulfilling important regional activities.
B.

Powers and Responsibilities

Planning district commissions were first created in 1968 when the Virginia General Assembly
adopted the Regional Cooperation Act (Code of Virginia, Title 15.2, Chapter 42). By State Code,
the purpose of a planning district commission is “to encourage and facilitate local government
cooperation and state-local cooperation in addressing on a regional basis problem of greater
than local significance.” The PDC is also charged with promoting, “the orderly and efficient
development of the physical, social and economic elements of the district by planning, and
encouraging and assisting localities to plan, for the future.” As a “public body corporate and
politic,” the PDC has broad powers and authority, similar to local government, to act in fulfilling
its responsibilities to the region that it serves.
One of the responsibilities of a PDC is to prepare a regional strategic plan. According to State
Code:
“The plan shall concern those elements which are of importance in more than
one of the localities within the district, as distinguished from matters of only local
importance. The plan shall include regional goals and objectives, strategies to
meet those goals and objectives and mechanisms for measuring progress toward
the goals and objectives. The strategic plan shall include those subjects
necessary to promote the orderly and efficient development of the physical,
social and economic elements of the district such as transportation, housing,
economic development and environmental management. The plan may be
divided into parts or sections as the planning district commission deems
desirable. In developing the regional strategic plan, the planning district
commission shall seek input from a wide range of organizations in the region,
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including local governing bodies, the business community and citizen
organizations.”
The first regional strategic plan for PD-16 was developed and adopted by the Rappahannock
Area Development Commission (RADCO), GWRC’s predecessor, in 2006. The plan was last
revised and updated in 2014.
C.

Plan Development

Development of the regional strategic plan started with a briefing to the Commission in June
2021. During that discussion the requirements, process and timetable for plan development
were reviewed. Additional meetings were held with the region’s chief administrative officers
(County Administrators and City Manager) and with GWRC staff.
To obtain views and perspectives of regional stakeholders on GWRC’s strengths, weaknesses,
opportunities, and threats (SWOT) a survey was developed and pushed out to elected and
appointed officials, partner agencies, and other regional organizations. Interested parties were
also provided the opportunity to complete the survey through the GWRC website. A total of
154 people responded to the survey and included Commission staff members, elected officials,
chief administrative officers, community partners, and other stakeholders and interested
parties. A summary of the results, including all written comments, was provided to the
Commission.
Survey results informed the following observations:
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

Just over 50% of respondents considered GWRC’s current statements of Mission and
Vision (from the 2013/2014 Strategic Plan) to align with GWRC today and in the
future, with the remainder responding either “not sure" or “no.”
A larger majority of 63% believed that the current statement of Core Regional Values
aligned with GWRC now.
Only 28% believed GWRC had the right governance structure and right level of local
government participation to fulfill its mission/vision, with 52% “unsure” and 20%
responding “no."
54% of respondents considered GWRC to be a strong partner in the community and a
resource to advance regional initiatives, with 31% “unsure” and only 15% responding
“no.” To nearly the same degree respondents considered GWRC a leader in convening
conversations about matters of regional importance.
Correspondingly, 74% said GWRC should be a leader in identifying solutions to
regional issues, with only 5% saying “no.”
Only 43% agreed, and 57% disagreed, with the statement "the region’s localities often
work together to find common ground when solving regional problems.”
In addition to being asked in what areas GWRC performed well, and where it could
improve, respondents were asked to force rank the relative level of regional
3

importance for 14 issues. The highest-ranking issues were the following:
transportation, broadband, continuum of care and affordable housing, economic
development, education opportunities, and workforce development and job creation.
The lowest ranking issues were tourism, hazard mitigation, inter-operability of
emergency communications, and telecommunications infrastructure.
The plan development process also included a review of the most current strategic plans adopted
by planning district commissions in Virginia. That review revealed a patchwork of approaches,
with a majority of PDCs completing a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS)
instead of or in addition to a regional strategic plan. Because PD-16 is not eligible for federal
funding from the U.S. Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration there is
no requirement for a CEDS. Of the PDCs that have published a regional strategic plan, two types
were evident: those that emphasized vision and priorities for their geographic region and those
that focused on the future of the PDC as an organization. GWRC’s regional strategic plan will
continue to focus on both aspects.
Survey results, the review of other regional strategic plans and the activities of the various PDCs,
and a working paper regarding the mission, vision, values, and strategic focus areas were shared
with Commission members and chief administrative officers during a half-day retreat in October
2021. Input and feedback shared during the retreat were used to draft the strategic plan.
In November 2021, the draft regional strategic plan was presented to the Commission, forwarded
to the Department of Housing and Community Development for review, and made available for
public comment. A public hearing was held in January 2022 and the plan was subsequently
adopted.
II.

The Regional Strategic Plan

This regional strategic plan for PD-16 will guide the George Washington Regional Commission
for the next five years, through fiscal year 2027. While its mission, vision, and core values are
expected to remain constant, the biennial priorities will be subject to annual review.
Furthermore, additional topical focus areas, consistent with the mission of GWRC, could be
added in response to new challenges or opportunities.
A.

Mission of GWRC
Facilitating collaborative action for the wellbeing of the region.

B.

GWRC’s Vision for the Region
Building upon its unique geography and demographics, this beautiful and historic region
will become better preserved, and more resilient, healthy, just, prosperous, and vibrant.
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C.

Vision for GWRC
The region’s convener of choice, recognized for analyzing, devising, and implementing
workable solutions to shared challenges.

D.

Core Values
To uphold and promote:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

E.

Regional solutions for regional issues
Collaborative interjurisdictional leadership
Energized citizen and stakeholder engagement
Professional expertise and technical competence
Efficient, effective, and equitable program management
Ethical, honest, efficient, and open government at all levels
Respect for individual freedoms and constitutional rights
Putting the region first while respecting local prerogatives

Long Term Aspirations and Biennial Priorities by Topical Focus Area
1.

Developing the Economy

Long Term Aspiration
We aspire to see a more robust and diversified economy that is more resilient, supporting high
paying jobs and thriving local businesses, and we will work in active support of regional
economic development projects.
Biennial Priorities
•
•
•
•

Support GO Virginia Region 6 in developing a new Growth & Diversification Plan
(adoption by the Region 6 Council in January 2022).
Support GO Virginia Region 6, in conjunction with the Fredericksburg Regional Alliance,
with the implementation of the new Growth and Diversification Plan.
Lead regional partners in implementing the strategies identified in the Good Jobs Here
Strategic Plan.
Facilitate a review of the economic development plans of member localities and the
identification of potential opportunities for efficiencies through coordinated
governmental efforts (completion by December 2022).
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•

Collect and maintain demographic, economic, and other data concerning the region and
member localities, and act as a state data center affiliate in cooperation with the
Virginia Employment Commission (ongoing).
2.

Preserving the Environment

Long Term Aspiration
We aspire to see a region using land wisely and growing thoughtfully, better appreciating the
natural beauty of its piedmont and coastal realm, working to protect its natural resources (land,
air, and water), taking actions to minimize the impacts of natural disasters, and preserving its
cultural heritage and historic resources.
Biennial Priorities
•
•

•

Update the Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan by January 2023.
Continue to work with the Environmental Managers Technical Committee to implement
the strategies outlined in the Environmental Services Strategic Plan, specifically those
related to resilience and water quality, through the annual Chesapeake Bay and Coastal
Zone Management work plans.
Continue to support the Plant Central Rappahannock Natives Campaign.
3.

Building Community Health

Long Term Aspiration
We aspire to see a region committed to greater regional collaboration and joint action to build
a healthy community, working especially in the areas of homelessness, affordable housing, and
community health.
Biennial Priorities
•
•
•
•

Continue to support the Fredericksburg Regional Continuum of Care in carrying out its
mission to prevent and end homelessness.
Support efforts to implement creative solutions identified in the Housing Affordability
Study and Action Plan.
Assess GWRC’s role in other regional community health efforts.
Continue to support local Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP) allocations.
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4.

Facilitating Transportation Solutions

Long Term Aspiration
We aspire to develop a regional transportation system with fiscally sound short- and long-range
transportation plans that identify multimodal strategies to move people and goods more safely
and efficiently, alleviate traffic congestion, and address the needs of rural communities.
Biennial Priorities
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

F.

Develop a new GWRideConnect strategic plan by December 2022.
Enhance local ridership options through the Commute!VA ridesharing app.
Support FAMPO in completing the East-West Mobility Study by 2023.
Support FAMPO’s completion of the 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan and
associated air quality conformity assessment by March 2022.
Support FAMPO’s development of the FY24-27 Transportation Improvement Program to
ensure limited transportation dollars are programmed effectively.
Complete current rural transportation projects, including the Ladysmith Bike/Ped Plan
and King George Transit Feasibility Study, and maintain the 2050 Rural Long Range
Transportation Plan.
Initiate a Regional Freight Summit to address freight network issues with industry, local,
state, and federal partners in 2022.
Enhancing Organizational Responsiveness and Effectiveness

GWRC’s strengths are its ability to provide professional research and analysis of complex
regional issues, to serve as a convenor for regional discussions, to assist in planning regional
solutions, and to provide expertise in seeking and managing funding for regional programs.
GWRC’s service as the fiscal agent for regional programs reduces costs and increases efficiency.
To sustain and enhance its ability to provide management expertise in support of current and
future regional programs GWRC will work to improve in the following areas:
•

The appropriate governance structure, organizational structure, and staff resources to
manage current topical focus area programs and to respond to evolving issues identified
by the Commission.

•

The adoption of best practices, policies, and procedures to ensure efficient and effective
operations, particularly in the areas of financial management and human resources.

•

The development of a protocol, including appropriate guiding principles, for
determining if GWRC should initiate or take on the management of a new program to
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address a regional issue on behalf of two or more localities. (e.g., Before the
establishment of new programs under current or new topical focus areas, an analysis of
the staffing and other resources necessary to support the program will be conducted.)
•

Ongoing, effective, and equitable engagement with member localities, regional
partners, and the public at large.

•

Building relationships with member localities to promote an understanding of their
needs and how GWRC is able to provide assistance in a cost-effective and efficient
manner.

Organizational Action Steps
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Determine office space by March 2022.
Develop a new commission member orientation manual and process
Complete new commission member on-boarding by April 2022.
Implement a career progression structure for GWRC staff positions by July 2022.
Create a full-time environmental services staff position by July 2022.
Develop a marketing and communications plan to include personal outreach,
newsletters, social media, an enhanced web presence, etc., to elevate GWRC’s
profile in the community by July 2022.
Create financial sustainability targets related to fund balance, cash flow, and
local funding by December 2022.
Update the Employee Handbook to better align with Stafford County’s payroll
and benefits administration and new laws and/or regulations by December 2022.
Develop a process for two or more localities to initiate a new program managed
by GWRC on their behalf by December 2022.
Develop a Financial Policy and Procedures Manual in stages, with completion by
December 2023. Implement efficiencies identified throughout manual
development.

III. Conclusion
A.

Regional Strategic Plan Implementation

To enable concrete and timely implementation, the Regional Strategic Plan provides two main
components:
-

First, nineteen Biennial Priorities in four Focus Areas prescribe the near-term
objectives of the George Washington Regional Commission. (Priorities which require
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a time horizon longer than two years are expressed in terms of what needs to be
done during the next two years to accomplish or advance the longer-term
objective.)
-

Second, ten Organizational Action Steps direct how the Regional Commission will
grow and change as an organization to accomplish its objectives.

The time frame for implementation in the near future is:
-

Adoption of the Regional Strategic Plan in first quarter of Calendar Year 2022.

-

The statements of Long-Term Aspiration for each Focus Area cover at least the next
five years, though June 30, 2027, or until updated or amended.

-

The Biennial Priorities identify specific actions or targets to be accomplished by the
end of the current biennium, that is by June 30, 2024, if not sooner. When Biennial
Priorities describe actions which are expected to be ongoing beyond the two-year
time horizon, they will be restated and/or updated in future updates to the Regional
Strategic Plan as described below.

-

The Organizational Action Steps prescribe specific actions needed to improve
responsiveness and effectiveness of the organization over the next two years,
through June 30, 2024, with more precise target completion dates within that time
frame.

B.

Annual Work Plan, Budget, Assessment and Reporting

The Regional Strategic Plan is designed to be integrated within the Commission’s existing
system of annual work plans, annual budgets, and annual reports. The Plan is intended to drive
and to guide priorities in work plans and budgets, and to provide a framework for assessing
agency performance and reporting agency progress to the community.
Importantly and intentionally, the four Topical Focus Areas in the Plan align with the major
categories in the Commission’s annual work plan and budget. Moreover, the Focus Areas
provide a consistent template for organizing the Commission’s Annual Report. The following
steps show the flow:
-

Use newly adopted Regional Strategic Plan Biennial Priorities to guide the
Commission’s Work Plan and Budget preparation for both Fiscal Year 2023 and
Fiscal Year 2024.

-

Adopt GWRC Work Plans and Budgets annually for the July 1 start of each fiscal
year.
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-

Adopt and publish the Commission’s Annual Report during the first quarter of each
fiscal year. The Annual Report should cover accomplishments in the prior year,
and plans for the coming year, all aligned with the Regional Strategic Plan.

By annually restating the Long-Term Aspirational statements in the Annual Report, and by
reporting what has been accomplished and not accomplished relative to the Biennial Priorities
and Organizational Action Steps, the Commission will transparently hold itself accountable for
its performance to its member jurisdictions, its partners and to the public.
Useful strategic plans are iterative and changeable, not static. The world changes and the
community changes. New opportunities arise, as do new threats. Good strategic thinking can
actually be impaired by an overly rigid “decide once, then execute” strategic planning
approach. However, useful strategic plans also help agencies to say “no” to new ideas or
proposals that are inconsistent with the organization’s mission. New activities that do not
align with the strategic plan can be identified as such, acknowledging that they divert
attention and resources from agreed upon priorities.
C.

Strategic Planning Cycle

Unfortunately, the fate of many strategic plans is to sit on the shelf largely forgotten. By
following the steps described above, this Regional Strategic Plan will not only not be forgotten
but will be integrated into the Commission’s ongoing business. Equally important is for the Plan
to remain relevant and timely by using it to assess performance and regularly re-examining the
Plan itself. This can be done every two years by taking the following steps:
-

Assess agency performance over the past two years against the adopted Regional
Strategic Plan. To what extent were Biennial Priorities and Organizational Action
Steps accomplished? (This would happen next in the summer and fall of 2024,
concurrent with the preparation of the Annual Report for that year.)

-

Concurrently, revisit the Long-Term Aspirational statements, as well as statements
of Mission, Vision and Core Values, to determine if any change is needed. It is
unlikely that any change to these foundational statements will be required for
many years.

-

Revise the Regional Strategic Plan’s Biennial Priorities and Organizational Action
Steps to cover the next two years, that is FY 2025 and 2026, through June 30, 2026.
It should be expected that these statements will be changed significantly every two
years.

-

Repeat the above actions every two years going forward.
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In this way the George Washington Regional Commission’s Regional Strategic Plan will be
evergreen, remaining useful and reenergized to guide the Commission in its work for years to
come.
IV.

Acknowledgements

Funding for the development of this regional strategic plan was provided by a Capacity Building
Grant from Virginia Housing (formerly the Virginia Housing Development Authority).
Appreciation is expressed to the commission members, appointed officials, and staff who
worked on the development of this regional strategic plan.
GWRC Members
Caroline County
The Honorable Jeffrey S. Black, Board of Supervisors, Western Caroline District
The Honorable Jeffery M. Sili, Board of Supervisors, Bowling Green District
City of Fredericksburg
The Honorable Jason Graham, City Council, Ward 1
The Honorable Matthew J. Kelly, City Council, At-Large
King George County
The Honorable Cathy Binder, Board of Supervisors, Shiloh District
The Honorable Ann C. Cupka, Board of Supervisors, At-Large
Spotsylvania County
The Honorable Timothy J. McLaughlin, Board of Supervisors, Chancellor District
The Honorable Chris Yakabouski, Board of Supervisors, Battlefield District
The Honorable David Ross (Alternate), Board of Supervisors, Courtland District
Stafford County
The Honorable Meg Bohmke, Board of Supervisors, Falmouth District
The Honorable Tom Coen, Board of Supervisors, George Washington District
The Honorable Cindy C. Lamb (Alternate), Board of Supervisors, Aquia District
The Honorable Crystal Vanuch (Alternate), Board of Supervisors, Rock Hill District
Chief Administrative Officers
Tim Baroody, Fredericksburg City Manager
Charles Cully, Caroline County Administrator
Chris Miller, King George County Administrator
Ed Petrovitch, Spotsylvania County Administrator
11

Fred Presley, Stafford County Administrator
GWRC Staff
Chip Boyles, Executive Director
Kate Gibson, Interim Executive Director/Deputy Director
Michele Dooling, Director of Finance & Personnel
Jennifer Morgan, Economic Development Coordinator
Anne Marie Kluempen, Program Coordinator
Reba Gagne, Economic Development Intern
Samantha Shoukas, Continuum of Care Program Director
Todd Rump, Continuum of Care Intern
Mike West, Continuum of Care VISTA
Leigh Anderson, GWRideConnect Assistant Director
JoAnna Roberson, GWRideConnect Support & Date Entry Specialist
Kim Mitchell, GWRideConnect Support & Outreach Coordinator
Ian Ollis, Director of Transportation Planning/FAMPO Administrator
Stacey Feindt, Public Involvement/Title VI Coordinator
Kari Barber, Transportation Planner
Jordan Chandler, Transportation Planner
Adam Hager, Transportation Planner
Matthew Lehane, Transportation Planner
Lana Bizeau, Transportation Planning Intern
Strategic Planning Consultants
The Berkley Group
Kimball Payne
Jackson Tuttle

12

9a. Resolution 22-06: Adopting the George Washington Region Resilience Plan

George Washington Regional Commission
406 Princess Anne Street
Fredericksburg, Virginia 22401
(540) 373-2890
Fax (540) 899-4808
www.gwregion.org

RESOLUTION NO. 22-06
ADOPTING THE GEORGE WASHINGTON REGION RESILIENCE PLAN
WHEREAS, the George Washington Regional Commission (“the Commission”) is the Planning
District Commission serving the City of Fredericksburg and Caroline, King George, Spotsylvania and
Stafford counties, known together as Planning District 16; and
WHEREAS, Commission staff identified the need for a regional resilience plan, particularly as a
completed resilience plan is a requirement to apply for and receive funding from the Project category
of the Virginia Community Flood Preparedness Fund; and
WHEREAS, the Commission was able to accommodate this work product under its existing Coastal
Zone Management Advancing Ecosystem and Community Resilience grant; and
WHEREAS, the Commission, with support from The Berkley Group, drafted the Resilience Plan,
which was distributed to localities for review and feedback and submitted to the Department of
Conservation and Recreation (DCR) for approval; and
WHEREAS, DCR approved the plan on October 4.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the George Washington Regional Commission
that it hereby adopts the George Washington Region Resilience Plan.
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Executive Summary
The George Washington Regional Commission (GWRC)
is the Planning District Commission established by
legislation in 1969 by the General Assembly and
chartered in 1970 for the region that is home to the
City of Fredericksburg and the counties of Caroline,
King George, Spotsylvania and Stafford, known
collectively as “Planning District 16.” Caroline County
includes the incorporated towns of Bowling Green and
Port Royal.
GWRC is currently home to 376,649 residents. Planning
District 16 is the fourth-largest and the fastest-growing
of the Commonwealth’s 21 planning districts. GWRC
land drains to the Potomac River to the north and the
Rappahannock River in the center. Portions of
Stafford and King George Counties are bordered by the
Potomac River. Portions of all the localities touch the
Rappahannock River. Portions of Caroline County have
stream front on the Mattaponi and the Pamunkey
Rivers, tributaries to the York River. All these
waterways drain to the Chesapeake Bay.
Immediate, quantifiable resiliency related considerations for the region consist of sea level rise and
extreme weather events. While resiliency considerations and priorities for every locality within the region
will slightly differ, as will the capacity to address them, planning for regional resiliency can help reduce
future disaster related response and recovery cost. This Resilience Plan will equip the George Washington
Regional Commission and localities in the Region with a deeper understanding of priority actions that can
be implemented to improve the region’s resilience to hazards.
This Plan reviewed GWRC’s resiliency needs, and found that the natural hazards identified to be the
highest priority for the region include: Drought, Severe Weather (including Extreme Heat, Nor’easters,
Thunderstorms, Tornadoes, and Winter Storms), Sinkholes and Landslides, and Dam Failure, all of which
are likely to increase or be affected as a result of climate change. The Region has multiple resiliency assets
including greenways, ecological cores, rare and priority species, floodplains, rivers and waterways, and
cultural resources. These resources should be protected to effectively promote resilience throughout the
entire region. Currently, 33.8% of the population in the Region is ALICE (Asset Limited, Income
Constrained, Employed) and 7.2% of the population is disabled. In addition, four (4) census tracts in
Caroline County, two (2) in Spotsylvania County, and one (1) in Stafford County are designated as Mildly
Socially Vulnerable according to the VIMS Social Vulnerability Index. Two (2) census tracts in
Fredericksburg are designated Highly Vulnerable. These populations in particular should be focused on in
order to promote economic and social resiliency.
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The George Washington Region should focus on the following needs to support future resiliency goals:
1. Defining what resilience means to GWRC.
2. Creating flood evacuation or snow evacuation plans for jurisdictions within the region.
3. Obtaining data and establishing a plan to address roadways that are prone to flooding within the
GW region.
4. Shoring up public and private lands that are prone to recurrent flooding or will be at higher flood
risk according to sea level rise and climate change models.
5. Identifying disproportionately at-risk (otherwise known as “front line”) communities that need
further assistance using environmental and socio-economic variables.
6. Creating a plan to strategically address the Environmental Justice populations in the GW Region.
7. Updating GIS and mapping capacity to serve the public and assist with regional planning efforts,
especially related to flooding hazards and flood zones. Stafford County’s GIS portal (Stafford GIS)
can serve as a guide.
8. Mapping dam inundation zones in all counties and mapping high-risk dams throughout the region
to protect human life and property.
9. Filling in data gaps in soil erodibility as this will impact flooding and development considerations
regionally. Fredericksburg, King George, and Spotsylvania do not have data on soil erodibility
readily available to the public.
10. Identification and potential mapping of regional repetitive and severe repetitive loss structures.
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Purpose and Introduction
This plan seeks to increase resiliency across the GWRC region by addressing threats to human life and
property from flooding, severe weather, and other natural events. It attempts to do so with 5 major
criteria in mind: being project based, with projects focused on flood control and resilience; incorporating
nature-based solutions to the maximum extent possible; including all parts of the GW Region regardless
of race or socioeconomic status; coordination within the region to achieve goals based on mutuallyagreed-upon timelines; and being based on the best-available science. Each of these criteria are outlined
in this or other regional plans here:
1. It is project-based with projects focused on flood control and resilience.
See the GWRC Environmental Services Strategic Plan, detailed on pg. 49 of this Resilience Plan.
2. It incorporates nature-based infrastructure to the maximum extent possible.
The solutions and planning principles outlined in this Resilience Plan and the projects listed in the
Environmental Services Strategic Plan incorporates nature-based stormwater and flooding BMPs to the
greatest extent possible.
3. It includes considerations of all parts of a locality regardless of socioeconomics or race.
This Plan considers solutions that involve every member of the community at every step of the process,
and seeks to identify and target the GW Region’s most vulnerable communities. See “Social Assets” on
pg. 12 of this plan for a detailed breakdown as well as “Appendix G: Considering the Whole Community”
on pg. 78.
4. It includes coordination with other local and inter-jurisdictional projects, plans, and activities and
has a clearly articulated timeline or phasing for plan implementation.
The Environmental Services Strategic Plan has detailed timelines and cost estimates for projects
throughout the region.
5. Is based on the best available science, and incorporates climate change, sea level rise, storm
surge (where appropriate), and current flood maps.
This plan attempts to quantify the resiliency challenges that climate change will bring using the best
available data and science. See “Natural Hazards”, pg. 16, which includes specific plan elements related
to flooding, climate change, flood maps, and vulnerability to sea level, with specific considerations for
each locality in the region.
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Definition of Coastal Resiliency
The definition of resilience for the George Washington Regional Commission was developed through
adaptations of national, state and local language.
National: The ability to prepare and plan for, absorb, recover from, and more successfully adapt to
adverse events; the ability to adapt to changing conditions and withstand—and rapidly recover from—
disruption due to emergencies (NOAA).
Virginia: The ability of natural and built coastal environments to withstand and recover from hazardous
events such as extreme weather, storm surge, and recurrent flooding; focusing on increasing resilience to
sea level rise and natural hazards (including extreme storms and riverine flooding) with structural and
natural infrastructure projects and programs.
GWRC Strategic Plan Definition: Reduce or prevent losses of coastal habitat, life, and property caused by
shoreline erosion, storms, relative sea level rise, and other coastal hazards in a manner that balances
environmental and economic considerations (VA CZM Goal 4).
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Existing Plans, Programs, and Data
Regional Plans
Regional Green infrastructure Plan (2017)
This plan documents the status of green infrastructure implementation, discusses local government tools
for supporting green infrastructure implementation, displays successful case studies, and provides
recommendations for future implementation. GWRC concluded that developing a collaborative approach
based on green infrastructure will be the best method to achieving voluntary actions. This plan relates to
the resiliency of the region through the safety of the built and natural environments.
Environmental Management Strategic Plan (2020)
The purpose of the strategic plan is to identify the region’s environmental service’s needs, coordinate the
requirements of related programs, create a list of strategies, and develop an implementation plan. The
items in this plan transcend the commission’s environmental services department to interact with
economic development, human services, and transportation programs. Through the planning process
GWRC works with regional stakeholders to develop a multi-year strategic plan for coastal zone
management that aligns with the goals and focus areas of the CZM Program, and responds to the needs
of the local jurisdictions of Planning District 16. The conceptual development and prioritization of projects
ranges from planning activities to “shovel-ready” designs.
GO Virginia Region 6 Growth and Diversification Plan Update (2019)
The purpose of GO Virginia is to create more and higher paying jobs through incentivized collaboration,
primarily from out-of-state revenue, which diversifies and strengthens regional economies. This update to
the 2017 plan identifies economic trends and drivers, priority industry clusters, and the demand for a
trained workforce and then provides investment strategies and recommendations to strengthen the
region’s economy, including establishing a Center for Resiliency Innovation.
Good Jobs Here Strategic Plan (2020)
Good Jobs Here is a broad-based effort to create, measure, execute, and foster economic growth and job
creation in the Fredericksburg region. Utilizing a GO Virginia grant, GWRC partnered with leading local
organizations to create a shared understanding of current data, analysis, strengths and opportunities for
this region.
Septic System Study (2018)
This study determined that the local health district does not have the capacity or tools to properly
document septic systems and pump outs as required in 5-year intervals by the CBPA. The study
recommended developing a pilot regional program that would aid local governments and VHD better
coordinate respective efforts to monitor and maintain septic systems. This study relates to the resilience
of the region through human and environmental health.
FAMPO Community Engagement and Equity Plan (2021)
FAMPO developed procedures and guidelines to evaluate existing equity, community engagement,
environmental justice, and limited English proficiency inclusion in the region’s transportation planning
process. These procedures might be beneficial in planning for the resilience of region as it creates a
consistent procedure every locality could adopt.

5

Water Quality Assessment Integrated Report (2020)
DEQ identified impaired waterways in Virginia collected from 2013 through 2018. The implementation
plans local to GWRC all address bacteria impairments:
 Carter Run, Great Run, Deep Run, Thumb Run - Stafford (2006)
 Upper York - Spotsylvania (2013)
 Fairview Beach - King George (2016)
 Mattaponi River - Caroline, Spotsylvania (2020)
GWRC Hazard Mitigation Plan (2017)
This Hazard Mitigation Plan is the sum of many actions that can be taken at the local and regional level,
setting goals, developing strategies, and outlining tasks and schedules to reduce or eliminate long-term
risk to human life and property from a variety of natural hazards. This plan relates to the resilience of the
region through identifying natural hazard priorities, and the safety of the built and natural environments.
APPENDIX B lists the resiliency related goals, objective, and projects of the plans mentioned above, from
which resiliency projects can be aggregated.

Programs
Watershed Implementation Plan (WIP)
Virginia developed a Watershed Implementation Plan in ongoing phases (2010, 2012, and 2019) to
incorporate strategies to reduce nutrient pollution in our waterways. The Chesapeake Bay Total
Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) is designed to ensure that all pollution control measures needed to fully
restore the Bay and its tidal rivers are in place by 2025. Specifically in Virginia, the TMDL calls for a 20.5%
reduction in Sediment delivered to the bay. This will be achieved through stormwater Best Management
Practice (BMPs). GWRC and other communities across Virginia, in cooperation with the Virginia
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), have been developing strategies to reduce nutrient
pollution in our waterways through the Chesapeake Bay TMDL Phase III WIPs.
In 2019, the state compiled and provided PDCs with plans that recommended voluntary implementation
of the following BMPs for the GWRC region by 2025:
















Nutrient Management Plan, 37,212 acres
Conservation Landscaping practices, 1,250 acres
Dry Extended Detention Pans, 9,154 acres
Dry Detention Ponds, 4,926 acres
Wet ponds and Wetlands, 8,205 acres
Infiltration Practices, 6,007 acres
Filtering Practices, 5,228 acres
Tree Planting - Canopy, 648 acres
Forest Buffer and Planting, 360 acres
Forest Harvesting Practices, 6,882 acres
Runoff Reduction, 177 acres
Bioretention/Rain Gardens, 2,522 acres
Vegetated Open Channels, 262 acres
Bioswale, 36 acres
Impervious Surface Reduction, 1,497 acres

















Permeable Pavement, 7 acres
Stormwater Treatment, 1 acre
Erosion and Sediment Control Level 2, 2,874 acres
Non-Urban Stream Restoration, 23,983 feet
Urban Stream Restoration, 8,032 feet
Urban Shoreline Management, 1,119 feet
Non-urban Shoreline Management, 1,019 feet
Urban Shoreline Erosion Control Vegetated, 399 feet
Septic Pumping, 9,469 units
Septic Denitrification - Conventional, 7,080 units
Septic Connection, 4,841
Septic Secondary Treatment - Conventional 600 units
Septic Secondary Treatment - Enhanced, 22 units
Septic Denitrification - Enhanced, 13 units
Septic Effluent - Enhanced, 4 units
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Coastal Zone Management (CZM)
DEQ administers the CZM annual grants from the National CZM Program. A portion of these funds are
administered to the state’s eight coastal PDCs to provide annual technical assistance to localities.
The Virginia CZM Technical Assistance Program provides GWRC with annual funds to advance coastal
management at the local level. Contracts between PDCs and governing state agencies must include three
minimum standards:
1. Coordination. PDC’s should hold quarterly meetings of local government representatives directly
involved in the management of coastal resources to share information on issues.
2. Training. PDC’s should provide at least four training opportunities related to one or more of CZM
program goals.
3. Issue Analysis / Special Projects. Each PDC should undertake one project during the grant year
that helps advance one or more of the coastal resource management goals.
CZM special projects typically deal with resiliency issues. Previous GWRC CZM special projects include:









Land Cover Data Layer Classification
Environmental Chapter for the Caroline County Code of Ordinances
Assessment and draft strategy for a Plant GWRC Natives Campaign
Forest Retention Data Gathering
Stormwater Best Management Practices Signage
City of Fredericksburg and Caroline County Community Rating System Project
Plant Central Rappahannock Natives Campaign Support
Regional Green Infrastructure Planning

Data
APPENDIX A is a table of relevant and useful resilience related databases- what entity produced the
dataset, the use/purpose of the dataset, and if the data is downloadable.
APPENDIX C has tables for each locality with 2020 data on the impaired waterways throughout the
region. The health of the region’s waterways affects the regional economic, social, and environmental
resiliency.
APPENDIX D contains maps of the watersheds that GWRC is located within and the associated impaired
waterways.
APPENDIX E is a table with GWRC priority species of greatest conservation need. Identifying and
protecting vulnerable species is important for the resilience of the region’s ecosystem and environment.
APPENDIX F is a table of conservation strategies and actions for the GW region, retrieved from the
Virginia Wildlife Plan.
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Regional Assets
The assets of the region have been grouped into three categories: Natural and Built
Environment, Economic, and Social.

Natural and Built Environmental Assets
Special Habitats:

Figure 2. GWRC Species Habitat
Source: DCR, Natural Heritage 2014.

Of Virginia’s 883 Species of Greatest Conservation Need (SGCN), 76 are believed to either occur, or have
recently occurred, within the George Washington Planning Region. Of these 76 species, 30 SGCN are
dependent upon habitats provided only within the region. Appendix E lists priorities species throughout
the region with the greatest conservation need. Appendix F is a table summarizing conservation
strategies and actions for the region.
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Conservation Lands:
Having recognized the importance of the local habitats to both resident and migratory wildlife, state,
federal, and private entities have made significant investments to conserve lands within the planning
region. Conservation mechanisms range from conservation easements to state parks, forests, and wildlife
management areas to National Wildlife Refuges (NWR). Significant conservation assets, in terms of size,
include:












Rappahannock River Valley National Wildlife Refuge,
Fredericksburg and Spotsylvania National Military Park,
Lands’ End Wildlife Management Area,
Mattaponi Wildlife Management Area,
Pettigrew Wildlife Management Area,
Lake Anna State Park,
Widewater State Park,
Prince William Forest Park,
Crow’s Nest Natural Area Preserve,
Chotank State Natural Area Preserve, and
Caledon State Natural Area.

These properties contain a diversity of open water, forest, agricultural, and wetland habitats (Figure 3).
They have been conserved to provide a range of conservation, recreational, and economic benefits such
as habitat protection and restoration, ecotourism, and fishing and hunting opportunities. Additionally,
various military installations, such as Marine Corps Base Quantico and Fort A.P. Hill, support viable
habitats and wildlife populations.

Figure 3. GWRC Conserved Lands
Source: DCR, Natural Heritage (2014).
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Ecological Cores:
Ecological cores are patches of natural land with at least 100 acres of interior cover which provide habitat
for a large variety of species, including forest, marsh, and maritime dependent species. The Virginia
Natural Landscape Assessment (VaNLA) provides an analysis, using satellite data, that has identified,
prioritized, and linked the important land networks throughout Virginia. Preserving and maintaining these
landscapes can help ensure they continue to provide ecosystem services such as cleaner air and water
filtration. Ecological cores can also provide recreational opportunities and open space resources. The
following map shows which areas of the counties and cities within the GW region contain ecological
cores. A higher rating (with red being the highest) indicates the amount of ecosystem services that
ecological core provides. Examples of ecological services that cores provide include: wildlife and plant
habitat, biodiversity conservation, water resource protection, erosion control, and carbon sequestration.
The GW region should have strategies to preserve ecological cores, such as using them as park lands for
low-impact recreation (hiking, bird watching, etc.) and other conservation efforts.

Figure 4. GWRC Ecological Cores.
Source: Regional Green Infrastructure Plan (2009)
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Resource Protection Areas (RPAs):
Resource Protection Areas are defined as lands at or near the shoreline that have an intrinsic water
quality value due to ecological and biological processes they perform, or that are sensitive to impacts that
may result in significant degradation to the quality of state waters. RPAs in a natural condition provide for
the removal and/or reduction of sediments, nutrients, and potentially harmful toxic substances in runoff.
RPAs include the following sensitive land areas:






Tidal wetlands;
Nontidal wetlands connected by surface flow and contiguous to tidal wetlands or tributary
streams;
Tidal shores;
Other lands deemed by the governing body as necessary to protect the quality of state waters;
and
A buffer area not less than 100 feet in width located adjacent to and landward of the
components listed above, and along both sides of any tributary stream. In Spotsylvania County
the total amount of land designated as RPAs is estimated to be 12,000-acres, or roughly 5% of the
County’s total land area. The City of Fredericksburg’s RPAs and Resource Management Areas are
visualized below.

Figure 5. Fredericksburg RPAs and RMAs.

Resource Management Areas (RMAs):
Resource Management Areas are defined as lands that if improperly used, developed, or destroyed from
environmental hazards would have a potential for causing significant water quality and environmental
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degradation, diminishing the functional value of the land. The regulations require RMAs to be contiguous
to the entire inland boundary of the Resource Protection Area. RPAs and RMAs must be taken into
consideration when making land use and development decisions.
The regulations require the following to be considered for inclusion in the Resource Management Area:






Floodplains;
Highly erodible soils, including steep slopes;
Highly permeable soils;
Nontidal wetlands not included in the Resource Protection Area; and
Other lands necessary to protect the quality of state waters.

Development Vulnerability
Preserving the previously stated ecological cores and protecting rare species should be a resiliency goal
for the GW region. The Virginia Development Vulnerability Model determines the predicted relative risk
of conversion from natural, rural and other open space lands to higher density and urbanized land uses.
As shown in Figure 6 below, current high-density development is concentrated in the City of
Fredericksburg and adjacent areas in Stafford and Spotsylvania Counties. This data can help to identify
areas where development should be limited in ecological cores or other lands that should be protected in
order to preserve ecological integrity and continue to benefit from the ecosystem services they provide.

Figure 6. GWRC Development Vulnerability
Source: Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation, Natural Heritage Program

Cultural Areas, Tribal Zones, Historical Areas:
Cultural and historical sites provide a valuable resource for communities. These destinations can
encourage tourism, and protecting them from flooding, and other natural disasters is essential. Historic
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and cultural areas assist localities with community character and provide opportunities for community
events and other essential services. The following are listed resources by county and city:
Table 1: GWRC Historical, Cultural, or Tribal Resources

County/City

Types of Historical, Cultural, or
Tribal Resources

Link

Caroline
County

Contains a variety of Native
American/Tribal sites, civil war sites,
cemeteries, local parks, historical towns
such as Bowling Green, and historical
properties and buildings.

https://co.caroline.va.us/DocumentCenter/
View/413/Chapter-5-Cultural-andHistoric-Resources-PDF

King George
County

Contains state and local parks, Tribal sites,
historical properties and buildings, and
archaeological sites.

https://www.dhr.virginia.gov/historicregisters/king-george-county/

Stafford
County

Contains historic districts, archaeological
sites, historic manors, churches,
cemeteries, courthouses, national state and
local parks and trails. Additionally, this
County is home to a state recognized
Indian tribe (the Patawomeck Tribe).

https://www.dhr.virginia.gov/historicregisters/stafford-county/

Spotsylvania
County

Contains national, state, and local parks,
civil war battlefield sites, historic iron
mines, and tribal sites.

Fredericksburg

Contains national and local parks, civil
war battlefield sites, historic district, and
cemeteries. Additionally, this County is
home to a state recognized Indian tribe
(the Patawomeck Tribe).

https://www.spotsylvania.va.us/737/Histor
y-Culture
https://www.spotsylvania.va.us/Document
Center/View/2110/Appendix-C---HistoricResources-PDF
https://www.fredericksburgva.gov/Docume
ntCenter/View/334/Historic-PreservationPlan?bidId=

Community Environmental Opportunity:
The Community Environmental Profile indicates what the current state of the natural, built, and social
environment is of the GW region. This information can provide the GW region with information where
resilience BMPs and green infrastructure can provide additional co-benefits. The Community
Environment Profile includes the following indicators:





Air Quality: includes measures of pollution from the EPA, including on-road and, non-road, and
non-point pollution. It also includes the EPA measure of neurological, cancer, and respiration
risks.
Population Churning: the rate at which people move in and out of a given community.
Population Density: the population density of a given community.
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Walkability: A measure of multiple variables, including residential and employment density, street
connectivity, and public transit accessibility.

Figure 7: Community Environmental Opportunities
Source: https://apps.vdh.virginia.gov/omhhe/hoi/community-environmental-profile

Economic Assets
Community Economic Opportunity:
The following map provides the Economic Opportunity Profile for the GW region, based on Virginia’s
Department of Health (DOH) Health Opportunity Index. The Economic Opportunity Profile provides a
visual for the impact place has on a citizen’s ability to participate in the economic life of a community.
Factors influencing economic opportunity include access to jobs, labor participation rates, and the
distribution of income within a community. Understanding these factors can help planning efforts in
calculating co-benefits in terms of resiliency. In particular, green jobs and other environmentally
sustainable growth strategies can bring new jobs to the region and provide other new opportunities for
residents. It can also help focus in on the communities that could most benefit from economic
revitalization.
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Figure 8. Economic Opportunity for the GW region
Source: https://apps.vdh.virginia.gov/omhhe/hoi/economic-opportunity-profile

Household Trends:
As of 2010, there were 112,048 households in the GW Region, including the 28,339 additional households
added since 2000 (a 34% increase). With moderate economic growth projected in the Fredericksburg,
Washington DC-Northern Virginia area, and Richmond metro economies for years to come, continued
household growth is likewise projected for the GW Region, reaching an estimated 223,710 households by
2040. With the projected growth in households throughout the region, increased development is
inevitable. To ensure more resilient and equitable communities and housing conditions, all new
development should be located away from areas prone to flooding or other environmentally sensitive
areas.

Economic Trends & Drivers:
To create economic resiliency for the GW Region the largest employers should be actively included
throughout the planning process to inform and engage prominent businesses.
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The 10 largest employers in the George Washington Region include:1
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

U.S. Department of Defense
Stafford County Schools
GEICO
Spotsylvania County Schools
Mary Washington Hospital
U.S. Federal Bureau of Investigation
Wal-Mart
University of Mary Washington
Stafford County
Spotsylvania County

An assessment of economic and labor market conditions conducted in the GO Virginia Region 6 Growth
and Diversification plan yielded these findings:2
 Private sector jobs account for a smaller proportion of total employment in Region 6 (76%) than
the state of Virginia (82%)
 Employment growth for the region has slowed to the statewide trend, and the Fredericksburg
area grew at a faster pace than other parts of the region.
 The unemployment rate in the GW Region has been continuously lower than that of the United
States and the Commonwealth of Virginia. This is attributable to the high number of U.S. Military
and Government workers that reside in the Region.
 The Professional, Scientific & Technical Services sector increased by 739 jobs; Other Services
increased by 474 jobs; and Health Care and Social Assistance increased by 438 jobs. These three
sectors lead year-over-year employment growth.
 60% of the region’s workers commute to employment outside the region.
 Fredericksburg is the regional center for administration, professional services, finance, higher
education, medicine, and commerce.
The findings above indicate that the economic development of the region would significantly benefit from
expanding the region’s private sector resiliency marketplace, through attracting and increasing
companies that can provide services and products to meet the needs for the protection of coastal land,
infrastructure, and water quality. This may also decrease the proportion of those who commute out of
the region for work.

Transportation:
Due to the rapid growth of the George Washington Region, traffic congestion levels have risen
considerably over the past 30 years. Interstate 95 carries more than 160,000 vehicles per day through the
Fredericksburg region and experiences recurring congestion and incident delays. As of 2015, over half of
the workers that live in GW commuted to work outside of the Region, with an average travel time to work
of 35.4 minutes. Roads are critical infrastructure for residents to commute to work or travel, and figure
heavily into resiliency considerations.

1

Source: VEC, GO Virginia Region 6 Plan.
Region 6 includes the GW region and the counties of Essex, Gloucester, King and Queen, King William,
Lancaster, Mathews, Middlesex, Northumberland, Richmond, and Westmoreland.
2
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The corridors of choice for these commuters are Interstate 95 and Jefferson Davis Highway/Cambridge
Street (US-1), which bisect the region and serve as major north-south transportation routes for
commuters, vacationers, business travelers, local resident trips, and long-haul truck traffic. The
Rappahannock River, which flows through the Region, presents a significant barrier to north-south auto
travel and is a choke point as many alternate routes (US 17, VA 3) funnel traffic to the limited crossings in
the Fredericksburg Vicinity. Fredericksburg is also a strong regional employment center in its own right,
which brings a large number of people into the City on a daily basis.

Figure 9 & 10. George Washington Region Transportation Network
Source: FAMPO/GWRC TDM STUDY

Transportation and infrastructure are a critical component of healthy and resilient communities, even
more so during a natural hazard or emergency. The Transportation Demand Management (TDM) for the
localities in the region should determine the potential congestion that would arise in the event of a
natural disaster or emergency. Major roadways and other critical transportation infrastructure must be
incorporated into resiliency planning as it impacts human health and economic resilience of the region.
When establishing Emergency Evacuation Routes for the region, factors that must consider include but
are not limited to: accessibility, connectivity, congestion, and the capacity of travel corridors. Flooding
events in particular are a major concern.
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Fiscal Stress:3
Fiscal stress describes the ability of a locality to provide services to their citizens – a lack of revenue,
dwindling tax base, or too much debt can place a burden on the government services that citizens
depend on. “The fiscal stress index illustrates a locality’s ability to generate additional local revenues from
its current tax base relative to the rest of the Commonwealth. Revenue capacity is a computation of how
much revenue a jurisdiction could generate if it taxed its population at statewide average rates. Revenue
effort is a ratio of actual tax collections by a locality to its computed revenue capacity. Median household
income represents the level at which exactly half of the households in a jurisdiction earn more and the
other half earns less.”
In the GWRC region, this primarily affects Fredericksburg, which is listed as “above average” due to its
poor “revenue effort”, or ability to generate its own revenue (from real estate taxes, personal property
taxes, local option sales taxes, and other local sources).

Figure 11. Fiscal Stress Index Map
Source: Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development, Commission on Local Government

3

For more information, see the Department of Housing and Community Development’s July 2020 report:
https://www.dhcd.virginia.gov/sites/default/files/Docx/clg/fiscal-stress/fiscal-stress-report.pdf
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Social Assets
Populations that are predicated to be disproportionately impacted by regional hazards must be equitably
centered in resiliency planning as those individuals are more vulnerable to disasters based on social and
economic factors.
Environmental Justice Groups for the George Washington Region include:
1. Minority Populations
2. Low Income Populations
3. Disabled Populations
4. Older Adult Populations
5. Limited English Proficiency Populations

Minority Populations:4
African American
As of 2010, persons with African American ancestry make up roughly 17.5% of the total regional
population. Stafford has the lowest percentage of African Americans (15.1%) living within the county;
following Stafford County is Spotsylvania County at 16.58%, King George County at 17.2%, the City of
Fredericksburg with 21%, and finally Caroline County with the highest percentage at 29.1%. Naturally,
with Caroline County having the highest percentage within the region, it has relatively high percentages
split up amongst its six census tracts. Five of the six tracts have 20.1-40% of their populations comprised
of African Americans, with the sixth tract representing 40.1-53.5%. The remaining municipalities with an
exception to Fredericksburg have a relatively even percentage distribution of persons with African
American heritage. The City of Fredericksburg has five census tracts; the one on the southeastern portion
of the city has between 40.1% and 53.5% of the population with African American heritage. The middle
two tracts have between 0% and 10%, with the remaining two on the western half of the city with
aggregations between 20.1% and 40%.

Asian American
As of 2010, Asian American demographic makes up a relatively small portion of the overall population,
with an average of 2.1% for the entire FAMPO and GW Region. To the contrary of the data observed for
African American populations, Asian Americans have a higher concentration in the more urbanized areas
of the region. Stafford County has the highest percentage with 2.6%, whereas Caroline County has the
lowest with 0.4%, followed by King George County with 1.05%, City of Fredericksburg with 2.05% and
Spotsylvania County with 2.17%. Most of this population group lives along and to the west of the I-95
corridor.

Latino/Hispanic
As of 2010, the Regional percentage of the Hispanic/Latino population is roughly 6.2%. Stafford County
leads this segment with approximately 7.97% of its population descending from Hispanic/Latino heritage.
King George County follows closely behind with 7.73%, Spotsylvania County with 6.36%, Caroline County
with 3.55%, and finally the City of Fredericksburg with 3.15%. Much like the distribution of the Asian
American population group, Hispanic/Latinos have higher concentrations along and to the west of the I4

Demographic data collected from FAMPO Long Range Transportation Plan.
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95 corridor, with a majority located in the urbanized areas of Fredericksburg and northern Stafford
County.

Limited English Proficiency Population:5
About 3.14% of the Region’s population has limited English Proficiency, with Fredericksburg having the
highest percentage at 4.5%. Stafford County is next with 4.2%, followed by Spotsylvania County with
3.3%, Caroline County with 1.5% and finally King George County with 0.7%. The Fredericksburg and North
Stafford urbanized areas have the highest concentrations of Limited English speakers, with King George
and Caroline Counties having the lowest percentage. Individuals or households that have limited
proficiency in English must have equal access to information which may require translations of resilience
documents to be created.

ALICE Population:6
Asset Limited, Income Constrained, Employed (ALICE) households are households that are above the
federal poverty line, but still have limitations and do not have as much economic flexibility and who may
struggle to keep up with a standard household budget. Most of the jurisdictions within the region are
above the state average for ALICE populations of 29%. Lower-income households are more vulnerable to
extreme weather events and climate change as these individuals have less recourse to adequately
prepare for and recover from environmental hazards.
Table 2: ALICE in GWRC 2018

County

ALICE Population

% Population Below ALICE
Threshold

City of Fredericksburg

10,582

54%

King George County

9,103

26%

Spotsylvania County

45,223

37%

Stafford County

48,418

29%

Caroline County

10,911

44%

Regional Total

124,237

33.8%

Source: U.S. Census, ACS, 2019

5
6

For more information on LEP populations visit https://apps.vdh.virginia.gov/omhhe/clas/leppopulation/
For more information see www.unitedforalice.org.
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Figure 12. ALICE Households by District
Source: Good Jobs Here Report

Disabled Individuals:
Individuals with disabilities are also vulnerable from extreme weather events. People with disabilities may
not have the social support they need in order to evacuate during extreme weather events and may not
have the financial resources available to relocated. It is vital that communities have a plan in place to
address households with individuals who have disabilities and other special needs.
Table 3: Disabled Individuals in GWRC 2019 (Census Data)

County

Disabled Individuals

% of Population

City of Fredericksburg

2,381

8.2%

King George County

2,066

7.7%

Spotsylvania County

10,897

8%

Stafford County

9,173

6%

Caroline County

2,550

8.3%

27,067

7.2%

Regional Disabled Population

Source: U.S. Census, 2019 American Community Survey

Older Adults:
As of 2010, about 6.4% of the Region’s population is comprised of Older Adults, with the City of
Fredericksburg having the highest percentage at 11.07%. Caroline County comes in second with 10.9%;
King George County is next with 7.22%, followed by Spotsylvania County with 6.35% and finally Stafford
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County with 4.55%. The southern and eastern portions of the Region have the highest percentages of
Older Adults living there.
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Natural Hazards
Environmental events that could result in harm to property or human welfare are an important
consideration in Regional resiliency. Natural hazards were identified in the Regional Hazard Mitigation
Plan, which also developed actions, tasks, mitigation strategies to reduce risk. Below, the natural hazards
for the George Washington Region are identified then further defined.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Dam Failure
Drought & Extreme Heat
Wildfires
Earthquakes
Sinkholes & Landslides
Flooding
Hurricanes & Thunderstorms
Tornadoes
Winter Storms & Nor’easters
Climate Change

Hazard Overview:
The natural hazards identified to be the highest priority for the region include: Drought, Severe
Weather (including Extreme Heat, Northeasters, Thunderstorms, Tornadoes, Winter Storms), Sinkholes
and Landslides, and Dam Failure. Identifying the natural hazards that pose the most risk to the city and
counties in this Region enabled GWRC to create mitigation strategies for each community. The table
below presents community-specific sections where those natural hazards affect each member jurisdiction
differently. Low, Medium, and High are the indicators of the probability of occurrence of each hazard.
Table 4: Community Specific Natural Hazards

GWRC Regions
Priority for Identified
Hazards

Caroline
County

Fredericksburg

King George
County

Spotsylvania
County

Stafford
County

Dam Failure

Low

N/A

Low

Low

Low

Drought and Extreme Heat

Medium

Medium-High

Medium-High

Medium

Medium-High

Wildfires

Medium-High

Medium-High

Medium

Medium

Medium-High

Earthquakes

Low

Medium

Medium-High

Medium-Low

Low

Sinkholes and Landslides

Low

Medium-Low

Low

Low

Medium-Low

Flooding and Erosion

Low

High

Medium-High

High

High

Non-Rotational Wind

Medium-High

High

High

High

High

Tornadoes

Medium-High

High

High

Medium-High

High

Winter Storms and
Nor’easters

Medium-High

High

High

High

High
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Dam Failure:
Dam failure can occur if hydrostatic pressure behind the dam exceeds its design capacity or the crest of
the dam is overtopped and rushing flood water scours the base of the dam. The Virginia Soil and Water
Conservation Board established the Virginia Dam Safety Program to provide for safe design, construction,
operation, and maintenance of dams to protect public safety. Dams cannot be constructed or altered
until the VSWCB issues a permit; all dams are subject to regulations.
Dams are classified with a hazard potential (low, significant, high) depending on the downstream losses
anticipated in event of failure. Hazard potential is unrelated to structural integrity of a dam, rather the
potential adverse downstream impacts should a dam failure occur. Below are the classifications of dams
within the region.
Table 5: National Inventory of Dams in GWRC Region

Downstream Hazard Potential

Community

High

Significant

Low

Caroline County

3

35

51

City of Fredericksburg

0

0

0

King George County

1

1

8

Spotsylvania County

5

7

9

Stafford County

7

11

6

16

54

74

GWRC Total

Data Source: GWRC Hazard Mitigation Plan

A dam break inundation zone is the area downstream of a dam likely to be inundated or otherwise
directly affected because of a dam failure. Identifying zones that have been classified as high and
significant hazard potential help the communities within the region better prepare areas that would be
disproportionately affected by a dam failure. Stafford County is the only part of the region that has a
publicly available map of dam break inundation zones.
Stafford County has 22 listed dams, 20 of which are subject to DCR regulations. Two dams are located on
the Quantico Marine Corps Base and are federally owned and therefore not subject to DCR regulations.
Fredericksburg’s “Pond D” dam (No. 630004 in DCR’s Dam Safety Inventory System), an earthen
embankment impounding Smith Run before connecting to Hazel Run and the Rappahannock River, is
anticipated to be classified as a “high-hazard” dam. The City has already retained consultants to develop
the appropriate certification documents (e.g. Emergency Action Plan, dam failure analysis, mapping of
dam break inundation zone, etc.) and is refining the hazard classification documentation relative to the
spillway design storm requirements (0.9 PMP vs. 0.6 PMP). Overtopping protection measures will be
implemented, three of which have been evaluated by the City. Fredericksburg will incorporate resilience
elements that are nature-based; coordinated with a similarly-located, under-design, wet-pond [TMDL]
retrofit, and based upon the best available science.
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Figure 13. Stafford County Dam Inundation Zones
Source: Stafford County

Drought & Extreme Heat:
A drought is a period of drier-than-normal conditions that results in water-related problems. In a oneyear time frame, droughts are considered large when the 12-month rainfall averages approximately 60
percent of normal. On a multi-year time scale, 75 percent of the normal rainfall indicates a serious
problem. High summer temperatures can exacerbate the severity of a drought. Drought and extreme
heat can impact regional agriculture, wildlife, and habitat. Agriculture remains a major industry in the
GWRC region; although the number and size of farms across the region has decreased in the last 20
years, the economic impact of farms have increased.
Extreme Heat results from high daily temperatures combined with high relative humidity. High relative
humidity retards evaporation, robbing the body of its ability to cool itself. Incidents of excessive heat in
GWRC are defined by Heat Watches and Heat Warnings issued by the National Weather Service (NWS).
While the severity of extreme heat is quite small compared with the rest of the nation, the entire GWRC
region is subject to high temperatures, with occasional summer days reaching over 100 degrees
Fahrenheit, often accompanied by high humidity. There are intersectional threats related to heat, with
the elderly and those socioeconomically stressed and/or without the means to afford air conditioning
being especially vulnerable.

Wildfires:
An uncontrollable fire spreading through vegetative fuels, possibly consuming structures. Geographically,
wildfire risk as determined by the Virginia Department of Forestry (VDOF) varies across the GWRC region.
Approximately 62.7% of the GWRC region is located within a high fire risk zone.
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Table 5: Critical Facilities for Wildfire Risk

Locality

Total at Risk Critical Facilities

Caroline County incl. Towns of Port Royal and
Bowling Green

12

City of Fredericksburg

5

King George County

29

Spotsylvania County

71

Stafford County

54

George Washington Region Total

171

Data Source: GWRC Hazard Mitigation Plan

Earthquakes:
Defined as a series of elastic waves in the crust of the earth, caused by abrupt easing of strains built along
geologic faults and by volcanic action, and resulting in movement of the earth’s surface. Earthquakes can
affect hundreds of thousands of square miles and cause extreme damage to property, cause injury and
loss of life, and disrupt the social and economic functions of the affected area. The GWRC region lies in an
area of moderate seismic risk, with a peak acceleration of 6 to 10g, which is considered a moderate
hazard probability.

Figure 14. GWR Earthquake Intensity
Source: USGS Community Earthquake Intensity Map (2011)
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Sinkholes & Landslides:
Sinkholes are depressions in the land surface caused by subsurface conditions. Naturally occurring
sinkholes are largely associated with karst topography, where changing groundwater conditions may
cause a sudden loss of stability in the roofs of cavernous openings, causing sudden sinkholes. The GWRC
region is not considered to be within a karst area.
A landslide is the movement of any mass of rocks, soil, or debris down a slope. Usually triggered by heavy
rainfall, rapid snow melt, stream incision, or earthquakes. Certain man-made changes to the land can
greatly increase the likelihood of landslides. The steady urbanization of the GWRC region makes the
possibility of landslides caused by man made changes to slopes by the location of buildings and
infrastructure, including roads, on or near steep slopes, more common. Landslide potential is considered
high is Stafford County, moderate in King George County, and low in Spotsylvania County, Caroline County
and the City of Fredericksburg.

Flooding:
The most frequent and most costly natural hazard throughout the United States is flooding. Excess water
from snowmelt, rainfall, or storm surge accumulates and overflows onto adjacent floodplains. There are
four basic types of flood that afflicts Virginia’s communities, depending on the region of the state
examined: coastal flooding, urban flooding, flash flooding, and riverine flooding. The GWRC region is most
susceptible to urban flooding and flash flooding. Low-lying areas adjacent to rivers, streams, or creeks are
susceptible to riverine flooding. In addition, portions of the Potomac and Rappahannock Rivers in the
region are subject to tidal flooding. Urban Flooding often occurs in highly impervious areas.
Table 6: Critical Facilities in 100-year floodplain

Locality

Total at Risk Critical Facilities

Caroline County incl. Town of Port Royal and
Bowling Green

0

City of Fredericksburg

17

King George County

3

Spotsylvania County

11

Stafford County (excl. Quantico)

1

George Washington Region Total

32

Data Source: GWRC Hazard Mitigation Plan

While many floodplain boundaries are mapped by FEMA’s National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP),
floods sometimes go beyond mapped floodplains or change course due to natural processes or human
development (e.g., filling in floodplain or floodway areas, increased impervious surfaces from new
development within watershed, etc.). All the jurisdictions in GWRC are mapped by NFIP and participate in
the program. FEMA’s HAZUS tools estimate the risk from severe weather, including earthquakes.
King George County has 26 properties enrolled in NFIP; none of the insured properties are classified as
Repetitive Loss property. FEMA’s HAZUS estimates the displacement of 49 households as the result of a
hypothetical 100-year flood event, with 20 people seeking emergency shelter within the community.
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The City of Fredericksburg has 164 properties
enrolled in the National Flood Insurance
Program, of which 4 are classified as Repetitive
Loss properties. Repetitive Loss of property is
defined as any insurable building for which two
or more claims of more than $1,000 were paid
by the NFIP over any rolling 10-year period since
1978. For these properties, NFIP promotes
permanent solutions to repetitive flooding
problems, either through structural measures or
by removal of structures within high risk flood
areas. HAZUS estimates the displacement of 167
households as the result of a hypothetical 100year flood event, with 290 people seeking
emergency shelter within the community.

Figure 15. City of Fredericksburg Flood Zone Map
Source: City of Fredericksburg

Spotsylvania County has 135 properties enrolled in NFIP; none of the insured properties are classified as
Repetitive Loss properties. HAZUS estimates the displacement of 344 households as the result of a
hypothetical 100-year flood event, with 20 people seeking emergency shelter within the community.
Caroline County has a low flood threat, with only nine flood events recorded since 1996. HAZUS estimates
the displacement of 123 households as the result of a hypothetical 100-year flood event, with 79 people
seeking emergency shelter within the community. The number of properties enrolled in NFIP was not
publicly available.
Stafford County has 288 properties enrolled in
NFIP, 8 of which are classified as Repetitive Loss
properties. HAZUS estimates the displacement
of 394 households as the result of a hypothetical
100-year flood event, with 665 people seeking
emergency shelter within the community.
A 100-year event has a one percent chance
probability of occurring in any given year. Within
Stafford, 12% (20,918 acres) of land is in a 100year floodplains hazard area. Stafford County
Government offer a free interactive Flood Zone
Map that shows potential flood zones within the
County, shown in Figure 6 to the right.

Figure 16. Stafford Flood Zone Map
Source: Stafford County

Stafford County has an average of 1.43 floods a year, and the probability of future occurrences was found
to be high. Local representatives and past planning efforts have noted several areas within the
community that are affected by frequent flooding. These include:




Repeated road closure due to flooding and debris at:
o River Road;
o Vista Woods, Grafton Village, and Argyle Hills;
o Harrell Road at the CSX Crossing; and
o Aquia Drive, requiring emergency access to Decatur Road.
Riverine flooding in several neighborhoods including:
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o The Falmouth area, which is often evacuated; and
o The Aquia Harbour area with over 1,000 homes affected.
Tidal flooding at the marina area

The localities mentioned above that experience extreme or repetitive flooding should consider limiting
development and focusing mitigation strategies in identified flood areas. Mitigation strategies for the
identified areas could include but not limited to:
 Comprehensive land use planning
 Zoning Regulations
 Building Codes
 Floodplain development regulations
 Property protection measures (building relocations, building elevation, retrofitting, etc)
 Natural resource Protection (wetlands, erosion and sedimentation control, etc.)

Hurricanes & Thunderstorms:
Hurricanes and tropical storms, as well as tropical depressions, are all tropical cyclones. Hurricanes and
tropical storms bring heavy rainfall, storm surge, and high wind, all of which can cause significant damage.
These storms can last for several days, and therefore have the potential to cause sustained flooding and
high wind conditions. Numerous hurricanes and tropical storms occur along the eastern seaboard each
year, with direct landfall occurring somewhere along the eastern United States approximately once every
three years. While the region is somewhat protected from the full strength of a hurricane, its expansive
nature makes the region vulnerable to high winds, flooding, and tornadoes that often accompany these
other extreme weather events. VDEM rates Virginia’s overall wind risk as high and the GWRC
communities are no exception. Historical occurrences of high winds generated by hurricanes and tropical
storms are a strong indication of future events. According to Minimum Design Loads for Buildings, the
design wind speed for the GWRC region is less than 90 mph.
Thunderstorms are defined as localized storms, always accompanied by lightning, and often having strong
wind gusts, heavy rain and sometimes hail or tornadoes. Thunderstorms can produce a strong out-rush of
wind known as a downburst or microburst, or straight-line winds which may exceed 120mph. The entire
GWRC region is at risk for thunderstorm damages. There have been seven people injured and well over
$100,000 in property damage caused by lightning strikes in the GWRC since 1993.

Tornadoes:
Tornadoes are one of nature’s most violent storms. A tornado is a rotating column of air extending from a
thunderstorm to the ground. In Virginia, most tornadoes occur from April to October, although tornadoes
can strike at any time during the year. Tornadoes are not more likely to strike one jurisdiction than
another in the GWRC area. Each jurisdiction is considered to have roughly the same probability of
experiencing a tornado. Every locality in the GW region has a medium-high to high tornado risk compared
with the rest of the state, which is still relatively low compared to other regions of the US.

Winter Storms & Nor’easters:
Winter Storms can combine different types of precipitation including snow, freezing rain, and ice, as well
as high winds, and cold temperatures. These storms can range from being a minor inconvenience to
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crippling and potentially life-threatening events. Winter Storms can be very disruptive, particularly in
areas where they do not occur frequently. It is quite common for the rain-snow line to fall within, or near,
the GWRC region. Heavy snow often falls in a narrow 50-mile wide swath approximately 150 miles
northwest of the low-pressure center. The GWRC region often finds itself within this 50-mile wide swath
of dangerous winter weather.
Nor’easters are slow moving, low-pressure systems that typically form either in the Gulf of Mexico or in
the Atlantic Ocean. Although typically associated with winter storm events, Northeasters can occur during
anytime of the year. Low-pressure systems develop into storms that bring strong northeast winds, heavy
rain/precipitation and storm surge to coastal areas. The GWRC region is prone to experiencing the effects
of Atlantic forming storms; because these storms are very large, they are likely to affect the entire
eastern seaboard.

Climate Change:
The potential risks of climate change can have broad effects on the GWRC region, including on its public
health, infrastructure, agriculture, tourism, and emergency services. The GWRC region should expect the
following in the future:






More frequent, and more intense, precipitation events punctuated by deeper episodes of
drought.
Drier winter and summer seasons, which could deplete reservoirs and challenge agricultural
production.
Increased storm surges along tidal portions of the Potomac and Rappahannock Rivers, caused by
rising sea level and stronger Atlantic tropical storms.
Stronger storms coming at a greater frequency, which may threaten lives, damage infrastructure
and cause significant power outages.
Increasing summer heat waves that could threaten public health.

Community Climate Change Outlook
As the climate continues to change, so has the frequency and intensity of natural and climate related
hazards. The residents of the George Washington Region will face a worsening variety of weather and
climate related hazards such as heatwaves, flooding, and storm surges. Below are the community climate
outlooks of each jurisdiction within GWRC. The indicator areas for these communities are sea level rise,
temperature, and precipitation. Sea level rise will contribute to more frequent and sever coastal flooding,
agriculture losses, and property damage, predictions for sea level rise in 2070 indicate that private
property will be submerged and the Region’s coastlines will be permanently reshaped. Temperature rises
associated with climate change pose a risk to human health, local fisheries, agriculture, and
infrastructure. Predictions for the increase in number of days above 95F every year is associated with
increases in cooling costs and heat-related illnesses. Precipitation and heavy downpours in the Region
have increased in frequency and intensity, causing property damage, septic backups, well contamination,
and impacts to water quality in local streams and ultimately the Chesapeake Bay.
Stafford County
Since 1950, sea levels in Stafford have risen over 1 foot, and sea levels will rise 2-6’ by 2070, permanently
reshaping Stafford’s coastline. Compared to 1950 Stafford sees 12 more days per year in excess of 95F.
By 2070, Stafford can expect 29 to 80 days above 95F every year. Heavy downpours in Stafford have
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increased in frequency and intensity, Stafford can expect up to 30% more days of heavy rainfall ( 2
inches) by 2070.
Spotsylvania County
Sea levels in Spotsylvania have risen over 1 foot since 1950, and are predicted to rise by 2-6’ by 2070.
Compared to 1950 Spotsylvania sees 12 more days per year in excess of 95F. By 2070, Spotsylvania can
expect 29 to 81 days above 95F every year. Heavy downpours in Spotsylvania have increased in
frequency, and Spotsylvania can expect up to 35% more days of heavy rainfall ( 2 inches) by 2070.
King George County
Sea levels in King George County have risen over 1 foot since 1950, and are predicted to rise by 2-6’ by
2070. Compared to 1950 King George sees 14 more days per year in excess of 95F. By 2070, King George
can expect 35 to 84 days above 95F every year. Heavy downpours in King George have increased in
frequency and intensity, and the county can expect up to 40% more days of heavy rainfall ( 2 inches) by
2070.
Caroline County
Sea levels in Caroline County have risen over 1 foot since 1950, and are predicted to rise by 2-6’ by 2070.
Compared to 1950 Caroline County sees 12 more days per year in excess of 95F. By 2070, Caroline
County can expect 30 to 82 days above 95F every year. Heavy downpours in Caroline County have
increased in frequency and intensity, and the county can expect up to 35% more days of heavy rainfall (
2 inches) by 2070.
City of Fredericksburg
Sea levels in Fredericksburg have risen over 1 foot since 1950, and are predicted to rise by 2-6’ by 2070.
Compared to 1950 Fredericksburg sees 12 more days per year in excess of 95F. By 2070, Fredericksburg
can expect 28 to 79 days above 95F every year. Heavy downpours in Fredericksburg have increased in
frequency and intensity, and the county can expect up to 30% more days of heavy rainfall ( 2 inches) by
2070.

Climate Change Related Flooding:
A study on future climate change related sea level rise and recurrent flooding risk of Coastal Virginia was
conducted by the Commonwealth Center for Recurrent Flooding Resiliency (CCRFR). The report produced
in 2020 analyzed existing data on coastal land elevation, sea level rise projections, subsidence, and
building and transportation assets. Recent efforts by Dewberry for the Virginia Coastal Resilience Master
Plan will add to the concreteness and accuracy of this data.
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Figure 17. Future GWRC Sea Level
Source: CCRFR

Virginia land cover data in conjunction with modeled sea level were analyzed to predict areas that will be
inundated in the future. It was determined that present day land area (including wetlands) in GWRC that
will be flooded by sea level rise is as follows:

Land Area Permenantly Inundated by Sea
Level Rise (square miles)
16
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0

14.6
12.7
10.6

Sea Level 2040 (= 1.7 ft)

Sea Level 2060 (= 3 ft)

Sea Level 2080 (= 4.6 ft)

Figure 18. Sea level rise impacts on the land within GWRC
Data Source: CCRFR
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Data from the Virginia GIS clearinghouse was obtained to approximate impacts of future sea level rise on
real property parcels, buildings, and major roads. For the purposes of this analysis, parcels were deemed
impacted if any inundation that partially or wholly overlays with predicted sea level rise.

Exsisting Property Parcels and Buildings That
Will Be Impacted by Sea Level Rise
3,000
2,000

2,255

2,104

1,931

1,000

151

101

76
0
Sea Level 2040

Sea Level 2060

Sea Level 2080

Number of Parcels at least partially inundated by sea level rise
Number of Buildings at least partially inundated by sea level rise
Figure 19. Sea level rise impact on GWRC property and buildings
Source: CCRFR

Table 7: Total street flooding from sea level rise in GWRC

Year

Miles of Roadway
Flooded

2040

2060

2080

1

2

3

Physical Vulnerability from Sea-Level Rise
The following map provides the physical vulnerability due to flooding from sea-level rise, obtained from
AdaptVA. This map indicates that Stafford County and King George County have low to moderate risk
from flooding due to sea level rise. Although the risk level is not high, jurisdictions should focus on
flooding best management practices (BMPS) along water bodies located in these jurisdictions, particularly
rivers and energetic waterways.
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Physical Vulnerability
Physical Vulnerability
Index
No Risk
Low Risk
Moderate Risk
High Risk
Very High Risk
Not included in
the analysis

7/7/2021

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthst ar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS,
AeroG RI D, IGN, and the GIS User Community
Esri, HERE, G armin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user community
Center for Coastal Resources Management at the Virginia I nstitute of Marine Science
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Figure 20. Physical Vulnerability Index
Source: AdaptVA Interactive Map http://cmap2.vims.edu/AdaptVA/adaptVA_viewer.html

Federal, State, Regional, and Local Disaster Preparedness
A capability assessment was conducted in the regional hazard mitigation plan to provide each jurisdiction
with a better understanding of its own preparedness levels and its capability to mitigate against natural
hazards. Listed below are the federal, state, local and jurisdictional resources for capability building.
Federal Capabilities:
 Federal Emergency Agency (FEMA): The Stafford Act
 The National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP)
 Federal Highway Administration (FHWA): Emergency Transportation Operations (ETO)
 Federal Highway Administration: Federal-aid Highway Emergency Relief Program
 U.S. Department of Energy (DOE): Disaster Recovery and Building Reconstruction Program
 U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS): The Coastal Barrier Resources Act
 NOAA: Coastal Zone Management Act
 EPA Chesapeake Bay TMDLs
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State Capabilities:
 VA Department of Emergency Management
o Commonwealth of VA Emergency Operations Plan
o Virginia Emergency Alert Systems Stations
o Statewide Communications Interoperability Plan
 Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation
o VA Flood Damage Reduction Act
o VA Dam Safety Act
o Shoreline Erosion Advisory Service
 VA DEQ
o Virginia Stormwater Management Act and Regulations
o Chesapeake Bay Regulations
 VA Department of Forestry
 VA Marine Resources Commission
 Department of Housing and Community Development
Regional Capability:
 GWRC
 Fredericksburg Area Metropolitan Planning Organization
 GWRideConnect
 Fredericksburg Regional Alliance
 The Rappahannock River Basin Commission
 Climate, Environment, and Readiness Plan (CLEAR Plan)
The City of Fredericksburg utilizes a cable access channel, Reverse 911, and Fredericksburg Alert (email
and text message capability) to notify residents of information that may include emergency
preparedness.
Caroline County utilizes SMS and email notification system, Twitter, and the County’s website to notify
residents of emergency and non-emergency information. The Town of Bowling Green also utilizes a cable
access channel to notify residents of information that may include emergency preparedness.
King George County has access to public access television channel for posting emergency and other
community information. Emergency notifications are provided to citizens and businesses through
KGALERT, CityWatch (Reverse 911) local radio station announcements, and Twitter postings.
Spotsylvania County utilizes a Mass Notification System (Spotsy Alert) to notify residents of important
information. Spotsy Alert provides notifications ranging from emergencies to public events. These
notifications come in the form of text message, phone call, and emails. Users can select the methods of
notification that meets their needs. The County does have access to override all cable channels for EAS
activation. Additionally, the Department of Fire, Rescue, and Emergency Management website has links
to multiple websites providing information on emergency preparedness.
Stafford County utilizes a cable access channel, Reverse 911, and Stafford Alert to notify residents of
important information. The County does have access to override all cable channels for EAS activation.
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Critical Facilities
Critical Facilities should be given special attention when planning or preparing for a disaster because of
their vital importance to maintaining citizen life, health, and safety during and directly after a disaster
event. The critical facilities of the region are listed below by City and County.
The critical facilities in all counties of this region include:
 Emergency Operation Center (EOC);
 Emergency Communications Center (ECC)/911;
 Law Enforcement Offices
 Emergency Medical Services (EMS);
 Power;
 Communications;
 Water;
 Wastewater Treatment Plants (WWTP);
 Shelters and
 Administrative Buildings/Courthouses.
Table 8: Caroline County Critical Facilities
Facility Name
Dept Fire & Rescue Admin. Emergency Operations Center
Upper Caroline Fire Dept 1
Frog Level VFD.2
Ladysmith VFD.2
Sparta VFD.2
Port Royal VFD.2
Frog Level VRS
Ladysmith VRS
Rappahannock Elec. Field Ofc.
St. Johns Sub-station
Communications Transmit Tower
Communications Receive Tower
WWUZ CH 2451
Cell & Microwave Towers
Caroline Co. STP
Ladysmith Primary2
Blowing Green Primary2
Bowling Green Elem
Lady Smith Elem2
Caroline Middle2
Caroline High School
Caroline County Courthouse
CSX/Amtrak Railway
Plantation Gas Pipeline
Columbia Gas Pipeline
School Board Office
Pneumansend Regional Jail
Lake Caroline Dam
Lake Land or Dam
State Police
Caroline Sheriff Admin.
Bowling Green Police Dept
Bowling Green Fire Dept
911 Center
Bowling Green Rescue Squad 1
Water Main Controls/Ground Storage Well

Location
Caroline County
Woodford
Hanover
Ladysmith
Caroline County
Port Royal
Ruther Glen
Ladysmith
Caroline County
Ruther Glen
Varies
Varies
Varies
Ruther Glen
Ruther Glen
Milford
Caroline County
Ruther Glen
Milford
Milford
Bowling Green
Varies
Varies
Varies
Caroline County
Caroline County
Ruther Glen
Ruther Glen
Bowling Green
Bowling Green
Bowling Green
Bowling Green
Bowling Green
Bowling Green
Bowling Green

Facility Type
Fire-Rescue Admin/EOC
Fire Dept
Fire Dept
Fire Dept
Fire Dept
Fire Dept
Rescue Squad
Rescue Squad
Power Co. Local Office
Electrical Sub Station
Communications
Communications
Communications
Communications
Waste Water
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
Administration Building
Transportation
Gas
Gas
School Board
Jail
Office
Office
Police Departments
Police Departments
Police Departments
Fire Dept
911 Center
Rescue Squad
Water
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Fort AP Hill
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Sewer Pump Station
Sewer Pump Station
Town Hall
Dialysis Center
Nursing Home
Port Royal V.F.D. 1
Town Water Storage Tank
Town Hall

Bowling Green
Bowling Green
Bowling Green
Bowling Green
Bowling Green
Bowling Green
Bowling Green
Port Royal
Port Royal
Port Royal

Wastewater
Wastewater
Sewer
Sewer
Administration Building
Medical
Medical
Fire Dept
Water
Administration

Facility Name
Emergency Operation Center @ Police Headquarters – Backup
Location @ Fredericksburg Fire Dept. Station 2
Executive Plaza Office Building

City
Fredericksburg

Facility Type
EOC

Fredericksburg

Fredericksburg Police Headquarters; E-911 Center
Fredericksburg Sheriff; General District Court; Circuit Court
Fredericksburg Fire Station 2
Fredericksburg Rescue Squad
Fredericksburg Fire Station 1
Juvenile and Domestic Relations Court
Verizon
Courtland Water Pumping Station
Powhatan Water Pumping Station
Lafayette Blvd Pumping Station
Moots Run Reservoir Water Treatment Plant
Normandy Village Sewage Pump Station
Bragg Hill Sewage Pump Station
Rt’s 2 and 17 Area Sewage Pump Station
Snowden Sewage Pump Station
Caroline Street Sewage Pumping Station
Fall Hill Sewage Pumping Station
City of Fredericksburg Wastewater Treatment
Hugh Mercer Elementary School
James Monroe High School
Walker-Grant Middle
Lafayette Upper Elementary School
City Hall
Mary Washington Hospital
National Guard Amory
FBI Field Office (local)
University of Mary Washington

Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg

City Government and Fire Department
Administration
Police Department E-911 Center
Police Department; Courts
Fire Department
Fire Department
Fire Department
Court
Communications
Water Pumping Station
Water Pumping Station
Water Pumping Station
Water Treatment Plant
Sewage Pump Station
Sewage Pump Station
Sewage Pump Station
Sewage Pump Station
Sewage Pumping Station
Sewage Pumping Station
Wastewater Treatment Plant
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
Administration
Hospital
Military
Federal Government
University

Table 9: Fredericksburg Critical Facilities

Table 10: King George County Critical Facilities
Facility Name
King George Sheriff’s Office
King George Fire & Rescue Company 1
King George Fire & Rescue Company 2
King George Fire & Rescue Company 3
King George Fire & Rescue Station 2
Dahlgren WWTP
Fairview Beach WWTP
Hopyard Farm WWTP
Oakland Park WWTP
Purkins Corner WWTP
Presidential Lakes WWTP
King George High School

Location
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George

Facility Type
ECC
EOC / Fire Department
Fire Department
Fire Department
Rescue Station
Waste Treatment
Waste Treatment
Waste Treatment
Waste Treatment
Waste Treatment
Waste Treatment
School / Shelter
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King George Middle School
King George Elementary School
Potomac Elementary School
King George Citizen Center
Sealston Elementary
Administration Center
King George Courthouse Complex
Service Authority Office
King George Animal Shelter
King George Sheriff’s Office
King George Library
King George County School Bus Garage
Harry Nice Memorial Bridge
Rappahannock River Bridge
Williams Creek Bridge
Muddy Creek Bridge
Machadoc Creek Bridge

King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George
King George

School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
Administration
Administration
Administration
Administration / Sheriff’s Office
Administration
School Administration
Bridge
Bridge
Bridge
Bridge
Bridge

City
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Spotsylvania
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Woodford
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Fredericksburg
Spotsylvania
Fredericksburg
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg

Facility Type
Fire / EMS
Fire
Fire / EMS
Fire / EMS
Fire / EMS
Fire / EMS
Fire / EMS
Fire / EMS
Fire / EMS
Fire / EMS
Fire / EMS
Potable Treatment
Potable Treatment
Water Treatment
Water Treatment
Water Treatment
Water Treatment
Administration
Local Government
Local Government
Local Government
Local Government
Local Government
Local Government
Local Government
Public Safety Bldg/911/EOC
School / Support Facility
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter

Table 11: Spotsylvania County Critical Facilities
Facility Name
Brokenburg Fire & Rescue 2
Partlow Fire Company 3
5-Mile Fork Fire Company 5 & Rescue
Salem Church Road Fire Company & Rescue Station 6
Wilderness Fire Company & Rescue station 7
Thornburg Fire Company & Rescue Station 8
Belmont Fire Company & Rescue Station 9
Fire Company & Rescue Station 1
Fire Company & Rescue Station 4
Salem Fields Fire Company & Rescue Station 10
Fire Company & Rescue Station 11
Ni River Water Treatment Plan
Motts Run Water Treatment Plan
FMC Wastewater Treatment Plant
Massaponax Wastewater Treatment Plant
Stoneybrook Wastewater Treatment Plant
Thornburg Wastewater Treatment Plant
County Courthouse
Holbert Building
Marshall Center
Merchant Square Bldg.
Animal Control Office
Joint Fleet Maintenance Facility
Utilities Administration Office
Voter Registration
911/EOC/Sheriff/Fire Administration
School Transportation Office
Battlefield Elementary
Battlefield Middle
Berkley Elementary
Brock Road Elementary
Career and Technical Center High
Cedar Forest Elementary
Chancellor Elementary
Chancellor High
Chancellor Middle
Courthouse Road Elementary
Courtland Elementary
Courtland High
Freedom Middle
Harrison Road Elementary
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Lee Hill Elementary
Livingston Elementary
Massaponax High
Ni River Middle
Parkside Elementary
Post Oak Middle
Riverbend High
Riverview Elementary
Robert E. Lee Elementary
Salem Elementary
Smith Station Elementary
Spotswood Elementary
Spotsylvania High
Spotsylvania Middle
Thronburg Middle
Wilderness Elementary

Fredericksburg
Spotsylvania
Fredericksburg
Spotsylvania
Fredericksburg
Spotsylvania
Fredericksburg
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Fredericksburg
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania
Spotsylvania

School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter

Table 12: Stafford County Critical Facilities
Facility Name
Stafford Sheriff’s Office
Aquia Harbor Police
Dept. of Fire Rescue and Safety
Stafford County Fire Marshall
Stafford Volunteer Fire Assn
Company 8 Rock Hill Volunteer Fire
Company 1 Falmouth
Company 3 Widewater Fire and Rescue
Company 4 Mountain View Fire
Rescue 4 Mountain View EMS
Company 6 Hartwood Volunteer Fire & Rescue
Rescue 7 White Oak EMS
Company 12 Berea Fire & Rescue
Company 9 Aquia Fire & Rescue
Company 7 White Oak Fire
Rescue 8 Rock Hill EMS
Company 2 / Rescue 1 Stafford Fire & Rescue
Company 5 Brooke Fire & Rescue
Company 14 North Stafford Fire
Company 10 Potomac Hills Fire & Rescue
Smith Lake Water Treatment Facility
Abel Lake WTP
Aquia Wastewater Treatment Facility
Little Falls Run Wastewater Treatment Facility
Stafford County Schools Administration Center
Anne E. Moncure Elementary
Garrisonville Elementary
Park Ridge Elementary
Ferry Farm Elementary
Widewater Elementary
Falmouth Elementary School
Conway Elementary
Hampton Oaks Elementary
Stafford Elementary
Kate Walker Barret Elementary
Margaret Barret Elementary
Rockhill Elementary
Grafton Village Elementary
Winding Creek Elementary
Rocky Run Elementary
Anthony Burns Elementary
Hartwood Elementary

City
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Ruby
Falmouth
Stafford
Stafford
Falmouth
Hartwood
Falmouth
Stafford
Stafford
Falmouth
Ruby
Stafford
Brooke
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Aquia
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Fredericksburg
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Fredericksburg
Stafford
Fredericksburg
Stafford
Stafford

Facility type
Sheriff / EOC
Police Dept
Fire / Rescue
Fire Marshall
Fire Dept Headquarters
Fire
Fire D
Fire / Rescue
Fire
EMS
Fire / Rescue
Fire
Fire / Rescue
Fire / Rescue
Rescue
EMS
Fire / EMS
Fire / EMS
Fire
Fire / Rescue
Potable Water
Potable Water
Wastewater
Wastewater Treatment
Administration
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
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T. Benton Gayle Middle
Stafford Middle
Shirley C. Heim Middle
Rodney E. Thompson Middle
H. H. Poole Middle
Edward Drew Middle
Dixon-Smith Middle
A.G. Wright Middle
North Stafford High
Mountain View High
Stafford High
Brooke Point High
Colonial Forge High

Fredericksburg
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Falmouth
Fredericksburg
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford
Stafford

School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter
School / Shelter

Critical Infrastructure
The City of Fredericksburg has several petroleum pipelines that run through the upriver watershed from
which Fredericksburg obtains its water supply. All water supply reservoirs have been established on
tributaries, but the following pipelines still cross the Rappahannock River upstream of the water intakes
at Hunting Run, Motts Run, and Rocky Pen Run: The Colonial pipeline, Columbia Gas pipeline,
Transcontinental Gas line, Commonwealth Gas pipeline, and an additional pipeline carrying fuel from
Texas to New York running through the County.
Spotsylvania County, Livingston Elementary School is located nearby the Lake Anna North Anna Power
Station, which in the event of an emergency requires evacuation procedures that follows the Spotsylvania
County Schools Radiological Emergency Response Plan in coordination with Spotsylvania County
Emergency Service. In the event of an evacuation, the public will be directed to the Evacuation Assembly
Center.
Stafford County

Figure 21. Stafford County Infrastructure
Source: Stafford County Website
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Rivers and Impaired Waterways
The Planning District region includes many local waterways: Potomac River, Rappahannock River,
Mattaponi River, Numerous tributaries, Lake Anna and other lakes, Motts Run Reservoir and other
reservoirs; more than 40 state, county, and city parks; many battlefields and historic sites; and miles of
sidewalks, shared use paths, and bike trails along the waterways. GWRC needs clean waterways for
outdoor fun (kayaking, fishing, and swimming), public health (drinking water, seafood, and physical
health), and natural habitats for native plants, birds, and animals. GWRC has 113 impaired waterways as
of 2020. The impaired waterways in each jurisdiction throughout the region are in the process of being
identified (Appendix C).
Stafford County has 22 impaired waterways.
City of Fredericksburg has 3 impaired waterways.
Spotsylvania County has 35 impaired waterways.
King George County has 10 impaired waterways.
Caroline County has 43 impaired waterways.
TMDL implementation plans to restore water quality in the following watersheds include:
Mattaponi River Watershed – The majority of this watershed lie within Caroline and Spotsylvania
Counties. The 2016 TMDL report documented that E. coli levels at 15 monitoring locations had exceeded
the maximum assessment criterion of 235 colony forming units (cfu) per 100 milliliters (100 mL) for more
than 10.5 percent of the samples collected within a six-year assessment period.
Upper York River Basin is partially located in Spotsylvania County, the BMPs listed below and estimated
costs are based on all of the watersheds in the state of Virginia.
Agricultural Best Practices: The 2016 TMDL
report identified that bacteria from pasture land
is the largest source of bacteria in area streams.
For the Mattaponi River watershed, streamside
fencing to keep cattle out of streams, riparian
buffer areas along streams, and improved
pasture management are therefore top
priorities. A comprehensive suite of agricultural
best practices was identified and categorized as
“Livestock Exclusion, Pasture and Cropland
improvements, and Equine BMPs. Restricting
cattle access to streams eliminates direct
deposition of bacteria into area streams, creates
a riparian buffer zone between the fence and
stream, and reduces the quantity of bacteria
that reaches the stream through stormwater
runoff from pastures.

Figure 22. BMP for Agriculture in all of Virginia’s
Watersheds.
Source: DCR 2011 Technical Report

35

Residential Septic System Best Practices: Poorly
maintained or failing septic systems can
contribute significantly to bacteria
contamination of surface waters. The TMDL plan
was well informed on the number, age, and
geographical distribution of septic systems
across the watershed to support preparation of
the GWRC WIP III. The TMDL plan recommends
a combination of septic system maintenance,
repair, and system replacement BMPs, along
with a modest number of potential sewer
system hookups in watersheds served by
existing wastewater treatment facilities.

Figure 23. BMP for Septic in all Virginia’s Watersheds.
Source: DCR 2011 Technical Report

Developed Land Best Practices: Stormwater from
developed land also contributed to bacteria in
streams, especially where pet wastes are not
properly managed. Residential work group
members supported inclusion of pet waste
BMPs and an education and outreach program
to address pet waste sources of bacteria. The
cost of recommended stormwater and pet
waste management BMPs for each of the
identified impaired watersheds.

Figure 24. BMP for stormwater run-off in all Virginia’s
Watersheds.
Source: DCR 2011 Technical Report

Topography
Vulnerability to natural hazards such as sea level rise and flooding can be impacted by the topography of
an area, in the George Washington Region vulnerability to natural hazards are increased for low lying
coastal areas of Stafford and King George County.
Stafford County topography generally consists of rolling hills with most steep slopes occurring at the
County’s rivers, streams, and creeks. The elevation ranges from sea level to about 450 feet with higher
elevations towards the western part of the County. The County’s highest elevation is located at the
norther tip of the County.
Caroline County topography varies within the County depending on location, consisting of gentle and
moderate sloping with elevations ranging from 50 to 350 feet above sea level. Some areas with steep
slopes (>15%) exist along streams or rivers.
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King George County topography is flat with steep sloping, much of which is rugged. Elevations range from
0 feet to slightly over 200 feet above sea level. Slopes range from 0-10% in the plains and on ridge tops.
Slopes on the ridge rides range between 6% and 45%. A majority of the rugged topography lies north of
State Route 3 and west of U.S. 301.
Spotsylvania County topography is generally rolling hills and flat coastal plain, however there are areas
where fairly steep slopes exist as a result of erosion of streams over time. Elevation ranges from a high of
about 450 feet above sea level in the western section of the county to sea level in the northeastern area
along the Rappahannock River. Roughly 9% of the county’s soils are moderately sloped 15-25%, while an
additional 3.7% of county’s soils exceed 25% in slope.
City of Fredericksburg is characterized by moderate to steep slopes and elevations ranging between 280
feet above sea level at its highest reaches to less than 10 feet above sea level along the tidal portion of
the Rappahannock River, the average elevation is approximately 59 feet above sea level.

Soil Erodibility
Erodible soil refers to the transportation of soil by wind or water. Some soils are more susceptible to
erosion due to their composition as well as the slope and vegetative cover of the land. As development
continues to occur in the George Washington Region, counties should consider the soil erosion as this will
affect the siting suitability of dwellings, farming, or septic systems.
Stafford County soils classified as either highly erodible or potentially highly erodible is 75%.
Table 13: Stafford County Soil Erodibility

Erodibility

Acres

Percent

Not Highly Erodible Land

28,508

15.7%

Potentially Highly Erodible

73,049

40.2%

Highly Erodible Land

69,865

38.5%

Not Rated

10,259

5.6%

Caroline County land area is constituted by 21% highly erodible soils or 73,241 acres. The Chesapeake Bay
Preservation Act also identifies these soils as a resource worthy of designation as a component of the
Resource Management Area.
The City of Fredericksburg land area is constituted by almost 50% medium erodible soil, specifically
stratified Coastal Plain Sediment-Ruston-Faceville.
King George County does not have data on soil erodibility readily available to the public.
Spotsylvania County is one of the most diverse soil communities in Virginia, with approximately 42 soil
classifications mapped throughout the County by the U.S. Dept of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Services.
Spotsylvania does not have data on soil erodibility readily available to the public.
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Initial Needs for Regional Resilience
1. Defining what resilience means to GWRC.
2. Flood evacuation or snow evacuation plans for jurisdictions within the region
3. Obtain data and establish plan to address roadways that are prone to flooding within the GW
region.
4.

Environmental Justice: Identifying disproportionately at-risk (otherwise known as “front line”)
communities that need further assistance using environmental, social, and economic variables.
a. Create a plan to identify and address the environmental justice populations of the GW
Region.

5. Stafford County has a very thorough GIS database (Stafford GIS) and information readily available
to the public, all other jurisdictions in the region should attempt to update the data in theirs
accordingly to have consistent GIS mappers regionally. Being consistent with all of the entities
across the community to promote a truly coordinate effort for regional resilience.
a. Mapping dam inundation zones in all counties (Stafford County has already completed
this) and mapping high-risk dams throughout the region, this will protect human life and
property loss through better preparing the county and region as a whole in the event of a
dam failure.
6. Filling in data gaps in soil erodibility as this will impact flooding and development considerations
regionally.
a. Fredericksburg, King George County, and Spotsylvania do not have data on soil erodibility
readily available to the public
7. Identification and potential mapping of regional repetitive and severe repetitive loss structures.
8. Assessment of building codes being regularly updated and properly implemented.
9. GHG inventory for each locality and strategies to be net-zero by 2040
a. City of Fredericksburg already has this data and commitment to net zero.
10. Shoring up public and private lands that are prone to recurrent flooding or will be at higher flood
risk according to sea level rise and climate change models.
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Potential Resilience Projects and/or Policies:
1. Create a Coastal Resiliency Advisory Committee that is representative of the communities being
served to provide community engagement within the decision-making process.
2. Map dam vulnerability.
3. Identification of ecosystems/wetlands/floodplains that are suitable for permanent protection or
acquisition.
4. Create map of Regional Critical Facilities and Infrastructure.
5. Targeted community outreach for predominately minority, low-income, or other vulnerable
communities or communities that are not always included in the planning process.
6. Increased education on residential and private property green infrastructure projects.

Prioritizing Resilience Projects
The prioritization framework for regional resilience projects was based off an adapted version of the
prioritization process and metrics utilized in the GWRC Green Way Plan. The goals of the prioritization
process are to:
(1) Protect the built and natural environments from hazards
(a) Life, Property, Livelihoods
(2) Establish Regional finance plan
(3) Incorporate state-wide goals and recommendations into project prioritization
(4) Establish a framework for future resilience projects
The table below outlines the prioritization indicators that were identified and subsequent factors of
consideration within each indicator.

Prioritization Indicator
Safety

Factors of Considerations


Evacuation Routes



Available Funding
Shovel-Readiness
Right of Way/Public Property
Easements
Terrain Obstacles
Scale
o Policy versus individual
construction project versus
education campaign





Feasibility
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Prioritization Indicator

Factors of Considerations


Connectivity






Public/Political Support





Most Impacted Communities



Life Cycle Costs


Drainage
Habitats/Contiguous Greenways
Lack of flood resistant infrastructure
Density
Consistency with other regional goals and
plans
o State TMDL
o State Resilience
Public Buy-in and Participation in
regional resilience actions
ALICE and Disabled Populations
inclusion and accommodation within
resilience projects
Environmental Justice Population
o Avg. Income
o Key Health Indicators (life
expectancy, above average
asthma, heart disease, etc.)
o Vulnerabilities to natural hazards
Implementation/Construction costs versus
the projected co-benefits
Nature Based Solutions
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APPENDIX A – Relevant Data Bases
Database

Use/Purpose

Downloadable

Link:
Map Viewer:

Chesapeake
Healthy
Watersheds
Assessment

Virginia Natural
Heritage Data
Explorer

1. Support the Chesapeake Bay Program and its
jurisdiction partners
2. Detect “signals of change” in the state-identified
healthy watersheds
3. Provide information useful to support strategies to
protect and maintain watershed health
4. Provide an “early warning” to identify factors that
could cause future degradation
5. Allow for communication and management action

ConserveVirginia:
1. Agriculture & Forestry Category
2. Natural Habitat & Ecosystem Diversity Category
3. Floodplains & Flooding Resilience Category
4. Cultural & Historic Preservation Category
5. Scenic Preservation Category
6. Protected Landscapes Resilience Category
7. Water Quality Improvement Category

Virginia Coastal
1. Impaired waterways (303D)
Geospatial and
2. Threatened and endangered water species
Educational
3. Coastal wildlife concerns, conservation planning,
Mapping System
sea level rise impacts
(GEMS)

CCFR
Recurrent
Flooding Risk

Provides Coastal Virginia Sea Level Rise and Flooding
Predictions for 2040, 2060, and 2080. Includes: Flooded
Streets, Impacted Structures, Areas Impacted by
Moderate Flood Events, and Areas Permanently Flooded
by Sea Level Rise

https://gis.chesap
eakebay.net/healt
hywatersheds/ass
essment/
Yes
Data Portal:
https://datachesbay.opendata
.arcgis.com/
Map Viewer:
https://vanhde.or
g/content/map

Yes

Yes

Web Only

Data Download:
https://www.dcr.
virginia.gov/natur
alheritage/cldownl
oad
http://www.coast
algems.org/
Data Download:
Source varies.
Provided in
information
section for each
layer within the
map viewer.
https://www.arcgi
s.com/home/web
map/viewer.html
?webmap=36e75
8f7e2b544a9809
62faef1faaeb4&e
xtent=79.355,36.0917,71.2415,39.4684

41

Database

Use/Purpose

Downloadable

Link:
Link:
https://geohubvadeq.hub.arcgis.
com/

Virginia
Environmental
Data Mapper

Virginia Fish
and Wildlife
Information
Service

Provides water quality assessments, brownfields,
renewable energy, etc. layers

Provides a list of fish and wildlife for jurisdictions
within Virginia. Provides in-depth information
regarding specific species, habitat, distribution, etc.
Can be useful to identify threatened and endangered
species for CPDC jurisdictions.

Wildlife
Environmental
Review Map
Service

GIS shapefiles and Comprehensive datasets for
conservation planning and assessing potential impacts
to wildlife and recreational resources.

Virginia
Wildlife Action
Plan

Provides information on habitat conservation, local
action plan summary for the CPDC region, and
prioritization species

Virginia
threatened and
Endangered
Species

Virginia native
and naturalized
species,

Provides a comprehensive list of threatened and
endangered species in VA

Comprehensive list of Virginia Native and Naturalized
species

Yes

Yes, data tables
available by
locality

Yes, currently
subscriber only

PDF

PDF

PDF

Download:
https://geohubvadeq.hub.arcgis.
com/pages/f2d02
039086b4a5c845
152faa2f372e4
https://services.d
wr.virginia.gov/f
wis/?Menu=Hom
e

https://dwr.virgin
ia.gov/gis/werms/

Link to report:
http://bewildvirgi
nia.org/wildlifeaction-plan/
https://www.dgif.
virginia.gov/wpcontent/uploads/v
irginiathreatenedendangeredspecies.pdf
https://www.dgif.
virginia.gov/wpcontent/uploads/v
irginia-nativenaturalizedspecies.pdf
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Database

Virginia
Cultural
Resources
Information
System

Use/Purpose
VCRIS is the Department of Historic Resources’
statewide electronic cultural resources GIS and
database. It provides interactive views of information in
the DHR Archives related to properties, historic
districts, and archaeological sites, and presents
evaluative information about the historic significance of
resources.

Downloadable

Link:
https://www.dhr.
virginia.gov/vcris/

Online Viewer

Note: More comprehensive datasets are available with a
VCRIS License
Historic
Registers,
Virginia DHR
DCR’s Natural
Heritage
Website

Virginia Natural
Landscape
Assessment
(VaNLA)
DCR's Land
Conservation
Data Explorer
Geographic
Information
System
VDOT’s Scenic
Byways Map
Virginia
Estuarine and
Coastal
Observing
System

Listings of properties listed under the Virginia
Landmarks Registers, and the National Register of
Historic Places

Provides information on Natural Areas Preserves, Rare
Species and Natural Communities, Native Plants,
Invasive Plants, Caves/Karst, as well as site selection for
Pollinator Smart Solar Sites

N/A

Varies depending
on resource

A geospatial landscape analysis tool that can be used for
identifying, prioritizing, and linking natural lands in
Virginia. Provides data on Conserve Virginia priorities,
agriculture, cultural resources, and other categories.

Varies by data
type.

Provides a geospatial data on VA’s conservation lands.

Yes, shapefiles
and metadata are
available for
download.

Provides maps of VDOT listed scenic byways
throughout the State

Shows the results of water quality and meteorological
data monitoring from the Chesapeake Bay and
associated tributaries within Virginia.

Maps available
for download

https://www.dhr.
virginia.gov/histo
ric-registers/
https://www.dcr.
virginia.gov/natur
alheritage/naturalarea-preserves/

https://www.dcr.
virginia.gov/natur
alheritage/vaconvis
vnla
https://www.dcr.
virginia.gov/natur
al-heritage/clinfo

http://www.vdot.
virginia.gov/prog
rams/progbyways.asp
http://vecos.vims.
edu/Default.aspx

Yes
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Database
Chesapeake Bay
Monitoring
Cooperative –
Chesapeake
Data Explorer
Chesapeake Bay
Environmental
Forecast System
(CBEFS)

Adapt VA

Sea Level Rise,
NOAA

Coastal Flood
Exposure
Mapper, NOAA
Wetland
Condition
Assessment Tool
(WetCAT)

EnviroAtlas,
EPA

Use/Purpose
A tool for storing and sharing data collected by a
network of water quality. Contains data from multiple
resources and monitoring sites throughout the CPDC
region. Uses a GIS based map for displaying locations.
Uses a computer model to forecast the environmental
conditions throughout Chesapeake Bay every day,
including salinity and water temperature, along with
dissolved oxygen and acidification. Low dissolved
oxygen and changing acidification can have harmful
impacts on the Chesapeake Bay ecosystem.
Provides forecasting models regarding water levels,
temperature, and precipitation. Also includes case
studies for resilience planning for climate change, and
data resources
1. Visualize potential impacts from sea level rise
through maps and photos
2. Learn about data and methods through
documentation
3. Share maps and links via email and social media
Online visualization tool that supports localities in
assessing their coastal hazard risks and vulnerabilities.
Maps can be saved, downloaded, or shared to support in
communication of flood exposure and potential impacts.
A spatially-specific, interactive, only tool that provides
water quality and habitat condition assessment for
mapped non-tidal wetlands in Virginia.
EnviroAtlas provides geospatial data, easy-to-use
tools, and other resources related to ecosystem services,
their chemical and non-chemical stressors, and human
health.

Downloadable

Link:
https://cmc.vims.
edu/#/home

Yes

N/a web view
updated daily

https://www.vims
.edu/research/topi
cs/dead_zones/fo
recasts/cbay/inde
x.php
http://adaptva.org
/index.html

Yes

Yes

Yes

Online Viewer
with Map
Printing function.

https://coast.noaa
.gov/digitalcoast/t
ools/slr.html

https://coast.noaa
.gov/digitalcoast/t
ools/floodexposure.html
https://www.vims
.edu/ccrm/wetlan
ds_mgmt/wetcat/i
ndex.php
https://www.epa.
gov/enviroatlas

Yes
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Database

Chesapeake Bay
and the Outer
Coasts of
Maryland and
Virginia 2016
ESI FISH
Polygons, Lines

Virginia
Vulnerability
Viewer

Use/Purpose
This data set contains sensitive biological resource data
for marine, estuarine, anadromous, and freshwater fish
species in Chesapeake Bay and the Outer Coasts of
Maryland and Virginia. Vector polygons in this data set
represent fish distribution, concentration areas,
spawning areas, nursery areas, and migration runs.
Species specific abundance, seasonality, status, life
history, and source information are stored in relational
data tables (described below) designed to be used in
conjunction with this spatial data layer. This data set
comprises a portion of the ESI data for Chesapeake Bay
and the Outer Coasts of Maryland and Virginia. ESI
data characterize the marine and coastal environments
and wildlife by their sensitivity to spilled oil. The ESI
data include information for three main components:
shoreline habitats, sensitive biological resources, and
human-use resources. See also the FISHL data layer,
part of the larger Chesapeake Bay and the Outer Coasts
of Maryland and Virginia ESI database, for additional
fish information.

Online mapping tool providing social and environmental
vulnerability throughout Virginia

EJSCREEN:
Environmental
Justice
Screening and
Mapping Tool

EJSCREEN is an environmental justice mapping and
screening tool that provides EPA with a nationally
consistent dataset and approach for combining
environmental and demographic indicators. EJSCREEN
users choose a geographic area; the tool then provides
demographic and environmental information for that
area. All of the EJSCREEN indicators are publicly
available data. EJSCREEN simply provides a way to
display this information and includes a method for
combining environmental and demographic indicators
into EJ indexes.

VTrans
Vulnerability
Assessment

Provides a screening level assessment of the
vulnerability of Virginia’s transportation system public
roadways and VDOT-maintained structures, covered in
the National Bridge Inventory (NBI), to projected sea
level rise, storm surge, and inland/riverine flooding
scenarios.

Downloadable

Link:
https://www.fishe
ries.noaa.gov/inp
ort/item/55093

Yes

Online viewer

https://cmap2.vi
ms.edu/SocialVul
nerability/SocioV
ul_SS.html

Link:
https://www.epa.
gov/ejscreen

Yes

Limited English
Proficiency Link:
https://www.lep.g
ov.
Data Download:
https://www.epa.
gov/ejscreen/dow
nload-ejscreendata

No

https://www.vtra
ns.org/long-termplanning/vulnera
bility
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APPENDIX B – Goals and Objectives of Previous Regional Plans

ID
Number

Year

Project Description

GWR-1

2017

Establish uniform GIS standards
for capabilities and data
throughout the GWRC region.

GWR-2

GWR-3

GWR-4

GWR-5

2017

2017

2017

2017

Continue to improve regional
inter-operable emergency
communications and planning by
coordinating and sharing GIS and
other data.

Refine and make available to the
jurisdictions, the current regional
critical facilities database
maintained by the GWRC. Ensure
common definition of critical
facilities among the region and
map each location using GIS.
Improve signage along major
interstates and thoroughfares with
interactive signs to provide
hazard warnings, weather
information, road closings, etc.
Suggested locations include I-95
and Routes 1, 3, 17, 301, and 610.
Investigate emergency
lane/shoulder improvements for
Emergency Services access on all
primary roads.

Lead/
Support
Agency

Funding
Source

Target
Completion Date

Interim Measure
of Success
Continued
transmission of GIS
datasets to central
ftp site
Develop
information sharing
plan to focus on
sharing GIS
datasets, MOUs,
and IT procurement
documents

Priority –
(High,
Medium,
Low)

GWRC

Local

On-going

Medium

GWRC

FEMA Unified
Hazard
Mitigation
Assistance
Funding

On-going

GWRC

FEMA Unified
Hazard
Mitigation
Assistance
Funding

2017

Define critical
facilities

Low

GWRC/FAMPO

FAMPO Unified
Planning Work
Program

On-going

Incorporate in
LRTP as program
recommendation

Low

GWRC/FAMPO

FAMPO Unified
Planning Work
Program

On-going

Recommendations
in special corridor
studies

Low

Medium
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GWR-6

GWR-7

GWR-8

GWR-9

GWR-10

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

Identify and publicize local
evacuation routes throughout the
region.
Identify traffic plan/alternative
routes due to closures on primary
routes such as 1, 3, 17, 301, and
610.
Evaluate the vulnerability of the
region’s critical facilities to
hazards and make
recommendations for improving
resiliency; focusing on generator
power to shelters.
Review regional compliance with
the NFIP on an annual basis and
make recommendations where
appropriate.
Develop a regional preparedness
guide focusing on natural hazards
to disseminate to the public.

GWRC/FAMPO

FAMPO Unified
Planning Work
Program

On-going

Incorporate in
LRTP as program
recommendation

High

GWRC/FAMPO

FAMPO Unified
Planning Work
Program

On-going

Recommendations
in special corridor
studies

Low

GWRC

FEMA Unified
Hazard
Mitigation
Assistance
Funding

2019

Define critical
facility

High

Annually

Determine review
parameters

High

2018

Identify funding
source and
determine hazards
to be included in
guide

Low

GWRC

GWRC

FEMA Unified
Hazard
Mitigation
Assistance
Funding
FEMA Unified
Hazard
Mitigation
Assistance
Funding
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GWRC Hazard Mitigation Plan Goals
The development of strategies included a thorough review of all-natural hazards and identified far-reaching policies and projects intended not only
to reduce the future impacts of hazards, but also to assist counties and municipalities achieve compatible economic, environmental, and social
goals.
1. Prevention of Future Risk
2. Protection of the Built Environment
3. Natural Resource Protection
4. Hazard Modification Through Construction
5. Emergency Services
6. Public Education and Awareness
The Regional Goals include:
1. Identify and implement projects that will eliminate long-term risk, directly reduce impacts from hazards, and maintain continuity of
critical societal functions.
2. Incorporate mitigation concepts and objectives into existing and future policies, plans, regulations, and laws in the Commonwealth.
3. Improve the quality of the data and analysis used in hazard identification and risk assessment processes in state, local, and university
hazard mitigation plans.
4. Through training, education, and outreach promote awareness of hazards, their risk, and potential mitigation actions in order to increase
resiliency.
In addition to the adoption of the Hazard Mitigation Plan, the GWRC communities will attempt to:
 Pursue the implementation of the high-priority, low/no-cost recommended actions
 Keep the concept of mitigation in the forefront of community decision-making by identifying and stressing the recommendations of the
Hazard Mitigation Plan when other community goals, plans, and activities are discussed and decided upon
 Maintain a constant monitoring of multi-objective, cost-share opportunities to assist the participating communities in implementing the
recommended actions of this plan for which no current funding or support is available.
The GWRC region will remain committed to the National Flood Insurance Program, they will continue to enforce floodplain regulations and
undertake other actions to remain in compliance with the program.
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Priority
1-Low
5-High

Project
Phase

2

Locality

Location

Strategy /
Project Name

Conceptual

Caroline
County

Bowling
Green

Floodplain
improvements

GWRC Hazard
Mitigation Plan

2

Conceptual

Caroline
County

Caroline
County

Floodplain
improvements

GWRC Hazard
Mitigation Plan

2

Conceptual

Caroline
County

Port Royal

Floodplain
improvements

GWRC Hazard
Mitigation Plan

2

Conceptual

Floodplain
improvements

GWRC Hazard
Mitigation Plan

2

Conceptual

King George
County

King George
County

Floodplain
improvements

GWRC Hazard
Mitigation Plan

2

Conceptual

Spotsylvania
County

Spotsylvania
County

Floodplain
improvements

GWRC Hazard
Mitigation Plan

City of
City of
Fredericksburg Fredericksburg

Project Idea
Source

Brief Description
Develop and support a program for mitigation of
priority flood-prone structures through promotion of
acquisition/ demolition, elevation, flood proofing,
minor localized flood control projects, mitigation
reconstruction. The county does not have capacity
to carry this out.
Develop and support a program for mitigation of
priority flood-prone structures through promotion of
acquisition/ demolition, elevation, flood proofing,
minor localized flood control projects, mitigation
reconstruction. The county does not have capacity
to carry this out
Develop and support a program for mitigation of
priority flood-prone structures through promotion of
acquisition/ demolition, elevation, flood proofing,
minor localized flood control projects, mitigation
reconstruction. The county does not have capacity
to carry this out
Develop and support a program for mitigation of
priority flood-prone structures through promotion of
acquisition/ demolition, elevation, flood proofing,
minor localized flood control projects, mitigation
reconstruction. The county does not have capacity
to carry this out
Develop and support a program for mitigation of
priority flood-prone structures through promotion of
acquisition/ demolition, elevation, flood proofing,
minor localized flood control projects, mitigation
reconstruction. The county does not have capacity
to carry this out
Develop and support a program for mitigation of
priority flood-prone structures through promotion of
acquisition/ demolition, elevation, flood proofing,
minor localized flood control projects, mitigation
reconstruction. The county does not have capacity
to carry this out

Potential
Funding
Source
FEMA /
VDEM

FEMA /
VDEM

FEMA /
VDEM

FEMA /
VDEM

FEMA /
VDEM

FEMA /
VDEM
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Environmental Services Strategic Plan (2020)
GWRC worked with regional stakeholders to develop a multi-year strategic plan for coastal zone management that aligns with the goals and focus
areas of the Virginia Coastal Zone Management Program (CZM) and responds to needs of the local jurisdictions of Planning District 16.
The conceptual development and prioritization of projects equipped GWRC with a list of projects ranging from planning activities to “shovelready” designs. These are not limited to shoreline or stormwater management projects. The plans goals, objectives, and strategies are focused in
10 areas, one of which being resilience.

Strategic Plan Approach
NOAA’s Office for Coastal Management recommends assessing the target population, preforming a self-evaluation, and developing a niche as the
first steps in the strategic planning process. Stakeholder identification and assessment focused on member locality staff, decision makers, and
other interested stakeholders in the region. The following stakeholders are identified below.
State Government Stakeholders:
DEQ, VDOF, DCR, DWR, VDOT, VDEM, VDH, DHCD, DSS
Local Government Stakeholders:
Caroline County, City of Fredericksburg, King George County, Spotsylvania County, Stafford County
Other Interested Stakeholders:
U.S. Army Fort A.P. Hill, Naval District Washington, Marine Corps Base Quantico, University of Mary Washington, Germanna Community College,
Friends of the Rappahannock, York and Small Coastal Basin Roundtable, Rappahannock River Basin Commission, Soil and Water Conservation
Districts, Virginia Cooperative Extension, VA Institute of Marine Science, Climate Environment and Readiness, Northern Virginia Conservation trust,
Friends of Dahlgren Railroad Heritage Trail, Resilience Adaptation Feasibility Tool, and Private companies.
The Environmental Services Strategic Plan includes a list of projects with sources of funding and timelines for completion as well as identifies areas
of potential collaboration between regional stakeholders.
The full plan can be found at: https://gwregion.org/environment/environmental-services-strategic-plan
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GWRC Green Infrastructure Plan
In 2009 GIS was utilized to quantify the amount of impervious surface and tree canopy, and the trends affecting a change in the relative amount of
these dominant land cover patterns. Using this data GWRC worked to encourage and support active local conservation efforts and the adoption of
BMPs to reduce stormwater run-off and associated sedimentation and pollution of regional stream and water bodies, producing maps of the
Region’s designated impaired waterways, regional eco-cores and corridors, potential regional greenway routes, and assessments of the ecosystem
service value of the regions tree canopy.

Findings
1) The active development of the Region over the 13-year period from 1996 through 2009 contributed to a loss of 4.17% of its tree canopy, while
gaining 2.80% of urban bare area, 8.68% of open space, and 43.46% of impervious surface area. The Region is still blessed with an enviable
amount of tree canopy land cover, relative to other rapidly urbanizing or established urban metro areas.
2) The cumulative changes to the Region’s land cover and associated losses to the Region’s tree canopy resulted in the loss of the tree canopy’s
ability to naturally manage 222.98 million cubic feet of stormwater, valued at $1.06 billion using the average cost assumption of $4.75 per
cubic foot for man-made stormwater retention facilities. The Region’s “green infrastructure” also lost the ability to remove approximately 2.89
million lbs. of air pollutants annually, valued at $7.74 million per year, 1.24 million lbs. of carbon stored in trees’ wood, and 9,616 lbs. of
annual carbon sequestration.
3) Local governments in the region do not, generally speaking, have reliable data on the amount of impervious surface area within their
jurisdiction to estimate stormwater runoff by sub-watershed or to use to identify priority areas for urban retrofit programs or to target
reforestation efforts.
4) Active coordination between local government urban stormwater management programs and rural-oriented Soil and Water Conservation
District programs is vital to achieve balanced reductions in non-point source pollution. The SWCDs will be challenged in addressing agricultural
run-off issues and facilitating the development of nutrient management plans for each agricultural operation.
5) Between the urban MS4 program requirements and the Chesapeake Bay Preservation Act regulations requiring a cataloging of installed BMPs
in each CBPA community, both urban and rural; all localities in the region should have a good grasp of the distribution of these facilities
throughout their jurisdiction. However, the over-lapping and (at-times) seemingly contradictory stormwater regulations under various federal
and state programs challenge local governments to cost-effectively manage development and associated stormwater-related water quality
impacts.
6) Many of the planning tools authorized under the Code of Virginia have been utilized by local governments in PD 16 to manage growth and
development and promote, directly or indirectly, the enhancement of the Region’s green infrastructure.
7) Green infrastructure planning practice in the Region heretofore has focused somewhat more on advancing the stormwater management
practices (as part of local governments’ response to federal and state environmental mandates). However, such notable efforts as the
acquisition of Crow’s Nest – Part 2, the adoption of a Spotsylvania County Trailways Plan and local designation of urban development areas
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demonstrates local movement toward the identification, prioritization and conservation of rural forests, working farms and other open spaces
for their recognized ecological asset value.
8) Local governments have supported exploration (through Rappahannock River Basin Commission and other initiatives) of innovative
approaches to “green infrastructure” planning, such as the development of a regional nutrient credit trading program and other market-based
approaches to removing pollutants from the air and water sources that pollute the Chesapeake Bay and its tributaries.
9) There is no established locally-based, conservation-oriented land trust in Planning District 16 that can hold conservation easements.
Consequently, local conservation easement negotiations must involve such out-of-region interest as the Northern Virginia Conservation Trust,
the Virginia Outdoors Foundation and other entities.
10) Local governments are interested, if designated an ozone non-attainment area, in being added to the Code of Virginia (§ 15.2-961.1) that
allows referenced local governments authority to adopt a local ordinance to include in site plan review provisions for the preservation or
replacement of trees on the development site.
GWRC Green Infrastructure Plan- Recommendations
1) Adopt quantitative regional goals to achieve reforestation and land conservation outcomes, including:
a) Increasing regional tree canopy by 5 percent (approximately 51.5 sq. miles), thereby restoring a little more than the amount of tree
canopy lost in the Region in the 1996-2009 era, with priority given to infilling gaps in riparian buffers, and other areas that complement
water quality protection programs implemented and expanded to respond to Chesapeake Bay watershed implementation planning goals.
b) Encouraging public and private landowners to increase land acreage in the Region under conservation easement by 14,300 acres,
representing the Region’s pro-rata share of Governor McDonnell’s 400,000-acre statewide conservation easement goal for his 4-year plan.
2) Continued collaboration of GWRC’s ad-hoc watershed implementation plan committee with full local government technical staff participation
and broad involvement of community-wide stakeholders from all sectors to develop a comprehensive, cost-effective regional responses to
Chesapeake Bay Watershed Implementation Plan Phase 2 process and expansion of the installed inventory of BMPs.
3) Should a grant opportunity materialize, local governments should work through GWRC to create a 1-meter (or better) classified land cover
data layer that could better define the Region’s green and grey infrastructure and support comprehensive land use planning, green
infrastructure planning and watershed implementation and stormwater management planning.
4) GWRC Boars endorsement of the Regional Green Infrastructure Plan and direction to staff to communicate the Plan document to local
governments and other stakeholders in the Region as an advisory tool to help public and private actors incorporate green infrastructure
planning into public and private comprehensive planning and land development processes.
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Good Jobs Here Report
Goal 1. Create A Strong and Unique Regional Community Identity
Objectives and Strategies
1-1

1-2

1-3

Develop our regional identity
1-1a. Gather studies and other resources to understand identities of local
communities in our region
1-1b. Analyze and conglomerate identities of local communities
1-1c. Investigate our region’s role in the larger identities of Virginia, the MidAtlantic region, and the east coast considering the state capital, national capital,
highway system, waterways, and other features
1-1d. Develop a description of our regional identity
Promote our regional identity
1-2a. Create branding and marketing materials to advertise our identity
1-2b. Distribute and advertise our identity
1-2c. Collaborate within and across the region to promote adoption and use of our
identity
Live up to the regional identity
1-3a. Develop regional metrics for success and a tracking and reporting system
1-3b. Create regional task forces to address specific regional identity issues
1-3c. Develop a regional revenue sharing strategy

Responsible
Party/Agency

Timeframe

GWRC / FRA

Short

GWRC / FRA

Short

GWRC / FRA

Short

GWRC / FRA

Short

GWRC / FRA
GWRC / FRA

Short
Short

GWRC / FRA

Short

GWRC / FRA
GWRC
GWRC

Short
Medium
Medium

Goal 2. Support Existing and Future Businesses
Objectives and Strategies
2-1

2-2

Revise regulations to lower barriers to major employers and small businesses
2-1a. Create an advocacy review group and provide guidance on legislative issues
2-1b. Streamline local ordinances
2-1c. Lighten restrictions on zoning
2-1d. Simplify the process for starting a new business
Retain and attract employers
2-2a. Develop a regional strategy for SWAM businesses (small, women-owned, and
minority)

Responsible
Party/Agency

Timeframe

FRCC
GWRC / CKSSF
GWRC / CKSSF
GWRC / CKSSF

Short
Medium
Medium
Medium

FRCC

Short
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2-2b. Recruit large employers
2-2c. Attract out-commuters and non-residents to work in region and increase
workforce.
2-2d. Redevelop current commercial business parks
2-2e. Promote a network among business owners and industry representatives in the
region to create a vibrant economy
2-2f. Promote collaborations and partnerships among businesses, non-profits, and
educational organizations in the region to spur innovation
2-2g. Create co-working space and other amenities for non-traditional
companies/jobs

FRCC

Medium

FRCC

Medium

FRCC / CKSSF

Long

GWRC / FRCC

Short

GWRC / FRCC

Short

GWRC / FRCC

Short

Goal 3. Increase Vocational Education and Skilled Trade Capacity
Objectives and Strategies
3-1

3-2

3-3

Identify technical trade skills gap
3-1a. Poll regional employers on technical trade skill needs
3-1b. Evaluate the industry for technical trade skill needs of potential new businesses
3-1c. Evaluate availability of vocational education on those trade skills
Build capacity in adult workforce
3-3a. Develop vocational education on trade skills in demand
3-3b. Advertise vocational education opportunities to increase enrollment
3-3c. Identify those with an aptitude for trade skills and connect them to vocational education
3-3d. Promote collaborations and partnerships among businesses, non-profits, and
educational organizations in the region related to skilled trades
Build capacity in future workforce
3-3a. Restructure high school education programs to provide more training for regional jobs.
For example, provide a pilot program for healthcare fields (more than nursing)
3-3b. Refocus high school education on career options, job availability, and impacts on
lifestyle
3-3c. Promote collaborations and partnerships in the region to provide career exploration
opportunities, like field trips, apprenticeships, internships, and training opportunities.

Responsible
Party/Agency

Timeframe

GWRC / FRA
FRA / FRCC
FRA

Short
Short
Short

GCC
FRA / FRCC
RUW / GI

Medium
Medium
Medium

GWRC / FRCC

Short

PSS

Short

PSS

Medium

PSS / GCC / FRCC

Short
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Goal 4. Support A Good Quality of Life for Our Workforce
Objectives and Strategies
4-1

4-2

4-3

Support success of individuals
4-1a. Provide education and services spanning the life continuum (housing, food security, job
security, financial literacy, etc.)
4-1b. Identify ALICE citizens. Create innovative solutions to meet ALICE needs
4-1c. Identify and meet the needs of pre-ALICE people (people not yet employed)
Improve community services
4-2a. Create an employer’s council to address barriers to employment around affordable
housing, family care (child and adult), background issues, and transportation.
4-2b. Create a childcare initiative among local business to help fund and subsidize for
employees
4-2c. Develop a regional resilience plan addressing social, economic, and environmental
aspects
4-2d. Set diversity and inclusion targets for boards and commissions
4-2e. Encourage public engagement by addressing physical, financial, and social accessibility
challenges
4-2f. Promote collaborations and partnerships in the region among public and private social
services providers to better meet the needs of our citizens.
Improve community infrastructure
4-3a. Evaluate and address the need for affordable housing
4-3b. Improve and expand regional transit and non-motorized transportation options
4-3c. Expand access to broadband
4-3d. Promote mixed-use development practices and redevelopment of current corridors

Responsible
Party/Agency

Timeframe

FRA / RUW / GI

Short

FRA / RUW / GI
FRA / RUW / GI

Short
Short

FRA / FRCC

Short

FRA / FRCC

Short

GWRC / FRA

Short

GWRC / FRA

Short

CKSSF

Short

FRA / RUW / GI

Short

FRA / CKSSF /
FABA
FAMPO
FRA / CKSSF /
FABA

Medium
Medium
Medium
Long
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APPENDIX C – Impaired Waterways (DEQ Environmental Data Mapper 2020).
Stafford County
Assessment ID

Water Name

VANE10R_ALC01A00

Alcotti Run

VANA28R_AUS02A06

Watershed
Waterway is
located in

Impairment

Source

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Impacts from Land
Application of Wastes, Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife Other
than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations), Sewage
Discharges in Unsewered Areas, Runoff from
Forest/Grassland/Parkland.

Austin Run

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Sanitary Sewer Overflows
(Collection System Failures), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers, Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland

VANA28R_AUS01A04

Austin Run

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Sanitary Sewer Overflows
(Collection System Failures), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers, Runoff from Forest/Grassland/

VANA29R_XLB01A08

Unnamed
tributary to
Long Branch

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Benthic
Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments

Source Unknown

VANA29R_POM02A06

Potomac Creek

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Sanitary Sewer Overflows
(Collection System Failures), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers, Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
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VANA29R_ACC01A00

Accokeek Creek

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Sanitary Sewer Overflows
(Collection System Failures), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers, Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland

VANA27R_AUA01A00

Aquia Creek

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Source Unknown

VANE20R_FAL01A04

Falls Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Benthic
Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments

Source Unknown

VANA29R_POR01A06

Potomac Run

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Benthic
Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments,
Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown,
Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations), Urban Runoff/Storm
Sewers, Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland

VANA29R_POM01A00

Potomac Creek

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown,
Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations), Urban Runoff/Storm
Sewers, Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland

VANE19R_HOR01A04

Horsepen Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Source Unknown

VANE20R_CLB01A00

Claiborne Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E.
coli), PCBs in Fish
Tissue

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers

VANA27R_XLN01A10

Unnamed
tributary to
Aquia Creek

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Dissolved Oxygen

Source Unknown
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VANE20R_RPP01A10

Rappahannock
River

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E.
coli), PCBs in Fish
Tissue

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers

VANA27R_AUA02A02

Aquia Creek

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Source Unknown

VANA26R_XLF01A10

Unnamed
tributary to
Potomac River

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Escherichia coli (E.
coli), pH

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown,
Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations), Urban Runoff/Storm
Sewers, Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland

VANE20R_LIA01A04

Little Falls Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Benthic
Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments,
Escherichia coli (E. coli)

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers

VANA26R_SOB01A12

South Branch
Chopawamsic
Creek

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Source Unknown

VANE10R_DPR01A00

Deep Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Impacts from Land
Application of Wastes, Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife Other
than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations), Sewage
Discharges in Unsewered Areas, Runoff from
Forest/Grassland/Parkland.

VANE21R_WHT01A06

White Oak Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Benthic
Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments,
Escherichia coli (E.
coli), pH

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards
Use Attainment
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VANA26R_NOR01A02

North Branch
Chopawamsic
Creek

Potomac and
Shenandoah
River Basins

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Sanitary Sewer Overflows (Collection System Failures), Wastes from
Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing
or Feeding Operations), Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers, Runoff from
Forest/Grassland/Parkland

VANE21R_MUY01B20

Muddy Creek

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers

VANE21R_MUY01A00

Muddy Creek

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers

Impairment

Source
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers

City of Fredericksburg
Watershed
Waterway is
located in

Assessment ID

Water Name

VANE20R_XIA01A12

Unnamed
tributary to
Hazel Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANE20R_XHN01A10

Unnamed
tributary to
Hazel Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANE20R_HAL01A00

Hazel Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Benthic
Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments,
Escherichia coli (E.
coli), PCBs in Fish
Tissue
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King George County
Assessment ID

Water Name

VANA30R_PEP01A10

Pepper Mill
Creek

VAPA31R_PIN01A00

Pine Hill
Creek
Watershed
Lambs Creek

VANE21R_LAM01A08

Watershed
Waterway is
located in

Impairment

Source

Potomac and
Shenandoah River
Basins
Potomac and
Shenandoah River
Basins
Rappahannock
River Basin

Dissolved Oxygen, pH

Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability
Analyses Needed

Escherichia coli (E.
coli)

Non-point Source

Escherichia coli (E.
coli)

Potomac and
Shenandoah River
Basins
Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E.
coli)

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers
Source Unknown

VANA29R_DBR01A10

Dirt Bridge
Run

VANE21R_GIN01A08

Gingoteague
Creek

VANE21R_JET01A10

Jetts Creek

Rappahannock
River Basin

Benthic
Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments,
Escherichia coli (E.
coli)
Escherichia coli (E.
coli)

VANE21R_MUY01A00

Muddy Creek

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E.
coli)

VAPA31R_MAO01A98

Mattox Creek

Escherichia coli (E.
coli)

VANA30R_GAM01A04

Gambo Creek

Potomac and
Shenandoah River
Basins
Potomac and
Shenandoah River
Basins

Dissolved Oxygen, pH

Source Unknown

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations)
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers
Municipal Point Source Discharges, Non-Point Source

Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability
Analyses Needed
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VANE21R_MUY01B20

Muddy Creek

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E.
coli)

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers

Caroline County
Assessment ID

Watershed
Water Name Waterway is
located in

Impairment

Source
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards
Use Attainability Analyses Needed, Sewage Discharges in
Unsewered
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Source Unknown

VANF17R_MPN02A20

Mattaponi
River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF17R_MPN01A02

Mattaponi
River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF22R_MAR04A08

Maracossic
Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli), pH

VANF17R_MPN02B02

Mattaponi
River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF20R_PCT01A00
VANF20R_PCT01B06

Polecat Creek

York River
Basin
York River
Basin

Benthic Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments
Dissolved Oxygen

Polecat Creek

Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability
Analyses Needed
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VANF19R_HBS01A00

Hobby Swamp

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli), pH

VANF22R_MAR03A08

Maracossic
Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF17R_MPN03A02

Mattaponi
River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF22R_DOC01A08

Doctors Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli), pH

VANF21R_RDY02B10

Reedy Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli),
Mercury in Fish Tissue

VANF21R_MPN02A02
VANF21R_RDY01A10
VANF21R_RDY02A10

Mattaponi
River
Reedy Creek

York River
Basin
York River
Basin
York River
Basin

VANF19R_MOT01A04

Motto River

Reedy Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)
Mercury in Fish Tissue
Benthic Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments, Escherichia
coli (E. coli), Mercury in Fish
Tissue
Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards
Use Attainability Analyses Needed, Sewage Discharges in
Unsewered
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards
Use Attainability Analyses Needed, Sewage Discharges in
Unsewered
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown,
Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in
Unsewered Areas, Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Source Unknown
Source Unknown
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown,
Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in
Unsewered Areas, Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
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VANF20R_PCT02A02

Polecat Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF17R_PNI01A10

Poni River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF19R_STH03A08

South River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF22R_BEV02A08
VANE21R_MIC02A06
VAPF09R_XIM01A10
VANF18R_MTA01A00

Beverly Run

York River
Basin
Rappahannock
River Basin
York River
Basin
York River
Basin

pH

VANF17R_XJV01A18

Unnamed
Tributary to
Poni River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli), pH

VANF21R_BOT01A20
VAPF09R_NAR01A00
VANF22R_BEV01B00

Boot Swamp

York River
Basin
York River
Basin
York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability
Analyses Needed
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Discharges from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4),
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards
Use
Source Unknown

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Municipal Point Source Discharges, Non-Point Source

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland

Mill Creek
North Anna,
UT
Matta River

North Anna
River
Beverly Run

Benthic Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments
pH
Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Discharges from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4),
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability
Analyses Needed
Source Unknown
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VANF17R_XJV02A16
VANE21R_MIC01A08
VANE21R_WAE02A04
VANF21R_HER02A04
VANF22R_MAR01A02

Unnamed
Tributary to
Poni River
Mill Creek

Ware Creek
Herring Creek
Maracossic
Creek

York River
Basin

pH

Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability
Analyses Needed

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Rappahannock
River Basin
York River
Basin
York River
Basin

Benthic Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments, pH
Benthic Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments
Escherichia coli (E. coli)

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations)
Source Unknown, Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards
Use Attainability Analyses Needed
Source Unknown

VAPF09R_MLL01A12

Mill Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli), pH

VANE21R_GLL01A08

Goldenvale
Creek

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli), pH

VANF16R_POR01A10

Po River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VAPF09R_NAR02A00
VANF15R_NIR01A00

North Anna
RIver
Ni River

York River
Basin
York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)
Benthic Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments, Escherichia
coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Municipal Point Source Discharges, Non-Point Source, Natural
Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability Analyses
Needed
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability
Analyses
Discharges from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4),
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff
Municipal Point Source Discharges, Non-Point Source
Discharges from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4),
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown,
Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in
Unsewered Area
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VANE21R_MTC01A08

Mount Creek

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli), pH

VAPF09R_XHS01A08

XHS – North
Anna River,
UT
Portobago
Creek

York River
Basin

Benthic Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli), pH

VANE21R_PBC01A10

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability
Analyses
Industrial Point Source Discharge, Source Unknown

VANE21R_WAE01A08

Ware Creek

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VAPF11R_LTL01A98
VAPF04R_SAR03A98
VAPF12R_PMK01B08

Little River

York River
Basin
York River
Basin
York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability
Analyses
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers
Municipal Point Source Discharges, Non-Point Source

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Municipal Point Source Discharges, Non-Point Source

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Municipal Point Source Discharges, Non-Point Source

South Anna
River
Pamunkey
River
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Spotsylvania County
Assessment ID

Water Name

VANF16R_POR01C06

Po River

VANF16R_GDY01A10

Watershed
Waterway is
located in

Impairment

Source

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Glady Run

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF16R_POR01B02

Po River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF18R_BLF01A20
VANF18R_TAR01A00

Bluff Run

York River
Basin
York River
Basin

Dissolved Oxygen

VANF09R_XIA01A06

Unnamed
tributary to
Northeast Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF18R_MAT02A18

Mat River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Discharges from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4),
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Discharges from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4),
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability
Analyses Needed
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Impacts from Land
Application of Wastes, Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas, Runoff from
Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland

Ta River

Escherichia coli (E. coli)
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VANF18R_MAT01A12

Mat River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF15R_BRK01A06

Brock Run

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF09R_MUS01A06

Music Branch

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF18R_MTA02A04

Matta River

York River
Basin

Benthic Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments, Escherichia
coli (E. coli)

VANF09R_NST04A08

Northeast Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF15R_BRK01B12
VANE20R_MAP04A02

Brock Run

York River
Basin
Rappahannock
River Basin

pH

VANF09R_NST03A08

Massaponax
Creek

Northeast Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Impacts from Land
Application of Wastes, Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas, Runoff from
Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown,
Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in
Unsewered Areas, Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Impacts from Land
Application of Wastes, Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas, Runoff from
Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Source Unknown
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Impacts from Land
Application of Wastes, Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas, Runoff from
Forest/Grassland/Parkland
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VANF16R_POR01A10

Po River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANE20R_MAP03A02

Massaponax
Creek

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANE20R_XFE01A02

Unnamed
tributary to
Massaponax
Creek
Ni River

Rappahannock
River Basin

pH

York River
Basin

Benthic Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments, Escherichia
coli (E. coli)

VANE19R_MIN02A14

Mine Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF18R_MTA01A00

Matta River

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF09R_NST02A98

Northeast Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF07R_PLT01A00

Plentiful Creek

York River
Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANF15R_NIR01A00

Discharges from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4),
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers
Source Unknown

Discharges from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4),
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown,
Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in
Unsewered Area
Source Unknown

Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Impacts from Land
Application of Wastes, Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas, Runoff from
Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Impacts from Land
Application of Wastes, Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas, Runoff from
Forest/Grassland/Parkland
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Impacts from Land
Application of Wastes, Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas, Runoff from
Forest/Grassland/Parkland
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VANE18R_WIL01A08

Wilderness Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations)
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers
Natural Conditions - Water Quality Standards Use Attainability
Analyses Needed

VANE20R_MAP02B12

Massaponax
Creek

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANE20R_XHN01A10

Unnamed
Tributary to
Hazel Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANE20R_DEP03A12

Deep Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

pH

VANE20R_HAL01A00

Hazel Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

VANF19R_STH03A08

South River

York River
Basin

Benthic Macroinvertebrates
Bioassessments, Escherichia
coli (E. coli), PCBs in Fish
Tissue
Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANE18R_RAP03A02

Rapidan River

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli),
Mercury in Fish Tissue

VANE20R_DEP02A18

Deep Run

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

VANE18R_RAP01A02

Rapidan River

Rappahannock
River Basin

Mercury in Fish Tissue

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers
Grazing in Riparian or Shoreline Zones, Wastes from Pets,
Waterfowl, Wildlife Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations), Sewage Discharges in Unsewered Areas,
Runoff from Forest/Grassland/Parkland
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Source Unknown, Livestock (Grazing or
Feeding Operations)
On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers
Source Unknown

VANE18R_RAP02A02

Rapidan River

Rappahannock
River Basin

Mercury in Fish Tissue

Source Unknown
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VANE18R_RAP04A04

Rapidan River

Rappahannock
River Basin

Mercury in Fish Tissue

Source Unknown

VANE20R_MAP02A02

Massaponax
Creek

Rappahannock
River Basin

Escherichia coli (E. coli)

On-site Treatment Systems (Septic Systems and Similar
Decentralized Systems), Wastes from Pets, Waterfowl, Wildlife
Other than Waterfowl, Livestock (Grazing or Feeding Operations),
Urban Runoff/Storm Sewers

70

APPENDIX D – Maps of Regional Watersheds/Impaired Waterways
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APPENDIX E – GWRC Priority Species of Greatest Conservation Need
Taxa

Common Name

Habitat

Amphibian

Carpenter Frog

Amphibian

Greater Siren

Tolerates a variety of warm aquatic habitats with abundant vegetation

Amphibian

Lesser Siren

Tolerates a variety of warm aquatic habitats with abundant vegetation

Bird

Bank Swallow

Bird

Belted Kingfisher

Bird

Black and White Warbler

Bird

Brown Thrasher

Bird

Chimney Swift

Bird

Easter Kingbird

Bird

Eastern Meadowlark

Bird

Eastern Towhee

Bird

Eastern Whip-Poor-Will

Bird

Eastern Woo-Peewee

Freshwater wetlands with sphagnum moss

Habitat includes open and partly open situations, frequently near flowing water. Nests are in
steep sand, dirt, or gravel banks, in burrows dug near the top of the bank, along the edge of
inland water, or along the coast, or in gravel pits, road embankments, etc.
Primarily along water, both freshwater and marine, including lakes, streams, wooded creeks
and rivers, seacoasts, bays, estuaries, and mangroves. Perches in trees, on over hanging
branches, posts and utility wires
Habitat generalist with broad habitat tolerances
Thickets and bushy areas in deciduous forest clearings and forest edge, shrubby areas and
gardens; in migration and winter also in scrub.
Inhabits rural and urban environments having both an abundance of flying arthropods and
suitable roosting/nesting sites
Forest edge, open situations with scattered trees and shrubs, cultivated lands with bushes and
fencerows, and parks; in winter more closely associated with forest clearings and borders.
Grasslands, savanna, open fields, pastures, cultivated lands, sometimes marshes
Inhabits forest and swamp edges, regenerating clear-cuts, open-canopied forests, particularly
those with a well-developed understory, reclaimed strip mines, mid-late successional fields,
riparian thickets, overgrown fencerows, shrub/small-tree thickets, and other brushy habitats.
Forest and open woodland, from lowland moist and deciduous forest to montane forest and
pine-oak association
Inhabits a wide variety of wooded upland and lowland habitats including deciduous,
coniferous, or mixed forests
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Bird

Field Sparrow

Bird

Grasshopper Sparrow

Bird

Grey Catbird

Bird

Green Heron

Bird

Kentucky Warbler

Bird

Northern Flicker

Bird

Wood Thrush

Bird

Yellow-Billed Cuckoo

Bird

Yellow-Breasted Chat

Fish

American Brook Lamprey

Fish

American Shad

Fish

Bridle Shiner

Fish

Least Brook Lamprey

Fish

Mud Sunfish

FW Mollusk

Alewife Floater

FW Mollusk

Dwarf Wedgemussel

Reptile

Rainbow Snake

Old fields, brushy hillsides, overgrown pastures, thorn scrub, deciduous forest edge, sparse
second growth, fencerows
Grassland obligate
Thickets, dense brushy and shrubby areas, undergrowth of forest edge, hedgerows, and
gardens, dense second growth
Swamps, mangroves, marshes, and margins of ponds, rivers, lakes, and lagoons
Humid deciduous forest, dense second growth, swamps
Open forest, both deciduous and coniferous, open woodland, open situations with scattered
trees and snags, riparian woodland, pine-oak association, parks.
Deciduous or mixed forests with a dense tree canopy and a fairly well- developed deciduous
understory, especially where moist
Open woodland (especially where undergrowth is thick), parks, deciduous riparian woodland
Second growth, shrubby old pastures, thickets, bushy areas, scrub, woodland undergrowth,
and fence rows, including low wet places near streams, pond edges, or swamps; thickets with
few tall trees; early successional stages of forest regeneration; commonly in sites close to
human habitation.
Requires clear flowing water but can tolerate a range of temperatures and substrates
Large unfragmented migratory rivers for spawning
Slow clear water with aquatic vegetation
Warm small streams with slow flows and sand/ silt substrates
Swamps, ponds, and slow-moving water
Alewife obligate - coastal streams and lakes with sand or gravel substrates
Clean warm streams and rivers with low to moderate current and unstilted substrates
Riparian forest - eel obligate
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APPENDIX F: Summary of Conservation Strategies and Actions for the GW Region
Conservation
Strategies

Conservation Action

Threats
Addressed

Economic/Human
Benefits

Priority Areas

Maintain and
restore wetland
habitats

2. Work with appropriate permitting process to ensure adequate
mitigation and restoration procedures are in place;
3. Implement living shoreline where feasible;
4. Establish or enhance vegetated buffer areas inland of existing
wetlands;
5. Utilize relevant data (e.g. Virginia Department of Conservation
and Recreation’s Wetlands catalog) to identify priority areas for
conservation, acquisition, and restoration;
6. Control invasive species.

Water quality
degradation,
habitat/land use
conversion,
climate change,
non-native and
exotic species,
predators

Flood control; filtration
services, erosion and
sediment control; supports
recreational and commercial
fisheries;
ecotourism/wildlife
watching and
fishing/hunting opportunities

Watershed with
priority wetlands
and areas adjacent
to priority
watershed that
allow inland
migration of
wetlands

Enhance,
maintain, and
restore aquatic
riparian habitats

1. Establish riparian vegetative buffers along waterways;
2. Reforest erodible cropland and pastures;
3. Establish waste storage facilities (such as dairy lagoons or waste
sheds) to better manage animal waste and prevent flow into the
river;
4. Establish retention ponds, impoundments, or other features to
manage and slow storm water runoff from cropland, pastures,
forests, and barren lands;
5. Implement projects to slow urban storm water flowing into
steams such as vegetative buffers, reducing impervious surface,
rain gardens, and low impact development techniques;
6. Repair or replace failing septic systems and pit privies;
7. Work to prevent pet and kennel waste from entering waterways;
8. Identify additional impaired waters within planning region;
9. Restore aquatic connections;
10. Monitor and address invasive species impacts; and
11. Adopt land use practices or policies through zoning or other
means to help improve the health of aquatic systems.

Sedimentation,
contaminant
loading, water
chemistry
alteration,
stream nutrient
dynamics
alteration, land
conversion/alter
ation, invasive
species, water
withdrawals,
climate change

Address TMDL concerns by
reducing amounts of
sediment, nutrients,
pesticides, and other
pollutants that enter
waterways; Sustain sport
fisheries and recreation
opportunities; contribute to
clean water supply

Deep Run,
Fairview Beach,
Plentiful Creek

Maintain and
restore forest

1. Protect land through acquisition, easement, incentives, or other
mechanisms;
2. Implement vegetative buffers around extractive practices and

Land use change
and conversion,
invasive species,

Flood control; water quality;
and ecotourism/wildlife
viewing/other outdoor

Forest patches
adjacent to already
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habitat

development;
Work with state and federal agencies to ensure implementation
of appropriate best management practices;
4. Maintain forest health to help ensure forest viability; and
5. Monitor and control invasive species.

climate change

recreation

protected parcels

1. Restore native grasses, shrubs, and forbs;
2. Maintain existing open habitats with periodic disturbance (e.g.,
prescribed burning, mowing, disking, etc.); and
3. Conserve, via acquisition, easement, collaboration, or
agreement, patches from 20 acres to 100 or more acres.

Land use
changes,
invasive species

Conservation of native
pollinators; erosion control;
sequestration of nutrients,
pesticides, and other
pollutants before they enter
river systems

Areas supported
SGCM that are not
already protected

3.

Maintain and
restore forest
habitat

Source: Virginia Wildlife Action Plan
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APPENDIX G: Considering the Whole Community
This Plan emphasizes the need to give all people in the GW Region an equal chance to participate in and benefit from resiliency efforts, especially
those who will feel the brunt of natural hazards by virtue of where they live or other factors. A simple example of this might be reaching out to
people who typically aren’t contacted for planning efforts. Support should be provided for those who face barriers to participation, such as hearing
difficulties or lack of access to transport. Support might include providing marginalized people with an empowering environment in which to
speak, offering translation services, providing physical access accommodations, and providing education to remove information barriers.

Civil Rights Requirements
This section provides information on civil rights laws that apply to the George Washington Regional Commission, and contractors doing work on
GWRC’s behalf.
It is important to note that Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 provides protection from discrimination based on race, color, or national origin
- exclusively. A Title VI audit might look into discrimination based on race, color, and national origin, but also whether low-income and minority
populations (covered under environmental justice law) as well as those with limited English proficiency (covered under limited English
Proficiency law) are being afforded equitable participation and benefits.

Title VI
In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 “No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin,
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal
financial assistance.” The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 adds that federal nondiscrimination laws apply broadly to all programs and policies
of recipients and sub-recipients of federal funds and private businesses to which federal assistance is extended, regardless of which program or
policy is funded by federal dollars.
The George Washington Regional Commission and Local Governments can take the following actions to promote Title VI protections:








Solicit and record demographic data on public participants, committee members, and staff to identify underrepresentation.
Map minority and ethnic populations using U.S. Census data to learn about community composition and strategically plan proactive
community outreach.
Conduct an analysis to understand who will be most affected by climate hazards.
Take a boots-on-the-ground approach to identify community needs at a micro-level.
Provide translation services free of charge and proactively translate documents as appropriate.
Strategically conduct outreach to engage minority populations and facilitate their participation in the decision-making process.
Provide clear directions on how to file a discrimination complaint.
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Environmental Justice (EJ)
Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, was issued out
of concern that low-income and minority populations in the U.S. were disproportionately burdened by the negative consequences of community
development and did not always receive a proportionate amount of the benefits of community development. The executive order requires federal
agencies to identify and address disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects of federal programs, policies, and
activities on low-income and minority populations.
The George Washington Regional Commission and Local Governments can take the following actions to promote Environmental Justice:
 Conduct target community outreach to encourage low-income and minority populations to participate in resiliency planning process –
from early planning phases to implementation.
 Mapping and data collection to identify “front-line” communities that are geographically and socio-economically more vulnerable to the
effect of coastal flooding and other natural hazards.
 Conduct community outreach at accessible locations within the community.
 Offering in-person and virtual participation opportunities in a comfortable setting for all ages and abilities which feature multiple ways to
communicate with staff.
 Provide free language translation and interpretation services upon request and proactively translating documents as appropriate.

Analysis for Resiliency Plans and Programs
GWRC can measure the impact of resiliency related policy, programs, and initiatives by conducting an analysis of benefits and burdens to
different communities. Such an analysis would evaluate how the cumulative impact of the Resilience Plan will benefit and/or burden minority and
low-income populations. GWRC should investigate the localities’ staff and technology capacity to conduct such analyses.
Benefits include but are not limited to the following:







Increased economic resilience and creation of resiliency related jobs.
Access to healthcare facilities, critical facilities, and emergency evacuation routes and services.
Any measure or action that would help alleviate poverty.
Any measure or action that would protect human health and property from natural hazards.
Increased protection and adaptation to natural hazards.
Access to a healthy and safe environment.

Adverse effects, which constitutes burdens, include one or more significant human health or environmental effects, including social and economic
effects. These include but are not limited to:


Bodily impairment, infirmity, illness, or death.
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Air, noise, and water pollution and soil contamination.
Displacement of persons, business, farms, or community organizations.
Destruction or disruption of a community’s economic vitality.
Destruction or disruption of man-made or natural infrastructure.
Destruction or disruption of accessibility of critical facilities, and emergency evacuation routes and services.
Isolation, exclusion or separation of individuals within a given community or from the broader community.
Disproportional impacts of coastal flooding.
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APPENDIX H: Community Engagement
Opportunities for Community Engagement
GWRC is currently in the resilience planning process, there are upcoming opportunities for community members and other stakeholders to
participate.
 Charette: July 27th 2021, 1:00-3:00pm in person
 Public Meeting: July 27th 2021, 6:00-8:00pm

Procedures
The FAMPO Community Engagement and Equity Plan serves as a detailed guide for regional staff to conduct community outreach. These
procedures with allow GWRC staff to reach, teach, and learn from community members and other resilience stakeholders, particularly those who
are traditionally underrepresented in civic processes. These procedures will facilitate meaningful community involvement in the resiliency
decision-making process.

Staff Guide for Conducting Community Engagement
Community Engagement Goals
1. To effectively reach, teach, and learn from community members and other resilience stakeholders, particularly those who are traditionally
underrepresented in civic processes.
2. To communicate community and stakeholder input early in the decision-making process to planners, GWRC committee members, and
policy-makers so that resiliency decisions are made with the community’s needs and vision in mind.
3. Create and sustain knowledgeable and inclusive community leaders and networks, especially for traditionally underserved communities.
4. To communicate back to the community members how their input influenced the decision-making process or policies.
Make and Maintain a Formal Engagement Plan
Developing and maintaining a public participation plan provides formalized procedures, strategies, and desired outcomes. Regularly assessing the
plans effectiveness ensure accountability and
The FAMPO Community Engagement and Equity Plan, provides a thorough outline of community engagement strategies, tools, evaluation criteria
for effectiveness of tools, and indicators of success. Although this plan is transportation based, it should be adapted to inform community
engagement throughout the GWRC resilience planning process.
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Identify Community Members
GWRC must be familiar with the community it serves. Regional demographic information is included in the Regional Assets section. Maps should
be made of environmental justice communities. It is also important to take a boots-on-the-ground approach to become more familiar with specific
neighborhood conditions, and to speak to a wide range of people to learn about their unique resiliency challenges or considerations.
Resiliency decisions will also impact businesses, schools, government entities, community organizations, and all other stakeholders. Regular
research and networking should be conducted to identify stakeholders and encourage them to participate in the resiliency planning process.
Follow up with the Community and other Stakeholders
When a group or individual communicates a concern or idea, takes a survey, submits a public comment, or otherwise participates in the planning
process, staff must follow up in a timely manner. Staff need to convey how the stakeholder participation influenced the decision-making process.
Communicating this information to participants encourages further community participation and also requires staff to take the time to consider
whether public input is being conveyed to planners and decision-makers in an impactful and timely manner.
Community Engagement Strategies and Tools
The following strategies and tools to encourage and enable meaningful community participation in the decision-making and planning processes.
These strategies and tools are designed to promote equitable participation by lowering participation barriers.

Tool
Social
Media

Outreach Purpose
To keep the community
engaged and informed.

Strategies




Websites

To provide the community
with easy to understand
comprehensive and timely
information.





Considerations for Different Demographics

Post regularly on social media platforms.
Use Facebook ads to announce public
meetings, hearings, events, and surveys.
Engage in dialogue and share
information.




Very low following and interactions overall.
Different age groups use different social media
platforms.

Simplify complex concepts.
Periodically conduct a website audit to
ensure information is easy to find and
understand.
Use interactive features such as maps
and videos.



Ensure google translates and text enlargement
buttons are available.
Ensure images have alternate text and the site is
easy to navigate.
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Surveys

In-Person
Events

To provide an opportunity for
the community to easily
share concerns and ideas
before decisions are made.




Use online and paper surveys.
Offer surveys in multiple languages, as
appropriate.



To meet people where they
are. To provide information
and facilitate conversation.



Hold tabling events in public spaces and
at community events or gatherings.
Host public workshops and open houses.
Provide interactive activities at in-person
events to promote communication.
Participate in external meetings as a
guest speaker.
Host community resilience events.
Educational seminars or talks.
Food Truck rodeos.



Live stream Q and A sessions on social
media.
24/7 virtual classroom on website with
videos and interactive features.
Host virtual round-tables, work-shops,
and focus groups.
Attend external virtual meetings as a
guest speaker.
Use interactive virtual meeting room
features.










Virtual
Events

To provide a convenient
method for the community to
learn about coastal resilience,
ask questions, and express
concerns or ideas.


















Always collect and analyze demographic
information on participations.
Include participation clause on surveys that
translation services are available free of charge.
Some individuals have barriers to reaching inperson events.
Those with limited English proficiency may
struggle to communicate and participate.
Have printed information available in Spanish, as
appropriate.
Have Google Translate and “I Speak Cards” ready
to use.
Information must be tailored to the audience.
Meeting community members where they live and
work.
Some individuals may not have access to the
internet. Provide information on in-person events
and other meaningful opportunities to participate.
Provide information on ways to obtain low-cost
internet devices
Some people struggle to navigate virtual platforms.
Provide guides and easy to understand information
on how to navigate virtual events.
Implement closed caption and other accessibility
features.
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Public
Meetings
and
Hearings

To provide an opportunity for
the community to directly
address decision makers.






Advisory
Allow interested members of
Committees the community to influence
the decision-making process
by serving on an advisory
committee.






Record meetings and post on social
media outlets and website.
When possible, offer virtual attendance
option for in-person meetings and
hearings.
When possible, live stream in-person
meetings.
Allow community members to submit
comments in advance of the meeting to
be read by the staff Offer text to
comment feature, phone call, or email
submissions.



Form a Citizens Coastal Resiliency
Advisory Committee (CCRAC).
Raise awareness of the ability to serve on
CCRAC with advertisements, social
media, networking, and news articles.
Provide staff support and education to
committee members.
Translation and interpretation services
must be offered free of charge, upon
request.









Some have visual, hearing, mobility, or language
barriers.
Translation and interpretation services must be
offered free of charge, upon request.
Hold meetings at times and locations that allow for
participation of historically underrepresented
populations, frontline communities, and all other
stakeholders.

Committee members demographics should be
reflective of the George Washington Region
population being served.
Committee members tend to be those who are
politically connected and economically
advantaged.
GWRC staff must proactively encourage
individuals of underrepresented groups to serve on
CRAC and educate localities about the importance
of representation and diversity.
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9b. AmeriCorps VISTA Opportunity

AmeriCorps VISTA Opportunity
Volunteers in Service to America (VISTA) is a national program designed specifically to fight
poverty in America. AmeriCorps VISTA members make a year-long, full-time commitment to
serve on a specific project at an organization and focus their efforts to build the organizational,
administrative, and financial capacity of organizations assisting low-income communities.
For the past six years, the George Washington Regional Commission has partnered with the
Virginia Housing Alliance (VHA) to host an AmeriCorps VISTA. VHA’s program focuses on
reducing homelessness and expanding affordable housing opportunities through education,
advocacy, training, and capacity building. The VHA VISTA project provides the human capital
necessary to deliver on the ground technical support to agencies developing, providing, or
otherwise supporting homelessness response systems and expanding affordable housing.
Past GWRC VISTAs
GWRC’s past VISTAs have worked with the Continuum of Care (CoC). CoC VISTAs have worked
on two major service projects: 1) helping GWRC, as the CoC lead agency, formalize the CoC and
2) providing technical assistance to CoC service providers. Activities of the CoC VISTAs have
included:
• Developing policies and procedures for programs and systems
• Designing the CoC’s website and overseeing social media and communications
• Developing community data collection procedures
• Researching and providing training to CoC providers on housing first best practices
• Designing a centralized coordinated assessment for accessing services
• Developing formal policies for soliciting, reviewing, and ranking CoC funding applications
• Updating the data quality plan and improving processes for reporting HMIS data
• Developing community standards for CoC programs
• Completing an analysis of the racial disparities in homelessness
• Designing a diversion program and creating training for staff
• Developing a monitoring and evaluation plan for overseeing the performance of the CoC
system and grantees
• Analyzing HMIS data on service usage to facilitate performance improvement
• Developing COVID-19 protocols for emergency shelter and housing programs
• Establishing critical partnerships with stakeholders to prevent and end homelessness
Affordable Housing VISTAs
Other communities have used affordable housing VISTAs to build capacity in their
organizations. These activities have included:
• Developing partnerships with public, private, and non-profit entities
• Convening stakeholders on affordable housing
• Conducting housing analyses to understand community gaps and needs

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Conducting market research for further project development and expansion
Developing grant applications to increase organizational resources for programming and
development
Researching best practices for program implementation
Developing evaluation strategies for project outcomes
Establishing housing trust funds
Developing intake processes for low-income households to access services
Creating marketing campaigns and overseeing social media
Providing community education on services and projects
Developing organizational strategic plans
Recruiting volunteers
Developing project tracking tools
Developing project databases to streamline and organize data
Developing policies and procedures for soliciting and reviewing applications for funding

Benefits and Cost
By participating in the program, GWRC would receive:
• One full-time VISTA to serve 40-45 hours per week for 12 months, with all AmeriCorps
oversight and reporting requirements handled by VHA
• Priority for up to two additional VISTAs in subsequent years
To participate, GWRC would provide:
• $6,500 Host Site Fee
• Position-specific training
• Daily supervision and support to the VISTA
• Office space and equipment

10a. Resolution 22-09: Signers for Carter Bank & Trust Accounts

George Washington Regional Commission
406 Princess Anne Street
Fredericksburg, Virginia 22401
(540) 373-2890
Fax (540) 899-4808
www.gwregion.org

RESOLUTION NO. 22-09
APPROVING SIGNERS FOR GWRC CARTER BANK & TRUST ACCOUNTS
WHEREAS, the George Washington Regional Commission (“the Commission”) is the Planning
District Commission serving the City of Fredericksburg and Caroline, King George, Spotsylvania and
Stafford counties, known together as Planning District 16; and
WHEREAS, the Commission has four bank accounts with Carter Bank & Trust; and
WHEREAS, the Commission wishes to add the new Executive Director as an authorized signer on
the accounts and update the City of Fredericksburg authorized signer on the accounts to the new
Executive Committee member.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the George Washington Regional Commission
that it hereby approves the following changes to the list of authorized signers on its Carter Bank &
Trust accounts:
Remove the following individuals:
• Matthew Kelly
Keep the following individuals:
• Katherine Gibson, Deputy Director
• Jeffrey Black, Chairman
• Mary “Meg” Bohmke, Second Vice Chairman
• Catherine Binder, Secretary
Add the following individuals:
• Charles “Chip” Boyles, Executive Director
• Jason Graham, First Vice Chairman
Adopted by the George Washington Regional Commission at its duly called meeting on November
22, 2021 in the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia, a quorum being present.
___________________________________________
Jeffrey Black, Chairman

CAROLINE COUNTY

CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG

KING GEORGE COUNTY

November 22, 2021

SPOTSYLVANIA COUNTY

STAFFORD COUNTY

11. Correspondence

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

C. Erinn Tisdale
Cynthia Tisdale
Local Government Notification of Proposed Draft Groundwater Withdrawal Permit-Colonies
Monday, October 25, 2021 11:54:33 AM
GW0007701_Colonies_Public Notice_10182021.pdf

Dear Local Official:
The Department of Environmental Quality has received an application to withdraw
groundwater in the Eastern Virginia Groundwater Management Area. Part V of the
Groundwater Withdrawal Regulations requires that the Department of Environmental Quality
send a notice of every draft permit to the board of each local governing body located within
the groundwater management area where the proposed withdrawal will occur prior to the date
of public notice.
In accordance with section 9VAC25-610-250 B, please find the attached notice that will be
advertised in the Tidewater Review on October 27, 2021.  The notice and associated map will
be available on the DEQ website by the start of the Public Notice period. Additional
information on the permit application may be obtained by contacting me.
The Department will accept comments concerning the proposed issuance of this draft permit
for thirty days. All comments must be received by 4 p.m. on November 29, 2021.
Sincerely,
Erinn Tisdale
-C. Erinn Tisdale
Office of Water Supply
Withdrawal Permitting & Compliance
Department of Environmental Quality
P.O. Box 1105
Richmond, VA 23218

https://www.deq.virginia.gov/Programs/Water/WaterSupplyWaterQuantity.aspx
C.Erinn.Tisdale@deq.virginia.gov
(804) 814-9439

Fax #(804) 698-4178

Public Notice – Environmental Permit
PURPOSE OF NOTICE: To seek public comment on a draft permit from the Department of Environmental
Quality for the withdrawal of groundwater in New Kent County, Virginia.
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: October 27, 2021 to November 29, 2021
PERMIT NAME: Groundwater Withdrawal Permit issued by DEQ, under the authority of the State Water
Control Board
APPLICANT NAME, ADDRESS AND PERMIT NUMBER: New Kent County Department of Public Utilities;
7051 Poindexter Road; GW0007701
NAME AND LOCATION OF WATER WITHDRAWAL: Colonies Water System; 901 & 911 Colonies Trail,
Lanexa, VA 23089
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: New Kent County Department of Public Utilities has applied for a reissuance of
a permit for the Colonies Water System in New Kent County, Virginia. The permit would authorize the
applicant to withdraw up to 13,300,000 gallons per year. The groundwater withdrawal will support a public
water supply. The proposed withdrawal will utilize the Piney Point aquifer at a depth between 174 feet to
238 feet below the land surface at the withdrawal site. An aquifer is a body of rock or layer of sediment in
the ground in which groundwater is stored and transported. DEQ has made a tentative decision to issue
the permit.
AFFECTED AREA: The radial distance from the wells to where computer modeling predicts the aquifer
may experience one foot of drawdown due to the withdrawal is illustrated on a map that can be viewed at
https://www.deq.virginia.gov/permits-regulations/public-notices/water/water-withdrawal
HOW TO COMMENT AND OR REQUEST A PUBLIC HEARING: DEQ accepts comments and requests
for public hearing by e-mail, fax or postal mail. All comments and requests must be in writing and be
received by DEQ during the comment period. Submittals must include the names, mailing addresses and
telephone numbers of the commenter/requester and of all persons represented by the
commenter/requester. A request for public hearing must also include: 1) The reason why a public hearing
is requested. 2) A brief, informal statement regarding the nature and extent of the interest of the requester
or of those represented by the requestor, including how and to what extent such interest would be directly
and adversely affected by the permit. 3) Specific references, where possible, to terms and conditions of
the permit with suggested revisions. DEQ may hold a public hearing, including another comment period, if
public response is significant and there are substantial, disputed issues relevant to the proposed permit.
CONTACT FOR PUBLIC COMMENTS, DOCUMENT REQUESTS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: C.
Erinn Tisdale; Central Office, P.O. Box 1105, Richmond, VA, 23218; Phone: 804-814-9439; E-mail:
C.Erinn.Tisdale@deq.virginia.gov; FAX: 804-698-4178. The public may review the draft permit and
application at the DEQ office named above {by appointment}.

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality
Kate Gibson
Public Comment Period: Enforcement Manual & E-Signature Document
Tuesday, October 26, 2021 1:40:32 PM

DEQ.Virginia.gov

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD OPEN:
DEQ Civil Enforcement Manual & E-Signature Guidance
The Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) is seeking public comment
on two guidance documents: The DEQ Civil Enforcement Manual on Virginia
Regulatory Town Hall (Chapters 2 through 4 and Chapter 6) and E-Signature
Guidance. The public comment period for both documents is open through Nov. 24,
2021.
The Civil Enforcement Manual is a DEQ guidance document that covers general
compliance and enforcement procedures, the timely and appropriate policy for
processing cases, procedures for calculating civil charges and adversarial
administrative proceedings. (To access the Civil Enforcement Manual, click here.)
The E-Signature Guidance provides a definition of an electronic signature and an
outline by which DEQ will accept an electronic signature. (To access the E-Signature
Document, click here.)
DEQ is seeking comments on both documents to determine whether they are contrary
to state law or regulation, and if they should not be exempted from the provisions of
the Administrative Process Act. DEQ is also seeking general comment on the
guidelines and procedures in accordance with Virginia Code § 10.1-1197.9(C)(4).
How to Comment
Comments for the enforcement manual may be provided through the Virginia Town
Hall for both the Civil Enforcement Manual and E-Signature Document. DEQ also
accepts written comments by:
Hand-delivery – 1111 East Main Street, Richmond, VA 23219
Postal Mail – P.O. Box 1105, Richmond, VA 23218
E-mail – Lee.Crowell@DEQ.Virginia.gov
Fax – 804-698-4178
Comments should include the full name, address and telephone number of the person
commenting and be received by DEQ by 11:59 p.m. on Nov. 24, 2021.

For more information, contact Lee Crowell at 804-698-4450.
###
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